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therein or any omissions therefore. By accepting this lnformation Memorandum, investors ag

will not have any such liability.

ree that the Arr

Neither this lnformation Memorandum nor any other information supplied in connection with the lssue is in ded

to provide the complete basis of any credit or other evaluation, nor should it be considered as a recommen
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by the Arranger to the lssue that any recipient of this lnformation Memorandum (or any other information sup

in connection with the lssue) should purchase or subscribe for any Bonds. Each investor contemplating purch

or subscribing for a Bond should make their own independent investigation of the financlal condition and a

and their own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the lssuer. lnvestors are advised not to construe the contertgof
this lnformation Memorandum as investment, legal, accounting, regulatory or tax advice. lnvestors are also adffied
to consult with their own advisors as to all legat, accounting, regulatory, tax, financial and related maErs,
concerning an investment in the Bonds.
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tJcB 2nd Perpetual Bond of BDT 3,000 Million

NOTICE & DISCLAIMER

united Commercial Bank PLC (previously known United Commercial Bank Limited) hereinafter referred as the

"BanlC' or the "UCB" or the "lssue/') has authorized UCB lnvestment Limited (hereinafter referred as "UCBIL" or

the "Lead Arrange/'to distribute this lnformation Memorandum (lM) in connection with the proposed transaction

outlined in it (the 'transaction") and the bonds proposed to be issued in the Transaction (the "Bonds")

This lnformation Memorandum is provided to prospective investors on a private and confidential basis for use solely

in connection with the issue, offer, sale or invitation to subscribe or purchase Perpetual Bonds. This lnformation

Memorandum shall not be, in whole or in part, reproduced or used for any other purpose without prior written

consent of the Arranger.

The Issuer has prepared this information memorandum and is solely responsible for its contents. The issuer will

comply with all rules, Iaws and regulations and is responsible for obtaining all regulatory, governmental and

corporate approvals for the issuance of the Bonds. The lssuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, conflrms that

this lnformation Memorandum contains all the information with respect to itself and the Bonds to be issued by it,

which is material in the context of the Bonds; that the information contained in this lnformation Memorandum is

true and accurate in all material respects and is not misleading; that the opinions and intentions expressed in this

lnformation Memorandum are honestly held and that there are no other facts the omission of which would make

any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading. The lssuer accepts

responsibility accordingly.

The Arrangers has relied on the information provided by the lssuer and such information has not been independently

verified by the Arranger. No representation or warranty, expressed or implied, is or will be made, and no

responsibility or liability is or will be accepted, by the Arranger or any afflliate of the Arranger for the accuracy,

completeness, reliability, correctness or fairness of this lnformation Memorandum or any of the information or

opinions contained therein, and the Arranger hereby expressly disclaim, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any

responsibility for the contents of this lnformation Memorandum and any liability, whether arising in tort or contract

or otherwise, relating to or resulting from this lnformation Memorandum or any information or errors contained
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ISSUER,S DISCLAIMER

ALL THE FEATURES OF UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond ARE DRAFT ONLY AND FINALIZATION OF THESE FEATURES

ARE SUBJECT TO THE APPROVALS OF COMPETENT REGULATORS. THESE FEATURES MAY BE MODIFIED AS

PER THE DIRECTIONS OF BANGLADESH BANK AND BANGTADESH SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE

COMMISSION OR ANY OTHER COMPETENT REGULATORS.
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SECTION 1: REPORT TO THE ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

By investing in the Bonds, you are hereby deemed to have acknowledged, represented and warranted to,

and agree (as the case may be) for the benefit of the Arranger, as set out below:

High risk: You are fully aware that investment in the Bonds involves a high degree of risk.

consultation with advisers: You have (i) consulted with your own legal, regulatory, tax, business,

investment, financial and accounting advisers in connection herewith to the extent you have deemed

necessary, (ii) collected and reviewed all information that you or your advisers believe is necessary or

appropriate in connection with the purchase of the Bonds, and (iii) made your own investment decisions

based upon your own judgment, due diligence and advice from such advisers as you have deemed

necessa ry a nd not upon any view expressed by or on behalf of the Arra nger.

No reliance: You acknowledge and agree that you may not rely on any investigation that the Arranger or

any of its affiliates or any person acting on their behalf may have conducted with respect to the lssuer or

any of their affiliates, and neither the Arranger nor its affiliates, employees, officers, directors, legal

advisers or representatives have made any representation to you, express or implied, with respect to your

investment in the Bonds.

lnformed decision: You are in possession of all the information that you believe is necessary or

appropriate in order to make an informed decision regardlng your purchase of the Bonds, including

without limitation, adequate information concerning the lssue/s business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

ch knowledge and experlence in financial, busin andKnowledge and experience: You have su

international investment matters that you a

the Bonds and are aware that you may be

economic risk of an investment in the Bonds

re capable of evaluating the merits and risks of p rch

n the Bonds, you have determined that

a o
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a
,Jrequired to bear, and are able to bear, all risks i l@in

lnformation of the Company: You acknowledge that the information provided to you with regard te
lssuer and the Bonds in this lnformation Memorandum has been supplied to you by the Arranger only o

behalf of the lssuer and that neither the Arranger nor any of its affiliates, employees, officers, directors,

legal advisers or representatives has verified such information or makes any representation or warranty
as to its accuracy or completeness.

Review of lnformation Memorandum: You have reviewed this lnformation Memorandum in its entirety,

including the risks associated with investment in the Bonds, and you understand and acknowledge all $

(

x

a(

the risks described herein. By t"ri.JtiJ
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agrng Director & CEO
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Managing Director
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the Bonds are a suitable investment for you and your investment in the Bonds does not and will
not, when consummated, violate any investment or other guidelines, policies or restrictions
(corporate or otherwise), or any law, rule, regulation or order applicable to you; and

Own account: You a re purchasing the Bonds for your own account and not with a view to any distribution

thereof.

No representation or warranty: The Arranger has not made, and you have not relied upon any

representation, warranty or condition (express and/or implied), and the Arranger shall not owe any duty

whatsoever to you in connection with the Bonds.

No obligation to purchase: The Arranger shall have no obligation to purchase or acquire all or any part of
the Bonds purchased by you or to support losses, if any, directly or indirectly sustained or incurred by you

for any reason whatsoever in connection with the Bonds, including the non-performance by the issuance,

whether to you or otherwise.
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you have obtained ail approvals and consents (whether internal or external) and have made all

notifications necessary for you to invest in the Bonds as contemplated; and you can bear the
economic risk of the investment and are able to sustain a complete loss in connection with your

investment.

.rs

\"'

1( ttt' 1t8

@,@-_
Ajt{adn

1s11



--
ucBp

Draft lnformation Memorandum of
UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of 8DT 3.000 Million

e

*

SECTION 2: RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION ABOUT RISK

United Commercial Bank PLC (The lssuer) operates in banking industry which is cyclical and hence is

exposed to several risk factors arising from externa I as well as internal matters. Moreover, any investment
in debt securities carries risks. Hence, different debt securities carry different risks; an investment in
Perpetual Bond has to be evaluated on its own merits. An investment in the Perpetual bonds is in that
respect no different.

Potential investors of UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond are strongly encouraged to carefully evaluate all the
information in this lnformation Memorandum, specially the risk factors both internal and external on their
own merit and not by referent to any other debt securities whether of a comparable nature or otherwise
before making any investment decision.

This section addresses the possible risks an investor might have to bear by investing in the bonds and each
risk factor is followed by management's perception regarding the risk. lf any of the risks described below
materialize, it could have a serious impact on the lssue/s financial results, and the ability of the lssuer to
fulfill its obligations under the Bonds to be issued. However, the list of risk factors is not meant to be a

comprehensive description of all risks which may be relevant to a decision to invest in the Bonds. The
sequence in which the risks below are listed is not intended to be indicative of any order of priority or of
the extent of thelr consequences.

2.7 lnterest Rote Risk

The banking book consists of assets and liabilities contracted basically on account of relationship or
for steady income and statutory obligations and are generally held till maturity/payment by counter
party. The earnings or changes in the economic value are the main focus in banking book. lnterest rate
risk is the risk that a bank will experience deterioration in its financial position as interest rates move over
time. lnterest rate risk in the banking book arises from a bank's core banking activities.

Manoqement Perception

The Bank uses Duration Gap Analysis (DGA) for deriving value ofcapital requirement for interest rate risk.
The Bank ensures that interest rate risk is not included within the market risk. The Bank has calculated
the rate sensitive assets and liabilities with maturity up to 12 months'bucket and applied the sensitivity

e the level of interest rate shock on its capital adequacy
q
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Exchdnqe Rdte Risk
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risk is defined as the potential change in earnings due to change in foreign exchange rat
Exch a n fluctuation may reduce the profitability of the bank because its trade commitments fros$ various sources of foreign exchange like export proceeds and remittances

stt"
perception

Treasury Department conducts the Foreign Exchange Deals for the Bank as per Bangladesh Bank
guideline and their own policies. Treasury Mid Office is responslble to monitor all rel
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Office is responsible for verification of all deals executed by Treasury, settling payments and passing of
entries in the books of account. Back Office is also ensuring revaluation in the Core Banking at Mark-to-
Market rate basis as determined by BB on daily basis, submitting Foreign Exchange Position report as per
BB guideline daily, reconciling/reportin8 all NOSTRO accounts with its book of entries and submitting all

related reports to Bangladesh Bank.

2.3 Non+epdyment Risk

It arises mainly from lending, trade finance, settlement and other financial transactions. This can be
described as potential loss arising from the failure of a counter party to perform as per contractual
agreement with the Bank. The failure may result from unwillingness of the counterparty or decline in
his/her fina ncial condition.

Potential credit losses from any given account, customer or portfolio are mitigated using a range oftools
such as collateral, netting agreements, insurance, and other guarantees. The reliance that can be placed

on these mitigates is carefully assessed in light of issues such as legal certainty and enforceability, market
valuation correlation and counterparty risk of the guarantor. Risk mitigation policies determine the
eligibility of collatera I types. Collateral types which are eligible for risk mitigation include; cash, residential,
commercial and industrial property; fixed assets such as motor vehicles, plant and machinery, marketable
securities, commodities, bank guarantees, and letters of credit. Collateral is valued in accordance with our
Methodology for Valuation of Security/Collateral Assets, which prescribes the frequency of valuation for
different collateral types, based on the level of price volatility of each type of collateral. Collateral held

against impaired loans is maintained at fair value.

2.4 Prepayment, Call ot Relunding Risk

Prepayment, call or refunding risks are the risks associated with the principal amount of a bond.

Mo naq e ment's Pe rce ption

This bond is perpetual in nature i.e. there is no maturity date and there are no set-ups or other incentives
nd until it is eligible for call option criteria depicted in the features (5.1) section

2.5 Risk

is the specific revenue sources or assets pledged by an issuer to the bondholder to r"a#
repayment of the bond. Therefore, security risk is all about the process of recovering the investm
the bond holder by utilizing the charge aBainst the collateral securities in case of lssue/s inability to
theJace value"ef the bond(s).
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UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond is an unsecured bond. Specific revenue sources or assets are not being pledged
against the issuance of the bonds. lnvestors will have the right on the UCB'S cash flow to get repaid but
rank of a bond holder is below than other loans (or securities) with rega rd to claims on assets or earnings.

2.6 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk to the bank's earnings and capital arising from its inability to timely meet
obligations. Liquidity risk primarily arises due to the maturity mismatch associated with assets and
liablllties ofthe bank. Although liquidity risk dynamics vary according to a bank's funding market, balance
sheet, and inter-corporate structure, the most common signs of possible liquidity problems include rising
funding costs, a rating downgrade, decreases in credit lines, or reductions in the avallability of long-term
funding.

United Commercial Bank PLC maintains diversified and stable funding base comprising of core retail,
corporate and institutional deposits to manage liquidity risk. The prime responsibility of the liquidity risk
management of the Bank lies with Treasury Division under the supervision of ALCO, which maintains
liquidity based on current liquidity position, anticipated future funding requirement, sources of fund,
options for reducing funding needs, present and anticipated asset quality, present and future earning
capacity, present and planned capital position etc. The intensity and sophistication of liquidity risk
management process depend on the nature, size and complexity of a bank's activities. Sound liquidity risk
management employed in measuring, monitoring and controlling liquidity risk is critical to the viability of
the bank. The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), which meets at least once in a month, is responsible for
managing and controlling liquidity of the Bank. Treasury front office closely monitors and controls liquidity
requirements on daily basis by appropriate coordination of funding activities and they are primarily
responsible for management of liquidity in the Bank. A monthly projection of fund flows is reviewed in
ALCO meeting regula rly.

2.7 Mondgement Risk

re fers to the chance that bank managers' inefficiency or under performance which will
ct the shareholders. The bondholders may suffer financial losses in such an event.
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P The Bank has well established management structure with diverse knowledge, skills, experience and
expertise in core area of banking operation in its bid to attain optimal utilization of available resou(Ces.
The bank has also a well proven track record of having strong and effective leadership which alread$as
shown an e

2 4 [t[ 2023
ffect on the Bank's financial performances
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Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and

systems or from external events. Operational risk may also arise from error and fraud due to lack of
internal control and compliance across the bank.

Manoqemen(s Perception

Operational Risk is inherent in every business organization and covers a wide spectrum of issues. ln order
to mitigate this, internal control and internal audit systems are used as the primary means. United

Commercial Bank PLC manages this risk through a control based environment in which processes are

documented, authorization is independent and transactions are reconciled and monitored. This is

supported by an independent program of periodic reviews undertaken by internal audit, and by

monitoring external operational risk events, which ensure that the bank stays in line with industry best
practice and takes account of lessons learned from publicized operational failures within the financial

services industry. United Commercial Bank PLC has operational risk management process which explains

how the bank manages its operational risk by identifying, assessing, monitoring, controlling and mitigating
the risk, rectifying operational risk events, and implementing any additional procedures required for
compliance with Bangladesh Bank's requirements. Operational risk management responsibility is

assigned to different level of management within the business operation. lnformation systems are used

to record the identification and assessment of operational risks and to generate appropriate regular
management reporting. Risk assessment incorporates a regular review of identified risks to monitor
significant changes.

2.9 Business Risk

Business risk is the possibility that a company will have lower than anticipated profits, or that it
experience a loss rather than a profit. Business risk is influenced by numerous factors, including bus

environment, economic situation and government regulations.

The performance and the quality and growth of Bank's assets are necessarily dependent on ttre treadof
the Bangladesh economy as well as on global economic conditions. An economic slowdown could
adversely affect the business, including inability to grow asset portfolio, to maintain the quality of the
assets and to implement business strategy. The domestic economy could be adversely affected by a
variety of domestic as well as global factors. To mitigate business risk management continuously pursue

to execute dynamic strategy on growth and business d ive rsification.

2.70 lndunry Risk

lndustry risk is the possibility that a specific industry will not perform up to the level or at par. When $
problems plague one industry, they affectthe individual organization ofthat particular industry. They may l-
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entering into investments, underwriting of securities and portfolio management. The entry of new
competitors may also deteriorate the competitive environment and result in lower profitability of the
bank.

The Bank has an established broad-based presence and has been taking steps to enhance customer
satisfaction by upgrading skills, systems and technology to meet such challenges. The Bank is attempting
to add quality assets on competitive terms and also taking steps to broad base its product bouquet with
a special emphasis on enhancement in the non-fund-based income. On the resource-raising front, the
Bank is actively endeavoring to broaden its reach and raise resources through its wide distribution
network of bra nches.

2.77 Morket and Technology Reldted Risk

Market risk is the risk of potential losses in the on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions ofa bank,
steams from adverse movements in market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices, credit spreads and/or commodity prices. Market risk exposure may be explicit in bank's
trading book and banking book.

The financial industry of Bangladesh is currently one of the fastest growing in the country and is

increasingly becoming competitive. Strong marketing and brand management would be required to
increase the bank's customer base.

As the banking industry is becoming more and more technology dependent the risks deriving from
technological use is increasing day by day. The bank might be exposed to risks such as cyber-attack, system
collapse, system hacking, unauthorized electronic fund transfers, etc.

The Board approves all policies related to market risk, sets limit and reviews compliance on a regular basis.
The objective is to provide cost effective funding last year to finance asset growth and trade relatedz

0a

o D i$ion under the supervision of ALCO comm ittee. The ALCO committee is com prised of senior executives

transaction. Standardized (rule based) approach is used to measure the market risk of the Bank whereas
terest rate risk and equity risk both General and specific risk factors are applied for calculating capital

c nd for foreign exchange and commodities only general risk factor is applied. The duties of
rflEhagl he market risk including liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange risk lies with the Treasury

o

b

ank, who meets at least once in a month. The committee evaluates the current position of the
d gives direction to mitigate the market risk exposure to a minimum level.

There are approved limits for Market risk related instruments both on-balance sheet and off-balance
sheet items. The limits are monitored and enforced on a regular basis to protect against market risk. The
exchange rate committee of the Bank meets on a daily basis to review the prevailing market condition,
exchange rate, forex position and transactions to mitigate foreign exchange risks.

Bank's
2a 0ffi.il?3i

business is highly dependent on ability to process a large number of transactions on a dai! b$.
al, accounting or oth er data Drocess

{'+il&IJEfun. lly or P{rffipffilond the con
ing systems may fail to operat

disabled as a result of even

aruk Ahammad FCA
zzaman, FCS ADeputy Ma aging D irector & CFO ATM Ta

DMD & Com any Secretary anaging oirector & CEO

5

G
o.
?
c

nP F'
ots
tt! 

=o-

5
B

(J-

=:3Fr-!,5
.!o.

a n

IUnited Commercial Bank pLC
United Cornmercial Bank PLC United C.mmerciat Bank pLC

Mondaement's Perception

Monoaement's Perception



ucB'
Draft Information Memorandum of

UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of 8DT 3,000 Million

'E

3
fED
E!p

Fq,EI
U6g=xrr. E'

o
Et

?

electrical or communications services. These circumstances could affect bank's operations and may result
in financial loss, disruption of businesses or may damage to bank's reputation. The Bank has set system
and processes to protect its lT systems and network infrastructure from physical break-ins as well as
security breaches and other disruptions caused by increased use oftechnology. Computer break-ins could
affect the secu rity of information stored in a nd tra nsmitted through these com puter systems a nd network
infrastructure. The Bank continues to lmplement secured technology and establish operational
procedures to prevent break-ins.

2.72 Risk Reloted to Potential or Existing Government Regulations

The company operates under, the Bank Companies Act-1991 (as amended in 2023), Companies Act-1994
(as amended in 2O2Ol,lncome Tax Act 2023, Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act 2012, Value
Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rules 2016, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and
other related regulations. The company also obtained license from Bangladesh Bank as a Bank under Bank
Companies Act-1991 (as amended in 2023). Any major changes in regulatory regime may cause the Bank
to be a noncompliant one having adverse impact in the reputation of the Bank.

Management's Perception

The laws and regulations or the regulatory or enforcement environment in Bangladesh may change at any
time and may have an adverse impact on the products or services bank offers. Central Bank from time to
time has instituted changes in regulations applicable loan provisioning, rescheduling, and amended Bank
Company Act-1991 (as amended in 2023). Unless any policy change that may negatively and materially
affect the industry as a whole, the business of the bank is expected not to be affected significantly.

2.73 Risk Related to Potentidl Chdnges in Global and Ndtionol Policies

Changes in existing global or national policles can have either positive or negative impacts for the Bank.
The performance of the Bank will be hindered due to unavoidable circumstances both in Bangladesh and
worldwide like political turmoil.
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ificant c ange in the global and national policies in the future, particularly in respect ofthe banking
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United Commercial Bank PLC

A public limited company incorporated in Bangladesh on 26th June 1983

under the Companies Act 1913 and listed in Dhaka Stock Exchange

Limited on 30th November 1986 and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited
on 15th November 1995.

Registered address:
Bulus Center, Plot - CWS- (A)-1, Road No 34,

Gu lshan avenue, Dhaka-7272.
Phone: +88-02-55668070, +88-09610999999
Email: info@ucb.com.bd
Mr. Faruk Ahammad FCA

DMD & CFO

Finance Division (FD)

Contact: +88-02-55668070, ex: 5101
Email: faruk.ahammad@ucb.com.bd
26th June 1983

27 June 1983

BDT 15,000 million (as of 31 December 2022)
BDT 14,062.37 million (as of 3L December 2022)
BDT 40,178.11 Million (as of 31 December 2022)

Date of lncorporation
Date of Commencement of
Business

Authorized Capital
Paid up Capital
Total Equity of the lssuer
Total Liabilities
Total Financial Obligations
TotalAssets
Net worth of the lssuer

2l 0Et ?123

aruk Ahammad FCA
Deputy Manag ing Director & CFO ATM

DMD

Name, Address,
Number of the
Person

1. Particular the lssuer:

Name of the lssuer

Legal Status

Registered Address and
Telephone Number of the
lssuer

Draft lnformation Memorandum of
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BDT 593,128.81 Million (as of 31 December 2022)
N/A
BDT 633,306.92 Million (as of 31 December 2022)

TotalTangible Assets
(Fixed assets including land,
building, furniture and
equipment)

BDr 40,178.11 Million (as of 31 December 2022)

BDT 18,377.36 Million (at cost - as of 31 December 2022)

2. Particular of lssue Manager(s):
Name of the issue manager(s) Prime Finance Capital Management Limited & Sonali lnvestment Limited
Legal status of the issue
manager(s)

Public Limited Company

etails of contact information Md. Rajibul lslam
Head of lssue Management
Prime Finance Capital Management Limlted
Mobile: + 88 01713335851
Email: islamra:ibulmoharnmad@gmail.com

Md. shawkat Jahan Khan
Chief Executive Officer
Sonali lnvestment Limited
Mobile: +88 01713040537 ^"l$

It.comZ 4 [E.| 2021Email: sonaliinvestmen
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Managing Director
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SECTION 3: DETAItED DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION

Detailed Description and lnformation

As per Schedule A (oart l)
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3. Particular of Underwriters:
Name of the underwriters
Legal status of the Underwriters
Details of contact information

Purpose of the lssue:

ucB$

Number of Securities and
total size of the issue to be
offered

Draft lnformation Memorandum of
UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of 8DT 3,000 Million

on criteria de

r t tei ztzi

picted in

\\

Face Value and lssue Price
of securities
Coupon rate/ Rate of profit

e of Return

/exchange
option features:
Mode of Redemption:

Prime Finance Capital Management Limited & Sonali lnvestment Limited
Public Limited Company
Md. Rajibul lslam
Head of lssue Management
Prime Finance Capital Management Limited
Mobile: + 88 01713335851
Email: islamraiibulmohammad @smail.com

UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond

Unsecured, Contingent-Convertible, fully paid up, Non-Cumulative,
BASEL lll compliant, Perpetual Debt instrument for inclusion in

Additional Tier I Capital
To raise Additional Tier-1 Capital through issuance of UCB 2nd Perpetual
Bond in order to strengthen its capital base in accordance with
Bangladesh Bank's Guidelines on Risk-Based Capital Adequacy (Revised

Regulatory Capital Framework in line with Basel lll).
The funds being raised by the Bank through the mentioned lssue are not
meant for financing any particular project. The Bank shall utilize the
proceeds of the lssue for its regular business activities. The Bank shall
not utilize proceeds of the lssue for any purpose which may be in
contravention of the regulations/ guidelines/ norms issued by the
Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh Security Exchange and Commission
where applicable.
No. of Bonds to be issuedi

540,000 under private placement and 60,000 under public offer.

lssue Size:

BDT 2,700,000,000 under private placement and BDT 300,000,000 under
public issue

BDT 5,000/ (Five thousand taka only)

As per BASEL lll guideline (Annex lV: Special Eligibility Criteria to qualify
for additional Tier l Capital, a) this instrument is perpetual in nature i.e.
there is no maturity date and there are no set-ups or other incentives to

2 4 DE." 2t23
2 418tte u0lyl":t and until it is elisible for call opti

reatures sectron. 71 0Et 2023

Deputy Managing Ohector &

Ahammad, CA
cFo ATltl uzzaman, FCS uadri

aru F

0MD & Company Secreta u'l HaquMd
Managing Oircctor & CEO
United Commercial Bank pLC -$$'

Managing Director
hi[g filrncc CaPiui Maiageme0l Lim

\\United Commerciat Bank pLC
lnited CommercialEank pLC
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4. Particular of the lssue:

Name ofthe lssue:

Type of instruments to be
issuedi

Md. Shawkat Jahan Khan
Chief Executive Officer
Sonali lnvestment Limited
Mobile: +88 01713040537
Email: sonaliinvestmentlimited@smail.com

Re[erence Rate + Coupon Margin
Coupon Rate

Not Applicable. The Bonds shall be perpetual i.e. there is no maturity
date and there are no step-ups or other incentives to redeem.
This Bond Contingent Convertible in nature

d.
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Applicable Tax Rate;
Default Protestion
Mechanism (details of
credit enhancement) if any:
Type of collateral securities
being offered, if any:

Status of securities holders
in case of priority of
payment:

Mode of Placement:

Face Value Per Lot

Bonds Per Lot

Minimum Subscription
Reference Rate:

quotation Day

Coupon Margin:
Range of Coupon Rate:

Coupon Payment:

2 4 0tc 20n

aruk Ahammad FCA ATM

Unsecured

UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond is superior to the claims of investors in equity
shares and perpetual non-cumulative preference shares, if any, of the
bank whether currently outstanding or issued at any time in the future
and subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors and
subordinated debt of the Bank other than any subordinated debt
qualifying as Additional Tier lCapital (as defined in the Basel lll
Guidelines) of the Bank. lt is neither secured nor covered by a guarantee
of the issuer nor related entity or other arrangement that legally or
economically enhances the seniority of the claim vis-i-vis bank creditors.
As per the Consent Letter from BSEC

As per the Consent Letter from BSEC

As per the NOC from Bangladesh Bank and Consent Letter from
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
90% of the issue size under Private Placement and 10% of the issue size

under Public Offer
BDT 5,000/ (Five thousand taka only)
l Bond

01 lot for the public issue and 200 lots for private placement

2o-year Treasury-Bond rate.
(Latest available rate of 20-year Treasu ry-Bond rate as published by Debt
Management Department of Bangladesh Bank on the quotation day)

Five (05) days before the first day of any period for which a coupon rate
is to be determined.
2.OO% p.a.

Floot: 6.OO% p.a. - Celling: 10.00% p.a. (subject to having available
distributable profit)
Semi-Annual

Coupon will be paid to the bondholders semi-annually. However, the
first coupon payment period will be from the issue date/subscription
closing date up to the ensuing either 30 June or 31 December of the
respective year whichever is earlier of issue date/subscription closing
date
Thereafter, coupon payment will be made semi-annually on June and
December (i.e. Coupon Period will be from 01 Januarv to 30 June an d

2 { 0tC 2[)23 01 Julv to 31 oecember or up to tssuer catt date, or regu
date. if exercised).
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Mode of option (call or
put| if any:

Period within which
securities to be issued:

Nature of tradability or listing
in stock exchange(s):

Others:
lnvestors:

Call Option;can be exercised only after ten years of issuance, with prior
approval from the Bangladesh Bank.

Put Option: Not Applicable
According to the laws of Bangladesh

This Bond is unsecured in nature. No credit enhancement is applicable.

r .l{
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Business Day Convention/Effect
of Holidays

Late Redemption

Call Option Eligibility

orption Methodology
os

Trigger Point for Loss

Absorption

lssuer shall pay a late payment penalty of 2% llwo percent) higher than the
Coupon Rate and be payable on the amount not paid on the due date till the
date of actual payment u nless the exercise of coupon discretion is not in effect.

. lf any Coupon/ Profit Payment Date falls on a day that is not a Business

Day, the payment shall be made by the Bank on the immediately
succeeding Business Day.

. lf the Call Option Due Date (also being the last Coupon Payment Date,
in case Call Option is exercised) of the Bonds falls on a day that is not
a Business Day, the Call Option Price shall be paid by the Bank on the
immediately preceding Business Day along with profit accrued on the
Bonds until but excluding the date of such payment.

Not Applicable.
Since the instrument is perpetual in nature i.e. there is no maturity date; late
redemption is not applicable unless and until it is eligible for call option criteria.
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Can be exercised only after ten years of issuance, with prior approval from the
Bangladesh Bank

1. Replace this instrument with capital of the same or better quality that
are sustainable for the income capacity of the Bank, or,

2. Capital position is above the minimum requirements after the call
option is exercised

1. Claims ofthe investors on the bond are:
2. Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares and perpetual

non-cumulative preference shares, if any, of the bank whether
currently outstanding or issued at any time in the future.

3. subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors and
subordinated debt of the Bank other than any subordinated debt
qualifying as Additional Tier L Capital (as defined in the Basel lll
Guidelines) of the Bank;

4. ls neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer nor
related entity or other arrangement that legally or economically
enhances the seniority of the claim vis-i-vis bank creditors

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stipulated herein, the claims of the
Bondholders shall be sub.iect to the provisions of Loss Absorption in this terms
and features.
Any losses will be absorbed in the follo*ing ;inner,
Conversion to common shares at pre-specified trigger point as needed to reach
the minimum consolidated CET-1 ratio as per Bangladesh Bank requirement
(Currently of 4.50%).

CET-1 on Trigger Date will be considered to identify the shortfall percentage
and it will be converted into common shares eventually. lf a fractional share
issuance arises upon conversion, the issuer will round the number of shares
issuable, up to the next whole number. Fractional lot size will also be rounded
to the next whole number.
lf the bank's consJtiaJtea cET-1 falls below Bangladesh Bank
requirement (Currently of 4.5O%\ and stays below for 03 (Three)
successive quarters; then, the 3rd quarter-end date of consecutive
below-minimum CET-1 Ratio would be the Trigger-Point (date). Once the

! (v$f fl[[29rt again
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Conversion Strike Price

Payment Suspension
Methodology

Conversion Notice

Events of Default

Common Equity Holders'
Dividend Stopper Clause

Transferabi
ing Law:

articulars of Trustee:
Name of Trustee
Paid Up Capital
Net Worth of the Trustee

24
the lssues where

as Trustee

aruk Ahamm ad,
Deputy Managing D ireclor

lity/tiquidity: Freely transferable by the provisions of the Trust Deed

a

A'

rI
A'

Ear

z
!)
ID

oa

to
U

o
F
c)
E'o

Average market price of the immediate 1.80 days or par value (currently
BDT 10) whichever is higher
ln case of the event of exercise of loss absorption feature of the bond,
any coupon payment in between the trigger date and publication date of
audited financials will be hold. The bondholder will not be eligible for the
coupon payment if the same situation prevails (CET-1 (Conso) remains
below the regulatory requirement of 4.5%) after the publication of
audited financials.
ln time of conversion Trustee must notify the bondholders in accordance with
not less than 2 business days prior to start of each conversion period of the
commencement date and the final date of such conversion period. AII notices
are validly given if:

. Mailed to bondholders at their respective address in the register,

. Published for three consecutive days in one English newspaper and
one Bengali newspaper; each having wide circulation in Bangladesh,

e Emailed to bondholders at their respective addresses set out in the
lssuer Register provided that such notices will only be considered as

validly given unless followed up with hard copies of the notices being
mailed to the bondholders or published for three consecutive days in
a leading newspaper as aforesaid.

Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the seventh day
after being so mailed or on the later of the date of such publications.
Not Applicable.
It is further clarified that cancellation of discretionary payments/coupon
shall not be deemed to be an event of default. The Bondholders shall
have no rights to accelerate the repayment of future scheduled
payments (coupon or principal) except in bankruptcy and liquidation.
Dividend Stopper Clause will be applicable to these Bonds and it will stop
common equity holders' dividend payments on common shares in the event
the holders of the Bonds are not paid coupon. ln the event the holders of the
Bonds are not paid coupon, they shall not impede the full discretion that
lssuer has at all times to cancel distributions/payments on the Bonds, nor will
they impede / hinder:

(i) The Re-Capitalization ofthe Issuer.
(ii) The lssuer's right to make payments on other instruments, where

the payments on this other instrument were not also fully
discretionary

The lssuer's right to making distributions to shareholders for a period
that extends beyond the point in time that coupon on the Bonds are
resumed. The normal operation of the lssuer or any restructuring activity
(including acquisitions/ disposals).

The Bonds are governed by and shall be construed by the existing laws
of Bangladesh. Any dispute arising thereof shall be subject to the
jurisdiction of the courts of Bangladesh

Prime Bank lnvestment Limited (PBIL)

BDT 3,000,000,000 (As on 31 December 2022)
BDf 2,942,798,756 (As on 31 December 2022)

i) North-West Power Generation Company Limit€d,
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iii)
iv)

v)

Midland Bank Limited,
United Payra Power Limited,
City Auto Rice and Dal Mills Limited

Md
ManaSi

of Credit Ratin Com an

Name of the Credit Rating Emerging Credit Rating Limited
Company
Credit rating status of the
issuer

5.P

Long Term: AA

Short Term:ST-2
Outlook: Stable
Valid from: 07 May 2023
Valid to: 06 May 2024

Long Term: A+B

Outlook: Stable
Valid from: 22 June 2023
Valid to: 21 June 2024
o.oo%

i
).

E

ED

)

t
x
P

z

0a

oo

(r)

oo
c

Credit rating status of the
issue

Latest default rate of the
Credit Rating Company
Average time to default of
the rated Category
Rating Trigger
Others

G uidelines on

IFH8E8'$d
ba lance sheet

aruk Ahammad FCA
Manag ing Director & CFO

DMD & Company Secretary

ln case of a downBrade of credit rating under surveillance rating, Risk

Premium to be added as under:
lssue Rating

BB o.25%

B o.50%

C 0.7s%

D 7.OO%

Date of audited accounts,
which is included in the lM

31 December 2022

7. Particulars of Not Applicable
Orisinators tif
AnY):

8. Particulars of Common Legal Counsel : Lex luris
other contractual
parties:

4: USE OF PROCEEDS

Purpo lssuance of UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond

United CommercialBank PLC (UCB) has decided to raise AdditionalTier-1. Capital through the issuance of
UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond in order to strengthen its capital base in accordance with Bangladesh Bank's

Not Applicable

"BBB" in long term and 5T-3 in short time
Risk Premium:

Risk-Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework in

bond issue will allow the bank to "fhTft lhf.o',al 
strensth and co

the frtrre ye3,{ 0[[ 2023

2 4 0Et 20

ATIU uzzaman, FCSDeputy
Unlted

n
Managing Oirector & CEa
United Commercial Eank pLC

Commercial Bank pI i;
United Commercial Bank pLC

Prioe FiMlrce Cap

Draft lnformation Memorandum of
UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of BDT 3,000 Million

Risk Premium to be added
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Plan Regarding Use of Proceeds from UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond

The proposed bond will qualify as part of UCB'S AdditionalTier-1 capital and will help maintain healthy

capital adequacy ratios in the next few years. Besides, the BDT 3,000 million funds will be used for
undertaking general business activities of the bank including strengthening of the loan portfolio and other

securities. The proceeds will primarily be used for:

. Growing the bank's loan portfolio in 5ME, Cards, and Retail segments

. lnvesting in other high-yield instruments

Toble 7: Bosic Feotures of UCB znd Perpetuol Bond

E
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rukAhammad, CA ATM 2zaman, FCSDeputy Managing Director & cFO DMD & ny Se

A ft
Managing Director E CEO
United Commerciat Bank pLC

24 0

M ul Haque
Managing Director

?time Iinance Capital l'lanagcment timittd

9"si

Name of the lnstrument UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond

lssue Type Unsecured, Contingent-Convertible, fully paid up, Non-Cumulative, BASEL lll
compliant, Perpetual Debt instrument for inclusion in Additional Tier I Capital

lssuer United Commercial Bank PLC

Nature of lnstrument Unsecu red

Purpose and Obiectives To raise Additional Tier-1 Capital through issuance of UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond in

order to strengthen its capital base in accordance with Bangladesh Bank's Guidelines
on Risk-Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework in line with
Basel lll).
The funds being raised by the Bank through the mentioned lssue are not meant for
financing any particular project. The Bank shall utilize the proceeds of the lssue for
its regular business activities. The Bank shall not utilize proceeds of the lssue for any
purpose which may be in contravention of the regulations/ guidelines/ norms issued
by the Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh Security Exchange and Commission where
a lica b le

Arranger UCB Investment Limited

e Manager(s) for the public
offer/issue
Underwriter(s) for the public

r/issue

Prime Bank lnvestment Limited
Rating Agency

Lex luris
Mode of lssue

a

2 4'Blr'?fftooo'ooo I24 0t[ 2023

United Commercial Bank pLC
United Commercial Bank ptc

SECTION 5: FEATURES OF UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond

UCB znd Perpetual Bond is a contingent-convertible and unsecured debt instrument. The major features
of the UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond are presented below:

5.7 Bosic Feotures ol the tnstrument

Prime Finance Capital Management Limited & Sonali lnvestment Limited

Prime Finance Capital Management Limited & Sonali lnvestment Limited

}.ustee
Emerging Credit Rating Limited

Legal Advisor
90% ofthe issue size under Private Placement and 10% ofthe issue size under
Public Offer

o
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aruk Ahamm Ad, FCA
Deputy Ma aging Dhector & CFO
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Pany 5ecretary anaging Director & CEO anaglnM g Director

(BDT 2,700,000,000 under private placement and BDT 300,000,000 under public
issue)

540,000 under private placement and 60,000 under public offer

Face Value Per Lot BDr 5,000/ (Five thousand taka only)

Bonds Per Lot 01 Bond

Minimum Subscription 01 lot for public issue and 200 lots for private placement

Tenure Not Applicable. The Bonds shall be perpetual i.e. there is no maturity date and there
are no step-ups or other incentives to redeem.

lnvestors As per the NOC from Bangladesh Bank and Consent Letter from Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission

Coupon Rate Reference Rate + Coupon Margin

Reference Rate 20-year Treasury-Bond rate.
(Latest available rate of 20-year Treasury-Bond rate as published by Debt
Management Department of Eangladesh Bank on the quotation day)

Coupon Margin 2.0O% p.a
quotation Day

Coupon Range Coupon Ceiling: L0% p.a.

Coupon Floor: 6% p.a. (subject to having available distributable profit)
Coupon Discretion The bank will have full discretion at all times to cancel distributions/payments to the

bondholder
Exercise of Coupon Discretion Any coupon payment will be distributed subject to having available distributable

profit of the issuer

Coupon Payment Frequency Semi-Annual
. coupon will be paid to the bondholders semi-annually. However, the first

coupon payment period will be from the issue date/subscription closing
date up to the ensuing either 30 iune or 31 December of the respective year
whichever is earlier of issue date/subscription closing date

. Thereafter, coupon payment will be made semi-annually on June and
December (i.e. Coupon Period will be from 01 Januarv to 30 June and 01Julv

p to lssuer Call date, or regulatory call date, if
exercised)

to 31 December or u

Late Payment lssuer shall pay a late payment penalty of 2% (two percent) higher than the Coupon
Rate and be payable on the amount not paid on the due date till the date of actual
payment unless the exercise of coupon discretion is not in effect.

Business Day Convention/Effect
of Holidays

,o

lf any Coupon/ Profit Payment Date falls on a day that is not a Business Day,

the payment shall be made by the Bank on the immediately succeeding
Business Day.

lf the Call Option Due Date (also being the last Coupon Payment Date, in
case Call Option is exercised) of the Bonds falls on a day that is not a Business
Day, the Call Option Price shall be paid by the Bank on the immediately
preceding Business Day along with profit accrued on the Bonds until but
excluding the date of such payment.

Late Redemption Not Applicable.
Since the instrument is perpetual in nature i.e. there is no maturity date; late

tion is not applicable unless and until it is eligible for call option criteriaredem
Put D-aten r c lnll Not Applicable
Put P licable

United Commercial Bank pLC
r,nired conmercialBank P[C United Commercial Bank PLC?rineFmance 

Capiral Manrgtment Limitcd

\\ ir\

Draft lnformation Memorandum of
UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of BDT 3,000 Million

No. of Bonds to be lssued

Five (05) days before the first day of any period for which a coupon rate ls to be
determined.
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Call Option

Call Option Eligibility L. Replace thls instrument with capital of the same or better quality that are
sustainable for the income capacity of the Bank, or,

2. Capital position is above the minimum
requirements after the call option is exercised

Claim Settlement in the event
of l-iquidation or Wind-up

Claims of the investors on the bond are:
. Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares and perpetual non-

cumulative preference shares, if any, of the bank whether currently
outstanding or issued at any time in the future.

. subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors and
subordinated debt of the Bank other than any subordinated debt
qualifying as AdditionalTier l Capital (as defined in the Basel lll
Guidelines) of the Bank;

. ls neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer nor related
entity or other arrangement that legally or economically enhances the
seniority of the claim vis-A-vis bank creditors

. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stipulated herein, the claims of
the Bondholders shall be subject to the provisions of Loss Absorption in
this terms and features.

Loss Absorption Any losses will be absorbed in the following manner:
Conversion to common shares at pre-specified trigger point as needed to reach the
minimum consolidated CET-1 ratio as per Bangladesh Bank requirement (Currently
of 4.5Ov.).

Loss Absorption Methodology CET-1 on Trigger Date will be considered to identify the shortfall percentage and it
will be converted into common shares eventually. lf a fractional share issuance arises
upon conversion, the issuer will round the number of shares issuable, up to the next
whole number. Fractional lot size will also be rounded to the next whole number.

lf the bank's consolidated CET-1 falls below Bangladesh Bank requirement (Currently
of 4.5O%) and stays below for 03 (Three) successive quarters; then, the 3rd quarter-
end date of consecutive below-minimum CET-1 Ratio would be the Trigger-Point
(date). Once the trigger point has been reached and exercised, the cycle will start
again.

Conversion Strike Price Average market price of the immediate 180 days or par value (currently BDT 10)
whichever is higher.

Payment Suspension
Methodology

ln case of the event of exercise of loss absorption feature of the bond, any coupon
payment in between the trigger date and publication date of audited financials will
be hold. The bondholder will not be eligible for the coupon payment if the same
situation prevails (CET-1 (Conso) remains below the regulatory requirement of 4.5%)
after the publication of audited financials.

Conversion Notice

EUt23 80

-?n

In time of conversion Trustee must notify the bondholders in accordance with not
less than 2 business days prior to start of each conversion period of the
commencement date and the final date of such conversion period. All notices are
validly given if:

. Mailed to bondholders at their respective address in the register,
o Published for three consecutive days in one English newspaper and one

Bengali newspaper; each having wide circulation in Bangladesh,
. Emailed to bondholders at their respective addresses set out ln the lssuer

Register provided that such notices will only be considered as validly gi

th-hard copies o! the notices being mailed to,
ven

ttNlflBtt unless followed up wi

United Commercial Bank pLC

?ioe fimocg Crpilal

Can be exercised only after ten years of issuance, with prior approval from the
Bangladesh Bank

Trigger Point for Loss

Absorption

)'

i
United Commercial Bank PLC

1\



ucBp

z

0!

oo

r
t!

EI

c

t.

(D
rL

5.2 Rate oI Return, Yield to Maturity, Coupon/Discount Rate

Yield to Maturity: Reference Rate + Coupon Margin, Coupon Range: 6.00% p.a. to 10.00% p.a

5. i Tr a nsle ro bi I ity/ Li q ui di ty
Freely transferable in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed

5.4 Prcpoyment, Call, Refunding, Conversion Feature

The Bond is contingent-convertible, non-puttable, callable in Nature.
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e Trustee shall enforce all payment obligations under the Bonds only by way of petitioning for t

it Enhdncement:

ot applicable for the perpetual bond of United Commercial Bank PLC

5. ment ol Chorges over securities
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winding up or d issolution of the lssuer and/or by proving for the a mount d ue a nd payable under the Bonds
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or.o
th3

ttt tCtt" of any covenan

uments (save 
foq

t, co ldition or provision

ffifitBtB pay any amou

contained irlthe Bond or the Trust

"t ttdfrtil[f."upon or expensellssue D

aru
FCA
& cFo ATIII Ta zzaman, FCS Arif

I)MD & Company Secretary
rlnited Commercial Bank pLC

anaging Director & CEO
M zaul Haque
Managing Director 25

Draft lnformation Memorandum of
UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of BDT 3,000 Million

bondholders or published for three consecutive days in a leading newspaper
as aforesaid.

Any such notice shall be deemed to have been Biven on the seventh day after being
so mailed or on the later of the date of such publications.

Events of Default Not Applicable.
It is further clarifled that cancellation of discretionary payments/coupon shall not be
deemed to be an event of default. The Bondholders shall have no rights to accelerate
the repayment of future scheduled payments (coupon or principal) except in
bankruptcy and liquidation.

Common Equity Holders'
Dividend Stopper Clause

Dividend Stopper Clause will be applicable to these Bonds and it will stop common
equity holders' dividend payments on common shares in the event the holders of
the Bonds are not paid coupon. ln the event the holders of the Bonds are not paid
coupon, they shall not impede the full discretion that lssuer has at all times to
cancel distributions/payments on the Bonds, nor will they impede / hinder:

(iii) The Re-Capitalization ofthe lssuer.
(iv) The lssuer's right to make payments on other instruments, where the

payments on this other instrument were not also fully discretionary
(i) The lssuer's right to making distributions to shareholders for a period

that extends beyond the point in time that coupon on the Bonds are
resumed. The normal operation of the lssuer or any restructuring
activity (including acquisitions/ disposals).

Transferability/Liquidity

Governing Law
The Bonds are governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the existing
laws of Bangladesh. Any dispute arising thereof shall be subject to the jurisdiction of
courts of Bangladesh.

!fhrmflreommercialBan
K PLC

United Commercial Bank pLC
Pdm Fiom(e Crpid Marrgcoclt Linilrd

Freely transferable in accordance with the provisions of the Deed of Trust.

5.5 Tax Feotures

The Company and any income from the Bond for the investors will be according to the Laws of Bangladesh.

Deputy
United
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any other payment obligation), (i) the Trustee or any Bondholder shall not be entitled to any remedy
available to the Trustee or any Bondholder which in substance amounts to a remedy to recover any
amounts under a ny payment obligation of the lssuer under the Bonds and (ii) any other remedy availa ble.

5.8 Repoyment Schedule:

As per BASEL lll guideline (Annex lV: Special Eligibility Criteria to qualify for additional Tier 1 Capital, a)

this instrument is perpetual in nature i.e. there is no maturity date and there are no set-ups or other
incentives to redeem unless and until it is eligible for call option criteria depicted in features section.

UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond is superior to the claims of investors in equity shares and perpetual non-
cumulative preference shares, if any, of the bank whether currently outstanding or issued at any time in
the future and subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors and subordinated debt of the
Bank other than any subordinated debt qualifying as Additional Tier I Capital (as defined in the Basel lll
Guidelines) ofthe Bank. lt is neither secured nor covered by a guarantee ofthe issuer nor related entity or
other arrangement that lega lly or economica lly enha nces the seniority of the claim vis-i-vis bank creditors.

SECTION 7: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER

Rights and Obligations of the lssuer have been incorporated from the Trust Deed executed between the lssuer
(United commercial Bank PLC) and the Trustee (Prime Bank lnvestment Limited)

Covenant to Repay

The lssuer covenants with the Trustee that it will, as and when the Bonds or any of the coupon payment
under the Bonds become due for payment or any of them becomes due to be repaid in accordance with
the Conditions, unconditionally pay or procure to be paid to or to the order of the Trustee in Bangladesh

Taka in Dhaka in immediately available freely transferable funds, the coupon payments or any of them
becoming due for payment, redemption or repayment on that date and shall (subject to the provisions of
the Conditions) until all such payments (both before and after judgment or other order) are duly made
unconditionally pay or procure to be paid to or to the order of the Trustee as aforesaid on the dates
provided for in Trust Deed or any of them outstanding from time to time as set out in the Conditions
provided that:

every payment of coupon in respect of the Bonds or any of them made to the Bondholder shall
satisfy, to the extent of such paymenu

if any payment coupon in respect of the Bonds or any of them is made after the due date, payment
deemed not to have been made until either the full amount is paid to the Bondholders

rlier, the seventh day after notice has been given to the Bondholders in accordance with
he Conditions that the full amount has been received by the Trustee; and

in case of the lssuer exercising the call option, where payment of the whole or any part of th\t"t

or" or, if ea
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principal amount due in respect of any Bond is improperly withheld or refused penalty sha'fl
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SECTION 6: DESCRIPTION OF COLLATERAL SECURITY AND TYPE OF CHARGES TO BE CREATED
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. The Trustee will hold the benefit of this covenant and the covenants in Clause 11.2 (Covenant to
comply with Trust Deed and Conditions, Schedules, and applicable law) and Clause 11.3
(Covenants by the lssuer) on trust for the Bondholders.

. Covenant to comply with Trust Deed, Conditions, Schedules and applicable law
o The lssuer hereby covenants with the Trustee to comply with, perform and observe all those

provisions of this Trust Deed, the Conditions (including, without limitation, Condition 5

(Covenants)) and the other Schedules which are expressed to be binding on it and to perform and

observe the same. The Bonds are subject to the provisions contained in this Trust Deed, all of
which shall be binding upon the lssuer and the Bondholders and all persons claiming through or
under them respectively- The Bondholders and all persons claiming under or through them
respectively will also be entitled to the benefit of, and will be bound by, this Trust Deed and the
other Bond Documents and will be deemed to have notice of all of the provisions of the Bond

Documents applicable to them.
. The lssuer hereby covenants with the Trustee to comply with, perform and observe all those

provisions of the applicable law including but is not limited to Bangladesh Securities and Excha nge

Commission (Debt Securities) Rules 2021. The lssuer agrees that Bondholders and all persons

claiming under or through them respectively will also be entitled to the benefit ol and will be

bound by, the applicable law and will be deemed to have notice of all of the provisions of the
applicable law applicable to them.

. The Trustee shall itself be entitled to enforce the obligations of the lssuer under the Bonds and

the Conditions and the a pplica ble law as if the same were set out and contained in this Trust Deed

which shall be read and construed as one document with the Bonds.

Books of account
At all times keep and procure that all its Subsidiaries keep such books of account as may be necessary to
comply with all applicable laws and so as to enable the financial statements of the lssuer to be prepared

and allow, subject to confidentiality obligations under applicable law, the Trustee and any person

appointed by it free access to the same at all reasonable times and to discuss the same with responsible
officers of the lssuer;

Corporate Governance

mply (and shall ensure that each member of the Group will) in all material respects with the corporate
guidelines set out by the Bangladesh Bank and the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Co mmr

lnformation
q So far as permitted by applicable law, at all times give to the Trustee such information, opinio$,

rukAhamma d A
Dsputy Managing Director & CFO

ny Secretary anaging Director & CEO
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Covenants by the lssuer

The lssuer hereby covenants with the Trustee that, so long as a ny of the Bonds remain outstanding, it will:
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Execution of further Documents
So far as permitted by applicable law, at all times execute all such further documents and do all such

further acts and things as may be necessary at any time or times in the opinion of the Trustee to give

effect to the provisions of this Trust Deed;

Notices to Bondholders
Send or procure to be sent to the Trustee not less than 5 (five) business days prior to the date of
publication, one copy of each notice to be given to the Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions
and, upon publication, send to the Trustee two copies of such notice;

Notification of non-payment
Notify the Trustee forthwith in the event that it does not, on or before the due date for payment in respect

of the Bonds or any of them, pay unconditionally the full amount in the relevant currency of the moneys
payable on such due date on all such Bonds;

Notification of late payment
ln the event of the unconditional payment to the Trustee of any sum due in respect of the Bonds or any
of them being made after the due date for payment thereof, forthwith give notice to the Bondholders
that such payment has been made;

Notification of Call Exercise Date

Not less than 30 (thirty) days prior to the Call Exercise Date in respect of any Bond, give to the Trustee
notice in writing of the amount of such redemption or purchase pursuant to the Conditions and duly
proceed to redeem or purchase such Bonds accordingly;

Authorized Signatories
Upon the execution hereof and thereafter forthwith upon any change of the same, deliver to the Trustee
a list of the Authorized Signatories of the lssuer, together with certified specimen signatures of the same;

and

Payments

Pay moneys payable by it to the Trustee hereunder without set off, counterclaim, deduction or
withholding, unless otherwise compelled by laws of the land.

RIGHTS AND OBTIGATION OF THE TRUSTEE

o
Un

Trustee's Rights
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Securities and Exchange Commission (Private Placement of Debt Securities) Rules 2021 together with all

its amendment, modification or ratification thereof.

Advi€e: The Trustee may in relation to this Trust Deed act on the opinion or advice of or a certificate or
any information obtained from any lawyer, banker, valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer, accountant or
other expert (whether obtained by the Trustee, the lssuer, or any Subsidiary) and which advice or opinion
may be provided on such terms (including as to limitations on liability) as the Trustee may consider in its
sole discretion to be consistent with prevalling market practice with regard to advice or opinions of that
nature and shall not be responsible for any Liability occasioned by so acting; any such opinion, advice,

certificate or information may be sent or obtained by letter, telegram, telex, cablegram or facsimile

transmission. However, the trustee should also perform the standard due diligence process in case of
receipt of any advice, whatever means the communication form either print or electronic, in relation to
the issuance of the bond;

Resolution or direction of Bondholders: The Trustee shall not be responsible for acting upon any

resolution purporting to be a Written Resolution or to have been passed at any meeting of the
Bondholders in respect whereof minutes have been made and signed or a direction of a specified
percentage of Bondholders, even though it may subsequently be found that there was some defect in the
constitution of the meeting or the passing of the resolution or the ma king of the directions or that for any

reason the resolution purporting to be a Written Resolution or to have been passed at any Meeting or the
making of the directions was not valid or binding upon the Bondholders;

Trustee not responsible for investigations: Save as otherwise provided by applicable law, the Trustee

shall not be responsible for, or for investigating any matter which is the subject of, any recital, statement,
representation, warranty or covenant of any person contained in this Trust Deed, the Bonds, or any other
agreement or document relating to the transactions herein or therein contemplated or for the execution,
legality, effectiveness, adequacy, genuineness, validity, enforceability or admissibility in evidence thereof;

Entry on the Resister: The Trustee shall not be liable to the lssuer or any Bondholder by reason of having

accepted as valid or not having rejected any entry on the Register later fou nd to be forged or not a uthentic
for all purposes in relation hereto that any entry on the Register is correct;

t to Dedu€t or withhold: Notwithstandin g anwhing contained in this Trust Deed, to the extent

fro stribution or payment made by it hereunder or if the Trustee is or will be otherwise charged
to,

principal, agent or otherwise, and whether by reason of any assessment, prospective assessment or o
imposition of liability to taxation of whatsoever nature and whenever made upon the Trustee,

whether in connection with or arising from any sums received or distributed by it or to which it ma
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by any applicable law, if the Trustee is or will be required to make any deduction or withholding

may become liable to, tax as a consequence of performing its duties hereunder whether as



'E
t!

E
(D

D

I
)
t,
7

,

w

c1

5t:0i

tr
l:
o

e,
:r.

a-

ucBp

;I[}HH? fii,'ffii#; and 
1t $tt 1t11

a rising therefrom or any action of the Trustee in connection with the trusts of this Trust Deed (other than
the remuneration herein specified) or otherwise, then the Trustee shall act to make such deduction or
withholding as per the prevailing laws of the land.

Liabilitv: Under no circumstance will the Trustee be liable for any special, indirect, punitive or
consequential loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including but not limited to loss of business,

goodwill, opportunity or profit), whether or not foreseea ble, even if the Trustee has been advised of such

loss or damage and regardless of whether the claim for loss or damage is made in negligence, for breach

of contract or otherwise. This Cla use 6.1.8 shall survive the termination or expiry of this Trust Deed or the
removal or termination of the Trustee.

Force Maieure: The Trustee shall not be liable for any failure or delay in the performance of its obligations

under this Trust Deed or any other Bond Document because of circumstances beyond such Trustee's

control, includ ing, without limitation, acts of God, flood, war (whether declared or undeclared), terrorism,
fire, riot, embargo, labour disputes, any laws, ordinances, regulations or the like of which restrict or
prohibit the performance of the obligations contemplated by this Trust Deed or any other Bond

Document, inability to obtain or the failure of eq uipment, or interruption of communications or computer
facilities, and other causes beyond such Trustee's control whether or not of the same class or kind as

specifically named above.

been attended to in person by a trustee not being a banker, lawyer, broker or other
ssional person). ln this connection prior approval from the lssuer should be obtained by the Trustee
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lmmunities: The Trustee's immunities and protections from liability and its right to indemnification in
connection with the performa nce of its d uties under this Trust Deed sha ll extend to the Trustee's officers,
direclors and employees. Such immunities and protections and right to indem nification, together with
the Trustee's right to compensation, shall survive the Trustee's resignation or removal, the defeasance or
discharge of this Trust Deed a nd final payment of the Bonds.

Professional charpes: Any trustee being a banker, lawyer, broker or other person engaged in any
profession or business shall be entitled to charge and be paid all usual professionaland other charges for
business transacted and acts done by him or his partner or firm on matters arising in connection with the
trusts of this Trust Deed and also his properly incurred charges in addition to disbursements for all other
work and business done and all time spent by him or his partner or firm on matters arising in connection
with this Trust Deed, in each case as agreed pursuant to the Fee Letter (including matters which might or
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Trustee Liabiliw: The Trustee shall not be liable to any person for any matter or thing done or omitted in
any way in connection with or in relation to this Trust Deed or the Bonds save in relation to its own gross

negligence, wilful default or fraud.

Right to Sue: The Trustee may sue and may be sued on behalf of the Bondholders.

Applicable Law: Notwithstanding anything contained in this Trust Deed the Trustee shall have all such

responsibility as set out in the applicable law including but is not limited to Bangladesh Securities and

Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules 2021 and any subsequent amendments, modifications or
ratifications thereof.

Act for Bondholders: Subject to applicable law and terms and conditions of this Trust Deed Trustee shall

act on behalf and for the exclusive interest ofthe Bondholders;

Monitorins: Trustee shall ensure that lssuer is observin g the applicable law for the Bonds and the terms
a nd conditions of the Bond Documents. As soon as the Trustee is awa re of any breach by the lssuer it sha ll

immediately inform the Bondholders and the lssuer of such breach;

Report to BSEC: Trustee shall submit an annual com pliance report to the BSEC on the activities of the
lssuer including repayment of dues to the Bondholders. When Trustee shall submit such report to the

BSEC lt shall provide copy to the lssuer and the Bondholders. However, in case of any non-compliance of
the lssuer, the trustee shall first provide a copy of the report to the lssuer with details of such non-

compliance and then submit to the BSEC;

Notification of call or repavment: lmmediately upon receipt of notice from the lssuer regarding a Call

Exercise Date in respect ofany Bond, give to the respective Bondholders notice in writing ofthe amount

of such redemption or purchase by the lssuer pursuant to the Conditions;

Grievances of the Bondholders: U pon receipt of a complaint from the Bondholders, Trustee shall take
necessary steps for redress of grievances of the Bondholders within one month of the date of receipt of
the complaints and he shall keep the BSEC and the lssuer informed about the number, nature and other

fthe complaints received and the manner in which such complaints have been redressed;
r'

\br"..n %| 
ermination The Trustee may determine whether or not a default in the performance or

ce ty the lssuer of any obligation under the provisions of this Trust Deed or contained in the
and if the Trustee shall certify that any such default is, in its opinion,
ficate shall be conclusive and binding upon the lssuer and the Bondhold
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such determination, whether made upon a question actually raised or implied in the acts or proceedings

of the Trustee, shall be conclusive and shall bind the Trustee and the Bondholders;

Trustee's discretion: the Trustee shall (save as expressly otherwise provided herein) as regards all the
trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in it by this Trust Deed or by operation of law, have

absolute and uncontrolled discretion as to the exercise or non exercise thereof but whenever the Trustee

is under the provisions of this Trust Deed bound to act at the request or direction of the Bondholders, the
Trustee shall nevertheless not be so bound unless first indemnlfied and/or provided with security to its
satisfaction against all actions, proceedings, claims and demands to which it may render itself liable and

all costs, charges, damages, expenses and liabilities which it may incur by so doing;

Trustee's consent: any consent given by the Trustee for the purposes of this Trust Deed may be given on

such terms and subject to such conditions (if any) as the Trustee may require;

Application of proceeds: the Trustee shall not be responsible for the receipt or application by the lssuer

of the proceeds of the issue of the Bonds;

Error of judgment: the Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by any

officer or employee of the Trustee assigned by the Trustee to administer its corporate trust matters;

Asents: Subject to the provisions of the Trust Act 1882 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Com mission (Debt Securities) Rules 2021., the Trustee may, in the conduct of the trusts of this Trust Deed

instead of acting personally, employ and pay an agent on any terms, whether or not a lawyer or other
professional person, to transact or conduct, or concur in transacting or conducting, any business and to
do or concur in doing all acts required to be done by the Trustee (including the receipt and payment of
money) with the consent of lssuer and provided the Trustee shall have exercised reasonable care in the
selection of any such agent. the Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss, liability, expense, demand,

cost, claim or proceedings incurred by reason of the misconduct, omission or default on the part of any
person appointed by it hereunder or be bound to supervise the proceedings or acts of any such person;

Confidential information: the Trustee shall not (unless required by law or ordered so to do by a court of
competent jurisdiction) be required to disclose to any Bondholder confidential information or other
information made available to the Trustee by the lssuer in connection with this Trust Deed and no

Bondholder shall be entitled to take any action to obtain from the Trustee any such information.

ation of Cou n Rate: the Trustee shall determine Applicable Coupon Rate in accordance with
ion of the Bond.

ercise of Discretion

Notwithstanding anything in this Trust Deed to the contrary, the Trustee shall not be obliged to exe

or consider exercising any discretion or consider making or make any determination (including, wit
limitat determination as to any fact or circumstance or activity or thing is materi
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action whatsoever in connection with or under or pursuant to the Bonds unless directed to do so by the
holders of not less than 662/3percent in principal amount of the Bonds then outsta nding or if so directed
by an Extraordinary Resolution of Bondholders.

The Trustee will not be responsible for any loss, expense, damage, claim, cost, charge or liability which

may be suffered as a result of a ny exercise or non-exercise of a discretion or the ma king or failure to make

any determination or the taking or failure to take any action by the Trustee, acting on the directions of
the Bondholders as aforesaid or pending the provision of such a direction.

Rights and Obligations of the lssuer have been incorporated from the Trust Deed executed between the lssuer
(United Commercial Bank PLC) and the Trustee (Prime Bank Investment Limited)

Each investor (Bondholder) shall enter into a separate Subscription Agreement with the lssuer and shall
be bound by the terms and conditions contained in such Subscription Agreement containing in details the
rights a nd obligations of the investors, a nd which shall be a n integral pa rt of this Trust Deed.

The rights of the Bondholder are several and any debt or other obligation arising under the Subscription
Agreement at any time from the lssuer to any other Bondholde(s) shall be a separate and independent
debt- Each Bondholder will be entitled to protect and enforce its individual rights independently of any
other Bondholder and it shall not be necessary for any other Bondholde(s) to be joined as an additional
party in proceedings for such purpose.

Each Bondholder has the right to demand information from the lssuer as set out in this Trust Deed and
the Condition attached in Schedule 1 (Terms and Conditions of the Bonds).

Each Bondholder has the right to receive coupon on the Bond on the Coupon Payment Date as set out in
the Condition attached in Schedule 1 (Terms and Conditions of the Bonds).

a
h Bond ho lder has the right to attend meeting of the Bondholders and vote therein in accordance with

(MeetinSs of Bondholders, Modification, Waiver and Substitution).

iuer shall fully indemnify the Bondholder(s) from and against any expense, loss, damage or liability
which any of them may incur as per provisions of this Trust Deed in connection with the enforcement,
protection or preservation of any right or claim of the Bondholders under the Transaction Documents.

.)
rao SECTION 10: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATION OF THE ISSUE MANAGERIS}

Rights and Obligations of the lssue Manager have been incorporated from the lssue Management
Agreement executed between the lssuer (United Commercial Bank ptC) and the lssue Managers.S$
(Prime Finance Capital Management Limited and Sonali tnvestment timited). 

S,a.
The ISSUE MA UER th

24 0t
6rn(s) warrat!afff,QSflsents to tss

,1

-t!,
6

r
o.

6
?

B

oc(,

?A [tt'turr
t [ $Et,1$1X

\.

aruk Ahamma
Deputy Manag ing Director

4Tlll
DMD

zzaman, FCS Arif aa)
Md. RGzlul Haque
Managing Direcror

Prioetua0crCeprralMuNg.or0tImJtE3

FCA
& cFo
K PLC

& pany Secrctary
anaging Director & CEO

United Commercial Ban ,lnited Cornmercial Bank p
United Commercial Bank pLC

SECTION 9: RIGHTS AND OBtIGATION OF THE ELIGIBLE INVESTORS (BONDHOLDERS)



ucB!
Draft lnformation Memorandum of

UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of BDT 3,000 Million

The ISSUE MANAGER(S) will provide all the Services in accordance with the requirement of the law,
especially in strict compliance to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange laws, regulations, notifications,
and directions issued from time to time prior to and on the date ofthe PUBLIC OFFER, the Companies Act,
the Listing Rules, etc.

The ISSUE MANAGER(S) shall issue a Due Diligence Certificate in favor of ISSUER to execute PUBLTC OFFE R

in compliance with the "Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021"
only upon the ISSUE MANAGER's satisfaction on independent verification of different papers, reports,
documents and other material facts and disclosures to evaluate authenticity and integrity ofthe Company
through several discussions with the officials and Directors of ISSUER.

The ISSUE MANAGER(S) shall keep a record for the next 5 (five) years after PUBLIC OFFER approval for any
inspection or queries by the Commission as per the guidellne of "Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021".

The ISSUE MANAGER(S) shall have the power to engage/appoint any co-lssue Manager without any
additional cost burden and with the written consent of ISSUER.

The ISSUE MANAGER(S) shall ensure its competence for approval but extent any guarantee from the
regulator which is beyond its control.

SECTION 11: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATION OF THE UNDERWRITER{SI

Rights and Obligations of the Underwriter have been incorporated from the lssue Management
Agreement executed between the lssuer (United Commercial Bank PLC) and the Underwriters (Prime

pital Management Limited and Sonali lnvestment Limited).
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percent (20%) of the public issue of a ny securities made under these rules have to be underwritten
rm commitment basis by the underwriter(s) i.e. BDT 60,000,000 in total shall have to be

underwritten on a firm commitment basis by the underwriters; where Prime Finance capital Management
p)

iJ

u

aru

F
o
E'o

E
l!
F

a.

Depury

United

g

The ISSUE MANAGER(S) is a valid and legally constituted company and has obtained all necessary and
requisite licenses, approvals, and permits (as the case may be) from the Bangladesh Securities and

Exchange Commission (BSEC) and any other authorities/agencies concerned to carry on the business as

Manager to lssue with regard to the lssue Management.

The ISSUE MANAGER(S) will take all possible precautions, care and exert the best of its expertise, skills,

and services for the PUBLIC OFFER.

Limited will underwrite 6,000 numbers of Bonds aggregating an amount of BDT
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a. The underwriter(s) may also use best efforts for selling securities to any institutional investor or
eligible investor;

b. The unsubscribed portion of securities up to the commitment shall be subscribed by the

underwriter(s) itself or selling of any portion of unsubscribed securities to any institutional investor

or eligible investor under best efforts to fulfil the commitment;
c. The IPO shall stand cancelled in case of under-subscription above fifty percent (50%).

With a firm commitment of the economic and social development of Bangladesh, United Commercial

Bank (UCB) started its iourney in mid-1983 and has since been able to establish itself as one of the
largest first generation banks in the country. With a vast network of branches, ATM5, Agent Kiosks,

the Bank has already made a distinct mark in the realm of Private Sector Banking through personalized

service, innovative practices, dynamic approach and efficient Management.

The Bank has expanded its arena in different and diverse segments of banking like Retail Banking,

5ME Banking, Corporate Banking, Off-shore Banking, and Remittance etc. Besides various deposit and

loan products of Retail Banking, the Bank caters export and import loan to deserving candidates which
in turn helps the overall economy of the country through increased earning of foreign exchange.

Other consumer products like UCB Cards have been showing tremendous success and growth since

its inception in 2006 and soon became the leader in local market with around 40000 card holders.

The Bank also provides its clients with both incoming and outgoing remittance services. Thus the
expatriates find an easy way to send money through proper channel.

With a firm commitment to promote SME sector, the Bank is also assessing and monitoring business

loans, managing business financing risks, pricing products and working for further development of
5ME. lts Corporate banking service consists of simple business of issuing loans to more complex

matters, such as helping minimize taxes paid by overseas subsidiaries, managing changes in foreign
exchange rates or working out the details of financing packages necessary for the construction of a
new office, plant or other facility. lts area of expertise is in-depth knowledge in financial analysis with

EAalytical capability of financing large project including RMG and infrastructure development

Thddank, aiming to play a leading role in the economic activities of the country, is firmly engaged in

development of trade, commerce and industry by investing in network expansion and newe
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SECTION 12: DESCRIPTION OF UNITED COMMERCIAT BANK PLC (THE ISSUER)

technology adoption to have competitive advantage.
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Authorized Capital: BDT 15,000 Million (as of 31 December 2022)

Paid-up Capital: BDf M,062.37 Million (as of 31 December 2022)

(a) Capital Structure
Toble 2: Sources of lssuer's Copitol Structure

Table 3: Description of lssuer's Totol Copitol
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Particulars

Liabilities: (amount in BDT million)
% of Total

Assets

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and
agents

16.90

Deposits and other accounts 424,683.42 67.06

Current accounts & other accounts 92,967.s2
Bills Payable 7,016.02

85,798.09 13.55

Fixed Deposits 202,07s.93
Bearer Certificates of Deposits 0.00

36,825.86 5.81

61,40s.65 9.10

Total Liabilities 593,128.81 93.66

Capital / Shareholders' Equity

Paid up Capital 1-4,062.37 2.22

Share Premium L,454.98 0.23

Statutory Reserve 15,764.31
General Reserve 26.s8 0.00

2,797.07
Retained Earnings 6,072.82
Total shareholders' Equity 40,L78.t7 6.34

Non controlling interest 0.00017
Total Shareholders' Equitywith non-controlling interest 40,778.t!
Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 633,306.92 100.00

United Commercial Bank PLC

(amount in BDT million)

farticulars 31 Dec.2022 31 Dec. 2021
fapital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR)
76.qommon Equity Tier-1 capital (CET1):

crrJaid-up 
capital 74,062.31 t?,783.97

-drare Premium 7,454.98 1,454.98
Statutory Reserve 15,730.18 74,546.97
General Reserve 26.58 26.58

4 I)ECnHS&,qa ra.nings ?, nEr ?n?1 rl 0E[ 202].sss.as 5,997.66

United Commeiciat BinK PLC
DMD

,inired
& Company Secretary
commercial Bank pLC

United Commerciat Bank PLC

,)

Minimum Capital Requirement Capital adequacy Ratio:

2

As of 31 December 2022

707 ,O39.7 4

14.68

1.11

Savings Bank Deposits

31.91

0.00

Other Deposits

Other Liabilities

Other Reserve 0.44

0.96

0.000000027

6.34
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Table 4: Shoreholding Structure of the lssuer
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Less: Regulatory Adiustments:
Goodwill and all other lntangible Assets 634.68
Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) 5,796.67 4,O77.42

Reciprocal crossholdings and excess investment above
limit

0.00 87.77

Others 0.00 0.00

5,831.3s 4,4J.5.63
Total Common Equity Tier-1 Capital 32,328.23 30,364.53
Additional Tier-1 Capital (AT-1) 4,000.00 4,000.00
Total Tier-1 Capital 36324.23 34,364.53

Tier{l Capital:

7,945.58 8,869.28
Revaluation Reserve 0.00 0.00
Subordinated Bond 8,480.00 9,980.00

16,425.58 L8,849.28
Less: Regulatory Adiustments:

Revaluation Reserve 0.00 0.00
Reciprocal crossholdings in the T-2 Capital of BNBFIs &
lnsurance Entities

80.00

Any investment exceeding the approved limit under
section 26(2) of Bank Company Act, 1991 (50% of
Investment)

0.00 0.00

Others 0.00 312.86
Total Admissible Tier-2 Capital 15,345.58 L4396,42

Total Regulatory Capital 52,673,82 52,760.95

Risk Weighted Assets 403,261.2r 386,743.80
Minimum Capital Requirement with Capital
Conservation Buffer (12.5% of Risk Weighted Assets) 50,407.65

48,342.97

Capital Surplus/(Shortfall) 2,266.L7 4,417,97

Composition of Capital December,2022 December,2021

Common Equity Tier -l a.o2%

Tierl Capital 9.OL%

Tier-ll Capital 4.05% 4.76%

Tier-l Capital with Buffer 4.02% 8.89%

RAR 13.06% L3.64%

Shareholdine oosition: December 2022 December 2021

? { 0[[ 2010\rars 2{$E[!r23
No. of

- ilghtres
Amount in BDT

million

United Commercial Bank pLC
,inited Comme

United Commercial gank PLC

340.44

General Provision

80.00

7.85%

8.89%

Amount in BDT

million
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Sponsors/Directors 4a7,236,904 4,872.37

(b) Business
The Bank & its activities

status of the Bank

United Commercial Bank PLC (hereinafter called the'Bank'or'UCBL') was incorporated in Bangladesh as

a public limited company with limited liability on 26 June 1983 under the Companies Act, 1913 to carry
on banking business in Bangladesh. The Bank obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 13 November
1983 to commence its business. Currently, it has 217 (2021,:215) branches, 652 (2021l 628) ATMs and

19O 12021,:172) agent banking outlets as at 30 June 2022. Out of the above 217 Branches, 10 Branches

provide both lslamic Banking and Commercial Banking facilities complying with the rules of lslamic

Sharia'h and a new branch provided solely lslamic Banking facilities complying with the rules of lslamic

Sharia'h. The Bank is listed with both Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange

(CSE) Limited as a publicly traded Company.

Principal Activities and nature of operations of the Bank

Off-shore Banking Unit

Off-shore Banking Unit (the "Unit"), a separate business unit of United Commercial Bank PLC, governed

under the Rules and Guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The Bank obtained the Off-shore Banking Unit
permission vide, letter no. BRPD (P-3) 744 (1,17)/2010-2577 dated gth June 2010. The Bank commenced
the operation of its Off-shore Banking Unit from November 10, 2010. At present there is one unit of off-

ank ing operating in Dhaka under the Rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The principal
the unit are to provide all kinds of commercial Banking services to its customers in foreign

Financial Statements of Off-shore Banking also presented separately.

mrc ng

The Bank obtained permission for lslamic Banking Branch from Bangladesh Bank vide, letter no. BRPD (P-

31745 (77\/2020-1453 dated 06 February 2020. Through the lslamic Banking wing and branch, the Bank

extends all types of Islamic Shariah compliant finance like hire purchase shirkatul melk (HPsM), bai-

Murabaha, Mushraka, salam and agency, ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek (Hire Purchase) etc. and di-fferent

fW bf.0eposits like a l-wadeea h,

?r {\(tr4fFl. 
etc. Financial statements of lslamic Banking also prese

separate
4nr1

2 rr 0El ,n? +

c ncre s

1

1

aruk Ahammad, CA ATM duzzaman, FCS Arif eDepury Menaging Director & cFO DMDAC 0m ny SecretaryM ging Direclor & CEO
Md Haque
Managing Drrector

2,734.42lnstitution( Financial & Others) 311,594,040 3,115.94 273,84r,715

596,000,011 s,960.00 557,243,772General Public

11,405,688 10,368,808 103.69Govt. of Peoples Republic of BD

7,278,395,949Total 1,406,236,643 14,062.37

United Con mercial Bank pLC
.lnlred Com mercial Bank PIC Uni ted Commercial Bank pLC

PriDr FturctClpx Matasel]]i ll I Limitrd

b c

5,512.44

114.06

72,743.97

'a

442,942,654

The primary objective of the bank is to conduct all kinds of banking businesses in Bangladesh. The Bank

offers services for all commercial banking and lslamic banking needs of the customers, which includes

deposit/ banking, loans & advances, export import financing, inland and international remittance facility
etc.
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Agent Banking

The Bank obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 07 February 2017 through letter no. BRPD (p-

3)7 4517712017 -677 to start the operation of Agent Banking and subsequently started its commercial

operation on February 1, 2018. There are 190 agent banking outlets launched around the country till 30

June 2022. The principal activities of the unit are to provide services that includes - Account Opening

(Savings), Cash deposit & withdrawal (Agent Banking A/C), Cash Deposit in Branch A/C, lnward foreign

remittance disbursement, Collections of bills/utility bills, Payment of social benefits, Transfer of funds,

Payment of salaries, Generation and issuance of Bank statements, 5ME Loan repayment collection,
Balance inquiry, lnternet Banking & SMS Banking, Corporate Bill/Distributor fee collection, lnsurance

Premium Collection etc.

Subsidiary Company

A subsidiary is an entity in which the bank has control as per shareholding and voting rights are concerned.

Control exists when the bank has substantial shareholding (more than 50 percent) in the company, or the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise as on the date

of the reporting. Separate (solo) Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements are

prepared for subsidiary investment as per lnternational Accounting Standard (lAS) - 27; 'Separate

Financial Statements' and IFRS-10; 'Consolidated Financial Statements'. lnterest of the minority is shown

as the minority interest which includes share capital of the minority portion as well as profit earned that
goes to the non-controlling interest. However, intergroup transactions, balances and the resulting
unrealized profits/(loss) are eliminated on consolidation.

UCB Stock Brokerage Limited

UCB Stock Brokerage Limited is a subsidiary company of United Commercial Bank PLC. The activities of
the company include brokerage service, margin loan, etc. The company is carrying out its activities under
the license from both Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited.

UCBL holds 24,999,999 nos. of shares of UCB Stock Brokerage Limited with face value of Tk. 100 each

which is equivalent to 99.999996% of the total shares of the company.

nvestment Iimited

nvestment Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh as a private limited company with limited liability
/gs on 03 August of 201.1 under Companies Act 1994 also, the Company has obtained Merchant Banking

l(frnse from the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission on 05 October 2020. The principal
ofqrtiu" of the company is to carry out full-fledged merchant banking activities in Bangladesh i.e.

poi&lio management, share transfer agency, fund management to lssue in the capital and security
market, underwriting, management and distribution of the issue of stock shares, bonds and other
securities.
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UCB Asset Management Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Bangladesh as a Private Limited
Company with limited liability as on the 5th Day of February of 2019, u nder the Companies Act 1994 and
registered with RJSC & F. The authorized capital of the company is BDT 100 Crore divided into 10 (Crore)
Ordinary Shares of BDT 10 each. The registered office of the company located at Plot #CWS(A)-1, Road

#34, Gulsha n Avenue, Dhaka-1212.

The company was formed aiming to manage portfolio and fund of both individuals and institutions,
underwrite the securities, invest pooled funds from clients into a variety of securities and assets, handle
high-net-worth individual accounts, and attract large investment from companies sponsoring mutual
funds. UCB holds 99,999,999 nos. of shares of UCB Asset Management Limited with face value of BDT 10
each which is equivalent to 99-9999990% of total shares of the Company.

UCB Fintech Company Limited

UCB Fintech Company Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh on 30 July 2020 as a private company
limited by shares under the Companies Act, 1994.

Products and services of UCB Fintech Company Limited include mobile transactions (cash-in, cash-out, send

money etc.), utility bill payment, in-store and e-commerce payment, inward remlttance, salary
disbursement, G2P and P2G transaction, airtime recharge and other value added financial services. UCB

holds 299,999,999 nos. of shares of UCB Fintech Company Limited with face value of BDT.10 each which is
equivalent to 99.999999% of total shares of the Company.

(c) Management and Board of Directors
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Name Designation
7 Mrs. Ru khmila Za man Chairman
2 Vice-Chairman

Director
Chairman,
Executive Committee

5;, Mr. Bazal Ahmed Director & Chairman of Shariah
Supervisory Committee

Mr. Nurul lslam Chowdhury Director
Mrs. Roxana Zaman Director
Mr. Asifuzzaman Chowdhury Director

9 Mrs. Afroza Zaman Director
10 Director

Mr. Muhammed Shah Alam FCMA Director
Director

13 iSarkerdM ed(

lt nited Cos! mercial Bank pLC
Conme

United Commercial Bank PLC pime
Ma
timn rul iJg

UCB Asset Management Limited

sl

Mr. Basir Ahmed
3 Mr. Anisuzzaman Chowdhury

Mr. M. A. Sabur Director & Chairman of Risk

Management Committee
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74 Mrs. Masuma Parvin

15 Dr. Aparup chowdhury lndependent Director
16 Professor Dr. lftekhar Uddin Chowdhury lndependent Director
l7 Mr. Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman

18 Mr. Arif Quadri Managing Director & CEO

L9 Mr. ATM Tahmiduzzaman FCS Company Secretary
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Profile of the Directors

Mrs. Rukhmila Zaman

Chairman

M rs. Rukhmila Za ma n, a young woman entrepreneur of the Country, is the Chairman of United Commercial
Bank PLC and also the Managing Director of Aramit Group, a leading manufacturing Conglomerate of the
Country. She is the wife of Mr. Saifuzzaman Chowdhury, MP and Honourable Minister for land, GOB.

She is also involved with different Socio-Economic organizations and contributing for upbringing the young
women in the mainstream of economy.

Mr. Basir Ahmed
Vice Chairman

Mr. Bashir Ahmed is a Vice-Chairman and current Member of Executive Committee of UCB. He is the son
of Late Mr. M. A. Bari, one of the founder Sponsor Directors of UCB.

This innovative entrepreneur is also the Managing Director of Airmate Goodie Electrical lndustries Ltd,

Goodie Accessories (Pvt) Ltd, lnternational Distribution Company Bangladesh (Pvt) Ltd, B&B Electronics,
B&B Food & Beverage, B&B Electrical & Electronics, Dhaka Electrical & Electronics, Bard lnternational
Mettle Emporium, Petal Enterprise etc.

Mr. Ahmed was born on December 25, L969 in a respectable Muslim family. He is allied with numerous
social & educational organizations to accelerate the benefit of the community.

Mr, Anisuzzaman Chowdhury

n, Executive Committee

S Management Committee of UCB
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Anisuzzaman Chowdhury was born in a glorious & highly respectable Muslim Family of Anwara under
Chittagong District of the country. With his brilliance and prudence, he has been contributing in UCB to
reach its vision through providing best banking services in the country.

Mr. M.A. Sabur
Director
Chairman, Risk Management Committee

M r. M. A. Sabur, a leading industrial entrepreneur, is the Director of the Board a nd as well as the Chairma n

of the Risk Management Commlttee of UCB. He is also the Chairman of Masco Group and Maxim Group,

leading export houses in textile sector of the country.

An MBA, M. A. Sabur is the son of Late Alhaj Raham Ali. He belongs to a respectable Muslim family and

hails from Kanchon of Narayanganj District. He is a member of IBA Alumni Association, Dhaka University
Alumni Association & also a golfer, being lifetime member of Kurmitola Golf Club, Dhaka and Bhatiary Golf
Club, Chittagong. M.A. Sabur is actively associated with various educational& socio-cultural organizations

of Dhaka & Chittagong.

This illustrious personality is guiding the Bank in exploring new opportunities of business procurement in

this competitive market.

Mr, Bazal Ahmed
Director & Chairman of Shariah Supervisory Committee

Mr. Bazal Ahmed is the Director of the Board of Directors and Chairman of Shariah Supervisory Committee
of United Commercial Bank PLC.

He is the son of Late Mr. M. A. Bari, a Sponsor Director of the Bank. This spectacular entrepreneur is also

the Managing Director of Taj Accessories (Pvt.) Ltd. and Saikat Textile lnd. Limited, one of the leading

enterprises in the garment/textile sector of Bangladesh. At the same time, he is the proprietor of Taj

Trading.

Mr. Ahmed was born in a respectable Muslim family of Sylhet. He is allied with lots of social & educational
organizations to accelerate the benefit of the community.

Mr. Nurul lslam Chowdhury
g Director

r. Nurul lslam Chowdhury is one of the Directors of UCB and as well as the Member of Executive
-2LJrll He is the son of Late Alhaj Sirajul islam Chowd hury, a sponsor of the Bank.mitt

stin guished businessman is the Chairman of lslam Steel Mills Limited and Director of Eastern
F-l
o)
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Mrs. Roxana Zaman
Director

M rs. Roxana Zaman, a promising entrepreneur of the country is a Director of United Commercial Bank PLC

(Representative of Volkart Trading Limited) and daughter of Bank's Promoter & former Chairman as well

as esteemed politician of the country, Mr. Akhtaruzzaman Chowdhury. She is also a Member of Risk

ManaBement Committee of the Bank.

Mrs. Zaman is at the same time Vice Chairman of Janata lnsurance Company. Besides this, she is involved
with different business houses and organizations.

Mrs. Zaman is actively engaged in numerous women development program and philanthropic activities

Mr. Asifuzzaman Chowdhury
Director

Mr. Asifuzzaman Chowdhury is one of the young & promising Directors of UCB and he is also a Member of
Executive Committee. He comes of a very prestigious Muslim family of Anowara, Chittagong.

Mr. Chowdhury is also the Director of Synthetic Rezin Products (Pvt.) Ltd. and Ronny Chemicals Ltd. He

attained his BBA from Atlantic University, Florida, USA. With innovative ideas this younB entrepreneur is

contributing to the nation.

Mrs. Afroza Zaman
Director

Mrs. Afroza Zaman, a young woman entrepreneur ofthe country, is a Director of United Commercial Bank

PLC (Representative of Legendary Assets Management Limited) and daughter of Bank's Promoter & former
Chairman as well as esteemed politician of the country, Mr. Akhtaruzzaman Chowdhury. She is also an

active Member of Risk Management Committee of the Bank. Mrs. Zaman, at the same time, is a Director
of Janata lnsurance Company.

Mrs. Zaman is actively associated with different socio-economic and philanthropic activities.

Mr. Syed Kamruzzaman FCMA
Director

r.Syed Kamruzzaman (Representative of Aramit Thai Aluminium Limited) is a Nominee Director and a lso

f Audit Committee of UCB

ruzzaman, FCMA is an eminent professional Accountant who completed his graduation from
niversity agong. He became a qualified Cost and Management Accountant from "The lnstitute of

Cost and Mana ement Accountants of Bangladesh" in 1995.

He started his career in a UK based Audit Firm in United Arab Em irates.
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Throughout his career he maintained a passion for service management and has been involved in a key

leadership role in many of the major pragmatic decision making for more than last two decades.

Mr. Muhammed Shah Alam FCMA
Director

Mr. Muhammed Shah Alam (Representative of Ardent Assets Management Limited) is a nominee Director
of UCB and also a Member of Audit Committee of the Bank.

Mr. Alam has a wide experience in the field of Cost and Management Accounting. As a qualified Cost and
Management Accountant he is associated with numerous reputed group of Companies including Aramit
Group. Prior to joining this group, he was associated with Birds Bangladesh Agencies Limited Chittagong
for a period of nearly 26 years.

He obtained his B.com (Hons) and M.com in Accounting from University of Chittagong.

Mr. Kanak Kanti Sen FCMA

Director

Mr. Kanak Kanti 5en, FCMA (Representative of Nahar Metals Limited), is a Nominee Director and also a

Member of Risk Management Committee.

A FCMA, Mr. Sen completed his graduation and post-graduation from University ofChittagong. He became
a qualified Cost and Management Accountant from "The lnstitute of Cost and Management Accountants
of Bangladesh" in 1994.

He started his career at Sunman Group of Companies and after that he served several joint venture and

local companies holding different leadership positions. Throughout his career he maintained an urge for
service management and has been involved in a key leadership role in many of the major hard-headed
decision making for more than last two decades. He also attended several lnternationally and Locally
organized Seminars, Workshops, CPD/CPE Programs etc. on various issues relating to the Professional
lnterest, Economics, lnternational Trade, National and lnternational Economic Development lssues.

Mr. Md. Aksed Ali Sarker

Mr. d. Aksed Ali Sarker (Representative of Aromatic Properties Limited) is a nominee Director of UCB
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Ur. €+er has a wide experience over 31 years covering in the field of Marketing, Finance and
Administb-tion. Throughout his professional career, he has been associated with reputed organizations in
the coun't</ including Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd (BTA).
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Mrs. Masuma Parvin
Director

Mrs. Masuma Parvin, an encouraging woman entrepreneur in the country, is a Director of United
Commercial Bank PLC (Representative of Splendid Trading Limited). She is also a Director of Navana

Pharmaceuticals Limited and Dhaka Evergreen Retirement Homes Limited. She has more than 12 years of
experience in multiple ventures being involved in the management of diversified business operations. She

accomplished her post-graduation in Public Administration from the University of Dhaka.

She is also involved with different Socio-Economic organizations and philanthropic activities.

Dr. Aparup Chowdhury
lndependent Director

Dr. Aparup Chowdhury is a Former Secretary to the Government of Bangladesh working consistently for
37 years with progressively increasing responsibilities in Field Administration, Policy Pool of different
Ministries and Organizatlons as well as Corporate Bodies.

He holds important and sensitive positions like Deputy Commissioner, Chalrman, Bangladesh Parjatan
(Tourism) Corporation, Secretary, Ministry of Liberation War Affairs, lndependent Director of United
Commercial Bank Ltd, Member, Audit Committee and Chairman, Nomination & Remuneration committee.
He is also an lndependent Director of United Asset Ltd as well as Apex Weaving and Finishing Mills Ltd.

He worked for World Bank as Project Director of a regional cooperation project embracing Bangladesh,

Bhutan, lndia and Nepal.

He is working as Executive Director in Bay Group having its own Private Economic Zone with domestic and
several 100% export oriented foreign industries

His key competencies embrace Strategic Business Management to grow top and bottom line, Leadership
and People Development, Establishing Processes and Systems, Supply Chain Management, Sales and
Marketing, Shaping Businesses for Sustainability and Development.

He is a team leader who is results focused, problem solver, analytical, people oriented and resilient in
strategy development and implementation, with unquestionable ethics, sound communlcation skill with
high moral and motivational capabilities.
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Eminent Professor Dr. lftekhar Uddin Chowdhury, former Vice-Cha ncellor, University of Chittagong, is one
ofthe lndependent Directors ofthe Bank.

Dr. lftekhar Uddin Chowdhury obtained his graduation and post-graduation from University ofChittagong.
He attained hls Ph.D. from University of Tsukuba, Japan.

He also accomplished his Bachelor of Law (LLB) from University of Chittagong and served as a visiting
professor in Faculty of Law, Kobe Gakuin University, Japan, visiting professor of Glasgow University, UK.

Apart from these, he served as a foreign faculty of Ryukoku University, Japan along with many other
accredited Universities in the abroad including USA & Denmark.

Mr. Chowdhury is a Fulbright Senior Fellow in Harvard University, USA and a post-doctoral research fellow
in University of Californla, Berkeley, USA-

Mr, Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman
lndependent Director

Mr. Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman is one of the lndependent Directors of United Commercial Bank PLC. He

is also a member of Audit Committee. Mr. Rafiquzzaman is a highly experienced international banker with
36 years of professional experience in the entire gamut of banking, having worked in two multi-national
banks across four geographies. He is a certified rlsk professional and has extensive experience of working
in emerging ma rkets.

Mr. Rafiquzzaman holds a B.A. Honors and a Master's degree from the University of Dhaka. He is a widely
travelled person, sports fan and keen golfer. Married with a daughter.

Mr. Arif Quadri
Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Arif Quadri, prominent and professional Banker with years of rewarding multidimensional experience
in banking and other fields of Management is the Managing Director & CEO of United Commercial Eank
PLC (UCB). Before that, he was serving the Bank as Additional Managing Director. Prior to joining in UCB,

he was the Deputy Managing Director & Chief Operating Officer of Premier Bank Limited.

Mr. Quadri has started his banking career with the then Arab Bangladesh Bank Limited as Probationary
Officer in July 1984 after completing his graduation degree and worked there in different leadership roles
till February 2003 while he was holding the rank & status of Senior Vice President.
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professional area comprises of Head of Human Resources Management Division in AB Bank
lBaraka Bank Limited, ONE Bank Limited and Meghna Bank Limited. During his long banking
h five different banks, Mr. Quadri played supervisory roles as CAMLCO, Chief Risk Officer, Head

o -..qf tnt Control & Compliance Division, Head of Branch etc. He served as a director on the board of'JA],
IIDFC (Non-Banking Financial lnstitution) in Bangladesh. He held the charges ofthe Office ofthe Managing(1

ct Director on several instances in ONE Bank Limited. He was also the Secretary General of Asso
Bankers, Bangladesh Limited (ABB). Along with the role of Managing Director of UCB, Mr. Arif
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Mr. Arif Quadri has excellent academic track record. He completed his both graduation and post-

graduation degree in Economics from Jahangirnagar University.

Mr. ATM Tahmiduzzaman FCS

Company Secretary

Mr. ATM Tahmiduzzaman FCS, a qualified Chartered Secretary, is the Company Secretary of United

Commercia I Bank Ltd. He has started his Career with British flagship concern REA Consortium locally known

as Deundi Tea & Shaw Wallace Tea. ln the process of career progression, he capitalized the opportunities
to work in launching team of Warid Telecom and played active role in the process of establishment of
AIRTEL Bangladesh.

Mr. Tahmid, a faculty member of lnstitute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB), obtained his

Master's Degree from University of Dhaka. Later on, he obtained MBA under the umbrella of Common

Wealth of Learning, the education wing of Common Wealth. ln addition, he is a Law Graduate. He has

attended many training program and workshops. He is also involved with different socio-cultural

orga nizations.

Management Profile

UCB's Top Management consists of the following officials:

Audit Committee:

sl Name Designation
1 Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman lndependent Director & Chairman, Audit Committee
2 Mr. Syed Kamruzzaman

FCMA
Director, Member of Audit Committee

3 Mr. Muhammed Shah Alam
FCMA

4 Dr. Aparup Chowdhury lndependent Director, Member of Audit Committee
5 Mr. Kanak Kanti Sen FCMA Director, Member of Audit Committee
6 Mr. ATM Tahmiduzzaman

FCS
Company Secretary

Executive Committee:

1{ [tt' l$n

arukAha mmad, CA duzzaman, FCS Ar n d
Deputy Managi ng ohector & CFo
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anaging Director & CEO 47
que

Managing Direclor
Prmr [irinll CspIal ]Va0i-(!nri I LiD iled

A)
Md. R&ail Ha

sl Designation

1 Director & Chairman of Executive Committee

Mr. M.A. Sabur

4 Mr. Bazal Ahmed Director & Member of Executive Committee

Mrs. Roxana Zaman Director & Member of Executive Committee

r. Asifuzzaman Chowdhury Director & Member of Executive Committee

7 Mr. Hajee Yunus Ahmed Director & Member of Executive Committee

8

2[8 Company

United Commercial Banl.: ?, D United Commercial gank pLC

ATIU

DMD & Company Secretary

United Commercial Bank PLC

Director, Member of Audit Committee

Name

Mr. Anisuzzaman Chowdhury

Mr. Basir Ahmed Director & Member of Executive Committee

Director & Member of Executive Committee

\1
Mr. ATM Tahmiduzzaman
FCS - ^ aol'l \Q
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Risk Management Committee:

Shariah Supervisory Committee:

Senior Management Committee:
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sl Name Designation
7

Mr. M.A. Sabur

2 Mr. Anisuzzaman Chowdhu ry Director & Member of Risk Management Committee

3 Mr. Nurul lslam chowdhury Director & Member of Risk Management Committee
4 Mrs. Afroza zaman Director & Member of Risk Management Committee
5 Professor Dr. lftekhar Uddin

Chowdhury
lndependent Director & Member of Risk

Management Committee
6 Mr. ATM Tahmiduzzaman FCS Company Secretary

sl Name Designation

1 Mr. Bazal Ahmed Chairman of Shariah Supervisory Committee

2 Mr. Arif Quadri Managing Director & CEO,

Member of Shariah Supervisory Committee
3

Member of Shariah Supervisory Committee

4 Professor Dr. Mohammad
Abdur Rashid

Member of Shariah Supervisory Committee

5 Professor Dr. K M Saiful lslam
Kha n

Member of Shariah Supervisory Committee

6 Dr. Mohammed Nasir Uddin
(Azhary)

Member of Shariah Supervisory Committee

1
Member of Shariah Supervisory Committee

sl Designation

1 Mr. Arif Quadri Managing Director & CEO

2 Additional Managing Director & CRO

3 Mr. Nabil Mustafizur Rahman Additional Managing Director

Mr. Abul Alam Ferdous Additional Managing Director

-st_r Mr. N. Mustafa Tarek Deputy Mana8ing Director

6 a^\ Mr. Md. Abdullah Al Mamoon, PMP Deputy Managing Director & COO

J^7 Mr. Md. Shah Alam Bhuiyan Deputy Mana8inB Director-r-Ti
Mr. Mohammed Khorshed Alam Deputy ManaginB Director & Head of ICC

9

10 Deputy Managing Director \<-
tl

orQ*Deputy Managing Director and CFO

Uni ted
United Commercial Bank PLC United Commercial Bank PLC

Prim. trnar!l Crpjml liluqcDcil LiEitad

s

Director & Chairman of Risk Management
Committee

Professor Dr. A. F. M. Akbar
Hossain

Dr. Mohammad Manjurur
Rahman

Name

Mr. Syed Faridul lslam

4

Mr. ATM Tahmiduzzaman FCS Deputy Managing Director & Cs

Mr. Alamgir Kabir

Mr. Faruk Ahammad, FCA
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(d) Description of Encumbered and Unencumbered Assets with Value thereof

Encumbered Assets:

As of31 December 2022, therc is no encumbered assets of United Commercial Bank PLC.

Unencumbered Assets:

As of 31 Decembet 2022, tolal unencumbered assets of United Commercial Bank PLC. are 633,306.92

million

Description of Assets and Liabilities (Consolidated)

(amount in 8DT million)

Descript n of Liabilities: (amount in BDT million)

2 4 ott mu3 023

aruk Ahammad, FCA ATM Tah zzaman, FCS Ar riDepury Ma,aging Director & cFO DMD & Co

llrited Com

mpany Secretary
mercial Eank pl0 anaging Director & CEO

D
rl

Tan

clM
M
FrnlnPn

ted

lor
ti

cre

3r.12.2022

Taka

PROPERTIES & AS5ETs

30,939.72

cash in hand (lncluding foreign currencies) 9,100.80

Balance with BanBladesh Bank & its agent bank(s) (lncluding foreign currencies) 21,838.93

Ealance with other banks & financial institutions 17,975.93

ln Bangladesh 4,509.39

Outside Bangladesh 13,466.55

Money at Call on short notice

79,01,0.79

6s,222.OO

Others 13,788.19

Loans and Advances 474,639.75

451- ,1-4a .36

B ills purchased and discounted 23,49L.38

Fixed assets includint premises, furniture & fixtu.e \7 ,026.5L

13,7 t4.81

63 3,306.9 2

31.72.7022Particulars

Taka

United Commercial Bank i..

Unrted Commercial Bank PLC
l](e ilanr$lnenl

Description of Assets:

*s
\:a

Particulars

Cash

lnve5tments

Government

Loans, Cash Credits, Overdrafts etc

.6if+"*eU
No-n#ankingiiets

3gffi5ets

2 4 0EC 2023 c
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(e) Description of Previously lssued Debt Securities:

U

o

o

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents

Oeposits and other accounts 424,683.42

Current accounts & othe. accounts 92,967.s2

Eills Payable
7 ,076.02

Savings Bank Deposits 85,798.09

Fixed Deposits 202,07 5.93

Bearer Certificates of Deposits 0.00

36,825.86

61,405.65

Total Liabilities 593,12 8.81

Paid up Capital t4,062.37
Share Premium

75,7 64.37

General Reserve 2 6.58

Other Reserve 2,797.O7

Retained Earnings 6,072.82

40,L78.tI

Total Shareholders' Equity with non-controlling interest

Non controlling interest

I Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

0.00017

40,t78.tL
633,306.92

Year

of
lssue

Types of
lssue

lssue
Size

Subscribers

Amount
lnvested
(in BDT

Crore)

Outstanding
Amount as

on
37.L2.2022

Remarks/
Default
(if any)

Agrani Bank Ltd 30

Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd 10

BRAC Bank Ltd 10

Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd 5

Delta Life lnsurance Company Ltd 5

Janata Bank Ltd 50

LR Global Bangladesh Mutual Fund One 2

NCCBL M utual Fund 1 1

Pragati Life lnsurance Ltd

Rupali Bank Ltd 50

2073
UCBL 1't

Subordinated
Bond

2 4 0t[ 2023

ln the year
2078 (30v.1,

2019 l.30%)
& 2020
(40%l

t4 nrr 1F#haran Bima Corpor4iph E I tn?1 10

Fully
Redeemed

"$}+" /

N/A

aruk Ahammad
Mzaa ng Director & cFo

FCA uzzaman, FCS
Company Secretary
ommercial Bank pl,C

adti
Managing Direclor & CEO
United Commercial Bank pLC

ATM Ta

DMD &
United C

Deputy
United Commercial Ban: Dt_C

LIABITITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities:

107 ,039.7 4

Other Deposits

Other Liabilities

Capital / Shareholders' Equity

L,454.98

Statutory Reserve

=*l-'rotalshareholders' 
Equity

tl

o
tllo

Redemption

National Life lnsurance Co. Ltd 15

1.2

BDT

200
Crore
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Sonali Bank Ltd
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100

Fully
Redeemed

c 2023

? { 0E[ ?0?3
t

20L5
UCBL 2"d

Subordinated
Bond

By 20% in
last flve
years

BDT

500
Crore

t
I
I

I
q

,

i
t

t
,
I

i
I

aruk Ahammad A .lllu
Daputy Ma aging Dire r& CFO
United Co

2 4 UEI ?$13

iduzzaman, FCS ,{; adri
mpany Secretary
mercial Eank pl,C

naging Director & CEO Md ul Haqu
Managing Director

ry,rie ank P

SycG ,M ai' Tayub
Mamgrug Drrectoi&cEO

lflme llanli lnvesoteut Liailgd

0

Janata Bank Ltd 50

Mercantile Bank Ltd 50

Rupali Bank Ltd 50

Eastern Bank Ltd 50

30

Bank Asia Ltd 30

Agrani Bank Ltd 20

Delta Life lnsurance Company Ltd 20

NCC Bank Ltd 20

Jamuna Bank Ltd 20

20

National Life lnsurance Company Ltd 10

NRBC Bank Ltd 10

Uttara Bank Ltd 10

United Finance Ltd 10

ONE Bank Ltd 75

Pubali Bank Ltd 75

Janata Bank Ltd

Trust Bank Ltd

Agrani Bank Ltd

Rupali Bank Ltd 25

MutualTrust Bank Ltd 25

Mercantile Bank Ltd

AB Bank Ltd 215

2017
UCBL 3'd

Subordinate
Bond

By20%in
last five
years

BDT

700
Crore

National Bank Ltd 75

BDI350
(Three

H undred
Fifty) Crore

Sonali Bank Ltd 50

Agrani Bank Ltd 250

BRAC Provident Fund 10

100

NRBC Bank Ltd 50

National Life lnsurance Company Ltd 25

Shadharan Bima Corporation 10

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited 10

Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd (CDBL) 10

Trust Bank Ltd 100

NRB 30

Dhaka Bank 55

2018
UCBL 4th

Subordinate
Bond

By20%in
last five

years (2021-

2O2s)

BDI
800

Crore

Bank Asia 100

BDT 648
(six

H u ndred
Forty Eight)

Crore

N/A

Bank Asia LTd 100

Pubali Bank Ltd

IPDC Finance Ltd 20

100

Community Bank Bangladesh Ltd 20

NRBC Bank Ltd

2027
UCB L

Peroetual

?0$smti

BDT

400
Crore

rPl"4$f,Sank ttd 65

BDT 4OO

(Fou r
Hundred)

Crore

.(

N/A

xss

DI\4D &

United C0m
United Commercial Bank pLC

Prrnrt frnuft Capilil lth0lgrmt Limitcd --
.:'.--'n;."'

IDLC Finance Ltd

Midland Bank Ltd

50

50

30

20

Eastern Bank Ltd

50

Eastern Bank Ltd

45
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Description of Paid-Up Capital:

Number of Shares lssued
Amou.t in

8DT

Cumulative Paid

up Capital

1983 355,000 35,500,000 3s,s00,000

1944 85,000 8,500,000 44,000,000

1986 360,000 36,000,000 80,000,000

1988 400,000 40,000,000 120,000,000

1991 177,428 77,142,800 737,142,400

1994 397,963 39,796,300 176,939,100

1995 176,919 17,693,900 194,633,000

1996 291,949 29,194,900 223,427,900

t997 63,296 6,329,600 234,757,500

690,473 69,047.300 299,204,800

2010 26,tO7,4A7 2,6LO,7 4A,7 00 2,909 ,953,500
2011 436,493,025 4,364,930,2s0 1,214,883,t50

L09,723,256 L,09L,232,560 8,366,116,310

2413 8,366,116,310

241-4 8,366,116,310

2015 167,322,326 L,67 3,223,26A 10,039,339,s70

20t6 50,196,697 501,966,970 10,541,306,540

2417 10,541,306,540

2018 10,541,306,540

2019 105,413,055 1,054,130,650 11,595,437,190

2020 57,911,785 519,771,850 12,11s,209 ,440
2021 60,876,O45 608,760,450 12,743,969 ,490
2022 127,839,694 1,27 4396,940 14,062,366,430

4,

%

2600 1398

naging Direclor & CEO

1\ $tt'l[R 1\ \tt1$ll3
2[ [[t1t8

Faruk Aha mmad, FCA
^u[1 duzzaman, FCS ArifDeputy Manag ing Director & CFO

r) lvll) & Company SecretaryUnited CommerciatBank pLC
r-lniteci Commercial Bank PLC

United Commercial Bank PLC

, (,EaiI -E e-

.ry i ;SjE-.\r , ;j- -^r.ar , = I c ..:ct I {.4?
- \ .:Z ! ?.:-- v r.{:5

-/:[EE;;a) =:=-
1[ ttt,l$11

I&)
Md. R€aaLI Haoue
Managing Director

Prinr Financc Crpiral Mua3cncor Eilcd

Year

2AO7
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SECTION 13: AUDITORS' REPORT ALONG WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UCB

Auditor's Report along with audited financial statements of UCB is also annexed with this lnformation

Memorandum. Kind ly check Annexure - 3

,.;,,rP, 1r.,l, -l ,.i, i

'"18 Li""r,,,alcodwr

fl'rtl. lllqli. tLrcl-l.l n l5)
l:l 6.*110 ,rrr (it,nk.ci.l AFs
l)hrl3 1215. B,n6ld6l,

'l-.lcrhrnc (*88-ol).10 2@,l4 ro J5 (t.Lcl l.])
{+8{ 02) 8189426 k, 29 (k".1-15)

F{ri'nLL (+88"02) {10 z00jt
E-n{il: <,.n,Eironn,AkkD. V.} *9vN(6b,Lcom

Indlpcnd€nt Audrdr R€Port
To thc slErcholdlr5 of Unitcd Cotnmc.ci.l aant PlrC

Report olr tlE Audlt ol ttta Conrolidated attd Sept'.te Flnaficlal StatGn€nts

Opanl.ofl

we have audlted the @nsolida*ed fitlahdal stateneoE of United Commerdal Bank PLC and ns
subsidrari€s (the "Groop') as well as Ele setar.te fi'|arEhl s{ateo.tlts of Unld Comme.ci.J Bank PLC
(the'Bank"), r$&n cornFdse the @rEolijated ard separate bahnce shcctr E at f1 Deember 2022
ad the oasdrdfied ard s€parate ,i_oflt atd loss acrounts, qlsdHated and sep*at! 5tatcnrdlts of
cfiarBes in eqrlty ard cdrsolldaled and separ6tr cadl tbi{ Saatcnrents 6)r the year thel! eflded, and
notes to the cohsolilated ard Separate fmandal state{nerts. lncluding a slmrnary of slgniicant
Ec@unting polictes .nd dher €rdanatuy intorrnatb..

Io o{rr opinl}n, th€ ac@tllpaofog coosoiidaied frrandal statetrEots of the Grdrp ad separate fklancial
staterneflts of the Bank gil/e a tlE a.d ftk vic{ ot the coso}dated finarcial postlon oa dle GrciJp and
the separate finandal posi0an of ihe gank 6 at 31 Deember 2022, ad o, lt5 @nsolklated .td s€Parate
f;nandal perfonnanae ard its €orisotioated and seParate cash Atws ,or the year then erded ln
accodance i{i$ :ntematorEl FirEndal Repo.ling Slandards (lrf.Ss) as erpbined i,'1 tEte ro. 2-1"

Basis lb. opinion

we ccrduded oor audt in aeordlne with InBn titnal Standards on Atdttt'g (ISAt)' Our
resporrsibilities uider ttr€e dandards atE further de6ctbed ln Bre Arrdho/s Respoi6iuliti€s for Ble Atdit
of the Co.rsdldatcd and Separato Firla.Eial Sbterneits scdlon of our rtport W€ are iad€parYleflt of the
Croup ard the Ba.k ln acEoadatrce witfi the lnternatiottal Ethics Stardards Board ,or A€couotanty oode
of Ethics aor Profusslonal AccoqntanB (IESBA Oode), gtlddi.t€s bsred bY Ba{gladerh Sanlq atd n les
and r€gulaHorl3 lssued by B..gLd.sh Seo.tttti$ .trd Edl8lge Comtr$siorr (BSEC], .,n $re tl.ve tlrnn€d
or.rr ottrer edtcal ,lsgonjulties h acootdarce t&h Ulc IESEA Code Itd the Instthrb of chaf.ded
Acountants of Eanglade6tt (ICAB) 8ye-Lal6 V\tc bdl€r,e that thc audt evldcttct $.c h.\re ob6lt!.d 15

suff€l€nt srd apptprlate to provHe a b86Ls tor o(, orinlon.

s
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o

o
U
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Audlt Mafters

:J
? [ $E[ 1[1& b.&",.ily

K€y audit rnatters *e those llEtters SlaL ln our professbnal ,udqemenL t\rere of rlost slqnilknrEe in
c.Jr ardit ot the coisdidated ard sepa6te irra.rcid sAt.nEnts of the clllreit perrJd. TlEse ntattels
$/ere srrrl€ssed in t!€ coate)(t of our aldtt of tha coltsdidaEd tnd saparata Enaodal stabfnerlts as a
!4hole. aDd ln fdmlng o{, @lnbn ttEreon, and !4re (b noa pro.lde a Seporale oPlnls! on these maltets.
For eadl matt€r descvibed b€|o., otrl d8crlpdorr of tDvr, our audlt addressed the matter ls pro/id€d in
that coart€r(t.

s
Bodr OrliocJrrun Bdunl No7 t rr Phx. Nddt Sld.I 59 rll,l,*l G[ERil ,{e Cr.,,q*riO. oryr.tr \
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Deputy Managing Oirector & CFr) DMD & Company Secreta

arukAhammad FCA ATlll Ta uzzaman, FCS Arif rt
naging Director & cEO Md

Maragjng
Frilnt Ftnrr(. Crpital

ul Haqug3
Director

Marlg.orot Iioiled

United Commercial Bank pLC
United Commercial Bank United Commercial Eank plC
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We tested the design and Opefating
effetti\reness of key contols foosing on $e
folt,1irlng:

Gedit monitoring and prMsrrnirE
pfocess;
IdeotifEation of loss events hctding
early woming irdicator ard default
rarnhq indi(ators; and
Revk , of qua,edy Cassification of Loans
(cr);

qrr substanaive procedures in rehuon !o ule
p.ovtsior for loans and advanc€s portfullo
csnp.bsd *€ lollowing:

RevEw€d $e adEqr,acy of the provision
requiremenls;
Asseered $,e metnodologks dl whid LIE
provlsion afiounts are based,
recalculated the provislons and tested 6e
completeness ard a(crasy ol tie
uderfi ng lnformation; ard
Fifidt ass€sred tlle appop.laEness and
p.eseotntjon of dkdoslres agalnst
rehYant accolntlng standar& ard
Bangladesh Baak guirelin€s.
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=7tdg
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*E

a
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aruk Ahammad uzzaman, FCS Ar ftDepury Manag lng Director & CFO i]MD & Company Secre naging Director & CEO Md
Managing Director

Primr Fintncr Caprral li{rnlgrmen I Limited

on of key audit matter Our respons€ to kry audit matters
l, Xrarurcnrnt of pmvisron for lglns and ralvances

toRefer no,note '1,, ! I 22. and to1S the consolidat€d fina siatementScials€parateand

The procesg of estimating provhbn for ba.s {d
ad!"ne6 GsocBted with c-edit rgk is
judgmeital and comple(. While e$imating sudt
provislon certain judgm€ntal ladors need to be
consir€red irdLdingr

Flhrre busin€ss performance
bo(ro$€r;
l(ey as mptbrrs rdatirg to
business;
P€dormance of tire boro,ycr;
Fbrl€t Yalue of Ble dheral;
Ability b repo6scrs @l!.tenl and
Racorcry rdtes.

Fwtlnrnore, due provislons are pr@$€d
manuatry usi g ttre volumhpus dab €xtraded
fro.n tlE IT systern of &e Bank aM followkE the
lndr(rtions of Banglad€$ Bark (the centr:t
bank of Eanglade*) tssued tom time b bme.

As at 31 Deaerflber 2022, Ble Cro.p ard the Bar*
report€d tabl provf*on fd loans and ad,rances
or BOT 19,208 mill,on (M 2021: 8DT
15,584 milhn) and BDT 19J08 millioo
(Decer*€r 2021: 8OT 16,584 milioo)
re+ed'vet.

of dre

furthe.

2. Rrcognltlon of lntered lncofir fiom loang ard admncat
Refer to note no. 7 ard 20 to the dtsoldat€d aid separab nnancial slat€merts

Recognitjoo of inbrest lircome has dgnlfrcant
and wide influenc€ o[l firEnciai *at€flcnts,

We have Uenulied recognNon of lnterest lncome
loans atid ad\rans as , key a.dlt matter

becaGe thk ls one of tie key p€rtormance
lMicators ot the Bank and therdofe ul€re ts an

rlsk of Faud ard erro. in r€ognitbn of
lnter€st by manag€ment !o meet Wedfic taq€E
or oeecbtJor6.

At the !€er ended 2022. the 6roup and the Bank
reporbd btal g.oss ht€rest income trom loais
and ad,/ancEs of BOT 31.484 mllllon (January
2021 to Deernb€r 202I 8AT 27 455 ,nillion

We tesEd the design and opeGti.g
effudivaness of key contrds over recogt Uo{t
ard meassernent of lnter€st fro.n loans and
admnces.

We har/e pertonned test of operating
eff€ab'veness On aubmated conttd in phce to
measure and re€ognize inFrest incorne.

We have also p€rfoftned slHantive pmcedure
io $eck whdrer intereS income ls recognlzed
omdetdy and ac.urdtely.

We have assessed the appropriateness and
pl€sentadd1 of dtsdoErlres against .ele/ant
&cosnting standards and Ba.ghdesh BanI
guUdlnes.

United Commercial Bank pLC United C ommercial Bank pl,C United Commercial Bank pLC
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Our rcsponse to kay audlt ntatteFIr€scription ot key audit matters
ad BDT 30,858 millim (.lanuary 2021 bo

Decernber 2021: BDT 26,804 millix)
respedfuely,

3. lrans and advances

Refer to note no. 7 to the clnsdijat€d and sep.rdte fnandal sbtetnents

l-oans and advances are the main elernent of
inancid st8tetrrnts of the Sank Interest lr$me
of ti€ Sank is malnty depeidert oo the po.trolio
of loans and drrances. Manag€trcot
performance ls highly dependent m the brqel
achiq,€rnent ot loans and advances. Losns and
advan€es disbu6€trEat requires robtlst
dEumertatbn fdblv€d bY approval from
appropr'Btre lev€l oa authority.

we have ld€ntified loans ard advames as key
audit matter beGuse fiere is an inherent risk of
haLd ln disbursen€nt oa barE and advarEes by
managern€nt to rieet sp€ciFE targ€E 6
eeectatioas,

At the year erded 2022, the Glo(Jp and th€ 8dlk
reported totBl 916 bans and adyances d Ef,IT
474,640 mllllon (December 2021: 8OT 408,310
mlllioo) and 8OT 468,505 million (December
202r: BDT 402,482 mlllbn) Gspediv€ly,

We t€sLd the design and operallng
effedi/eness of ke/ controls fooJdng on s€dlt
appraisal, lorns and ad\ances dbburs€flr€nt
pmcedrrx ard nnnlloring pllcess of loans and
advancEs,

We have performed procedure to drec,(
wheuler the Bank ha3 ensurcd apfotri*e
dosmentatlon as per Banglad€sh Sanl
reguhtbns ,nd the Banfs polky befd€
disburseinert gf loans and tdvdn6, Ifi
addluon, rv€ have perfomEd procedlrc to
dEct y,,he$ler the loans and adranes are
relord€d comphtely and acclrrady and that
are qis&d at the reporurE dab,

Furttlerrmre, r4,e hat/e assess€d tlE
appropdatsiess of dsdo$res agairB
Bangh&dr Bank quidelines.

4, Imoalrmerd asressmstt of unquoted sharr6
Refe[ to note no 6b io &e consolHated atld scparaE ffnancial staEmeots

In the absence qi quoted price in an adie
markel the fair value of umuoted shafes and
seoJriti6, €spechlly any lmpairm€t'lt is
cakulated udr€ valuaUo{r tedrnhues r,yhid! rnay
Eke lnto mflsideration dirEd or lndlrcct
unobservable market data and hence requlres an
elevated lanel of ludgernent and assumd-En,

OJe ic hrgh l6vel of ,udgment and assumption
iI1gtn'ed in evaluatirE tlE impalrnent
assessment €f, unquoted shares, 

'rv€ 
cordderd

$is to be a kE/ audlt fiaEer.

5. Valuadon gftrcasury Hlls and treasury bnds
Refer to lqE no. 6a ard 6,1 to Se @4sol!!b@!!E!lgp!I!!qj&!!El stalements

We assesEed the ptocesses and controls trJt h
dace by the Bank to ldentily ard ccnirm tlle
o<istenc€ of treasu bills and trBsu
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The dasslncadon and menslrement of Eeasrry
bilk ff+ills) and treasury bonds (T-Bords)

lre and estimates.
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We assessed the pr€cess and conlrob put ln
ph€e by d€ Bank b ensure all m4or
lm€stn€rt d€dslons are underbk€n throlgh a
prop€r due difpence prGs.

we haYe tesld, a nmde of lm€stmglt
valJalon as at 31 D€cernbar 2022 ard
campar€d oor r€sults to the recorded wfue

Finally, s.€ have- ass€ssed the appropdafefl€ss
and p(€senbti]Il of dtsd8Jres Eainst rde\ant
ac@fiUng sttddarG aild Barqlade* Sant
qu elines.
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We have obbln€d an undei.standlng, evaluat€d
tire design ard te$€d the ope.iting
efediveness of the k€y conkols over ttle
treasJry bilb and trca$rry bonds valuation
processE, irdudlsg coniob o/er market data
lnputs hb valuatioa modds, ffodel gc,vemance,
8ri valuauon adjustsfi ?nts,

We have tested a samde of the vallation
models and tlle lnputs used in lhose modds,
uslng a varlety of tedtnhu€s, inddklg
co&pa.'loq hputs b avalhble market data.

Finally, we have assessed the appr@rlateness
and pres€ntatloo of disdosurcs against rels.ant
acourdrB standards ard Bangladeslr Bank
guiddlnes.

?[ $tt?tn 2t'
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Dcsidon oI key aodat rBtters Oq. response to kEy atdlt matt€6

In th€ abs€nce of a quoted price i.r an adive
fi€r*et, dle Fair value of T€llk and T{oflds ts
ddermrned using complo( val'Jitbn tedlni+r€s
whldr may t ke inlo consEdatirn dir€.t or
lndlred uno!6er!€ble ma*et data and cofipl€x
pridrE modeb lvhkfi rcquire an elet/ated l€ld of
judgment

6. CarrvlnE value ot lnvestntent ln s!&dliarieg by the Bank
note no. 9Refet idated and financial

fhe Bank has invested in equlty sharcs of lb fouf
subsidaries namely LEB Sto* Brokerage
Llnlted, tm Indfl€nt Umted, IJCB Asset
tlanqefile't Ljmitsd, aod UCB Fin&d compary
Umibd. As at 31 Decernber 2022 tlE canying
\afue of tlEse l €stsnents ts BDT ru00 m[k)n
(Oea.rnb.r 202f: BOT 5,500 mflrion).

At tfE tlrI€ of co{tduding oir atdit d he
separat€ finarEial statsm'lE of Sle Bank we
hat€ consused the r€coveraue value oa $e
Earkt invefienb ln th€ abo\€ nrkldierres
stated at 6t. FurdEr, ttle subsHtary UCB
FlnG(h Company l-llniled cor$nuing lts
operatnxr havlng retaln€d loss of Tab 2,281
million as at 31 Dccemb€r 2022.

The Eank is r€quired to periorm irpalnnent test
of irvesbrEnts in subsidhrtes when impairment

exists. The knpafm€nt testhg is
to be a kEy audlt matt€r due to the

ccmpl€xity and JudgsrEnts r€qulred ln
&termlnlng tlte assumglims to be u*d to

thc r€coreraHe amowrt whidr is hlgher
of fair value less costs to sell and !"lue in use.

Management has cordrcted impairmert
assessmert ard cakuhH re€orerabb ll-dlue of
ib subEularies in acordancE with tAs 36:
Impairment of r6sets.

We ha\€ rarie*ad managernell!'s analysis of
impairmert as€ssment d recoverabh value
cakul8tbn of the sukidiarles in accordance
wfti IAS 36: ln patlncrlt o/A$*.In addiflon,
a5 p€r lA$27: SepardtE Flnanciel StaEments,
yvhen an ffUty prepares separaie finerEial
sl,atrnents, lt *lall. account lbr i$rcstsnent in
subskilarl6, Jolnt ve'ltures and assodates
eiuler at cost? 6 per IFPS9 aod r6ing equity
mdlod es per IA928, Here. the Bant blol^red
lh€ recognitidr of invesEnent in subsidiarles at
co6t.

ln partbrlar, our dislssbn witl th€
rnanagern€nt w6s foorsed ofl the cantinued
app{opdateness of the !6ed nrodel, the key
asslnnpuon lsed ln the modd, the reasonaHy
posdble alternative assumptio,6, parti arly
where they had tfie rEst impact on t€ valu€ in
(,se cal1.llagon. Further, U@ Fintedr Company
Umited having lontinuous loss r.yorking q) a l0
years strategk plan tg recover its h6s and bei€
a profitabk eotity.

We also clected mathertaucl {curacy of the
mcdel, inputs used ln sle determination of
assum*bns rifiin the modd r.,ere dlnllengsj
and conot€{-dting information was obaained
wi& Gferance b €,terna ma.ket informatiol,
thlrd.party sources.

United Commercial Bank pLC DMD

United Com

mpany Secretary
mercial Bank pLC

United Commercial Bank pLC
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- Ow re+onse to key audtt nattersDescripuo n ot key a{rdit matt€rs
7. Deterr"i t3x ass€ts
Rcler to nd€ no. 9.4 to the coisolidated ard septrale inancial statements

We obtained an understanding, eyatuat€d the
d€sigo and tesEd the operabonal efFecliver€ss
of the Bankt key cDntrob o.er the recpgoitiofl
and aneasurement of d€furred tax assets atd
dre assumdofls used h estinEflr,g the Grolp
ad the Banl(s tutwe taxable income

We have a6se6sed tlre camplet€ness and
accurac/ of the daEl used for the esti,ratiors of
future tacble incom€,

We have inolved tax specialist !o ass€ss key
asslmptions, cooEo&. rccognitix| aod
meEgrremeflt of deferred tax asseta.

Frlalty, r,{€ have a6s6sed tlre spprsrhteness
ard F€senbthr of dbdGrrBs agEinst IAS 12:
,t@nc Tax6.

As at 31 Decernber 2022 tne Grcup aod the Bank

reported net 4efefl€d tax assds af 8DT 5,470
mlllion (Decs,nber 2021: BDT 4.226 milllon) and

8OT 5,470 fiillaon {D€cember 2027: BD'l 4,24
millian) respedively.

Significaot jrJdgrteit ls required in relatim to
m€as.irer€fl! of dderred tax ass€ls as their
reot€rabillty ls dependeut on iorEcds of future
profitability or'er a numbet of years.

8. Leg6l ard t€guhtory nratters

We obEined an understardlng, e,raluat€d 0E
d€slgn and tested Ele operati,onal elfecdveness
d the Gr(}.lp and Sankt key co.lkols $/er the
legal provisloo and cDntingerry processes,

We enqulred those dlarged wlth goyernan@ b
otbin theh vlews cn the sEtus ot all Jgnibr*
litlgBtbn 6nd reguhtory matteE

We enqui,€d d the Gcup and ttp Bad<'s
inGrml legal colnsel for all slgnifiort litbauxt
and rcgutatory matters and lnspeded hErnal
rxl€s ard r@orts We also received lormal
conllnnadons from o(temal @uosel,

We ass€ssed the m€ttmddogles on wfiii Sxe
p6rBion anDunts are based, recak ated ti€
Fwlslons, and t€sted the comdet$€ss and
accuracy of tie underlying informailon.

W€ also a6s€5sed the Group and thc Bankt
prqvisions and cootlngeot liabilitEs disdosu.e.

These une/taandes lnherently affed the anbunt
and timing of potential oo6olrE with respe€t ta
Ute Ffovisivls ',rhb hatE been establlshed and
otner contingent liabilitles.

this area because *)e Bank ald
(the "Group') operates in a l€gal

and rcgulatory envr'ronment that is e&osed b
srgnificant litbation and slmlhr rlsks a.isinq from
dlsput€s and rqulatory proc€edir8s, Sudl
matt€rs are srbject to many un€talnues and
Sre olt@me may be dlffn]lt !o p.edd.

Overall th€ legal proviam rcpresents the 
]

Gmup! b€st estimatjon for exbtng legEl matErs
that have a probaue ard estimBble lmpad on

-the.qroup's fi natrial politbo.

a
Y n ryst m, and contrott

We tested the design and operating
effecttveness of the Group afld ll€ Bank! IT
access contrds orrer the hbrmafon sysEms
that .re silical !o rinanclal relordm. We ten6

Our audit produres have focus€d on IT
rystems and conkols due !o the pql"slve mhlre
rnd complexity of tile fT envlronnr€nt, Ele laIge
vdlJnE of transactioos prxessed ln numerous

llnited CommercialBan United Commerciat Bank pLC
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rue to key aidlt mattets

O$ar Mattrr

The onsofidaEd flnancral sbtcrIl€nE of the crorp aod also seFarate finarr,.l stateo€rt of tix Bank
as at a.l, br $e year aded 31 oecsnb.r 2021 yrere audited by MASS & J pafirers, olartered
A@t"{ttanq who ogressed an unmodlfied odnbn on those st ter1rents on 30 t{arch 20?Z

Other Infurmadon

ManagerEnt ls rdpdEibh fu UE other information. The other IntoamaHon cornprises all ot the
lnforrnatiJn but does not hdrre the cDnsolidated aM separate ffnandal stebments and our audito/s
repoft tfErwr. The d,er hlbmat on h epeced to be m#e a\railable b us after the date of this
ardto/s reporL

'!3

q

o
?r'

3

z

oc

ts
o

Our odnloo on the consotrdated aM seFEraE ffnendal staterneflts does not oir€r the other lnformatbn
ard r € do not ooress any aorm of as$r#l(e conclusion the{eon.

(,
at)

g.

In cooaecthn witi our ardlt of th€ consolidated ard separate financial staEflrents, ou. responsibrlity is
to read th€ oth€r lnfonnatix idenufid abo\E wtpn lt becomes avalhble aM, kr doing so, consiJer

tle o$er hfoffirtion ls mateda[y lreod*rt wlth th€ coBdldsted and separate llnandal
sbEmenG o{ a]' I$owledge obtalned ln the ardit, or otien /ise appears to be materially misstat€d,

vre read the oth€r hformatbn, f t}re cofflude that $erc G a material misstatement tlterein, r*

V
,c

l.
E

a.

es of ila.tagiemcnt and tho6€ Charg€d lvith Governance
and Separat€ Fmmjal Stahmefits atld Intunal Conuols

llanagem€rlt is responsiue for the pepa.atiofi ard fair presentation ot fie
sbtements ot the G.oup and also separate linancial sEternents of the Eank in
as explained in note no. 21, aod fo. sudl lrtefllal contrcl as managerneot determines is

for the conEoaidated *$
consolidated Onu*,$+

acrordarre with IFRSN

t

I
llJlB
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locations daiv and tl€ €llarEe on rubrnated
and IT d€p€ndent minual controb.

Our ffeas ot audlt foo$ included mastef data
managemgt, oser aGs managern€nt and
d€ reioper aacess to the producfoo envlronmert
and dlanges !o t€ IT envlrmrlenl Among
others, Lhese are key b ersuring operaung
en€cttveness of IT deperdent applkatix-based
conds.

IT general conEols (logkal ascess, charE€s
manag€m€nt ard aspeds of IT op€r6tionai
conto,s), thb indrjd€d testhg that requ€sts for
acs to sysEms were appropriatdy .rvig/r€d
and auttrorlzed,

W! test€d tlle &oup and the Bankt peri:dk
review of aess righE We also inspeded
r€ques8 d danges to sysE ris for apgopriate
apgoval and suthorizauoa. We coosidered the
snk9l erwiromn€nt rdaury to \rdircus
lnterfaces, @flrigur*ifi and o$ler appfidatiofi
la)rer cDntrols identllbd as kel, b our audiL

where dettcterraies rryere identified, !l€ tested
cornpensating controls ( performd alt€rnate
ploc€dures. In addliion, we understood where
rcievanq dranges were made b the JT
hndscape during O€ adit period and tested
those dranges that had a signilicant impa€t on
financial reportirlg.

United Comme rcial Bank pLC 
U nited Com

mpanySecrehry
mercial Bank plC

United Commercial Bank pLC
PriDr Fi0rlce C! p(il Mllrgrmrnl Limitcd

Our

reqrlrcd to cornmur$cate th€ mattef b tho6c cfiarg€d with governance.
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enabl€ the prepBratioo of coflsolldated and separate finarEhl statersts that are free frsn materlal
misstalernent, whether due to frald or enor. The Bank Cofipany Act, 1991 (as amended up to date)
and the Baogladesh Bank regulations require the llanagetneot to eflsure effedtre internal audit
internal contml and .isk marEg€ment funclbns of the Group ard the Bank. Tlte manageneit 15 also
.equired to make a self-assessmmt on the €fiectiveness of anti-frard ioternal cfitrols and report to
Bangladesh gank ff instancer of traud and forgEri€5.

ln pr€paring the consolHatad and separate frlaflcal siatern€nts, anagemmt i5 rcJpon'ible lor
ass€ssing the Grcupt ard th€ Ba*s aulity b conlnue as a golng !ficefl, disrlo6ing, as applicabh,
matErs rehted to goirE oncem ard using th€ golng aoncern bash ot accolJndrg unhss nEnag€ment
eiaher intends to lhuHaE tie Gll3up arid the Bank or to ceas8 operatifis, oa has no realHc alt€rnatle
but b do so.

those drarg€d wlth gov€rnance ar€ rqonsibl€ for orcrs€dng the Gmu/s and tE Banlcs financhl
rEportiE process.

Audib/g Itespordbilltles for tte Audlt ot thc Cor6orlditld and Scparate Flnardal
St t fllGnb

Our objedives ore to obtain reasonable ass.rrence about whettEr tlle cansolldatcd .nd sepaBte
financial stalement5 as d !,rhole are tree from maErhl misstaternent, whetlEi due !o fraud or enor,
and b lssue ar audito/s repoft Ulat lncludes our opinbn. ReiJoflable assuraoc€ is a hlh lwel of
aserrance, hrt is not a guarantee Ulat an audlt co.dKted in a@{darr€ wi$ ISA5 will altia},s detert
a mated.l missrtement $hen lt sdsts, l'lissbt€me'lts (an arise ftorn frald or efior aad ar€ cDrxiiered
mate.ial if, indiyidually or in Sre aggregate, they @uH reasonably be expeded to io&rglce the
economic decisiorE ot users talen on ltte basis of tllese aonsolilated ard separate ffoa.Ei.l daEfl€nt5.

As part of an aLdit tn ac.Drdance with ISAS, l€ e(erdse pmesdo{rd judgenErt and ruintain
pnfesimd sk€ttlctsm thrDugho.t Ure audlt. We aEo.

Identfy and assess ttre rlsks of material misstatqnent of the coisotdat€d and Jeparat€ fnallcial
stat€ments, whethet due !o fta.ld or eror, de4ln aod parform rudit procedures reeonsive b
Blose risks, and 6trin audlt evidence hrt ts s|J6cieflt and aFprcFiaE b Fwide a basis fot
our opiniq. The risk of not d€tecti.B a mat€rial r s$temerlt re$,ting trarn kaud k higtrer
than for one resulting iorn eflsr, as fraud rEy ht/olte €ol[rirn, fu!€ry, htenticnalofirsdonq
misrepreseoEtions, or $€ orerlde of lntsrEl cor*ol.
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l.

Obtain an under*arding of InEmal conbol rdevant !o the adit in o{der to desbr a$dlt
procadures that ar€ appropriate in the ciromstanG.

Evaluate the approgiateness of acourtjrq polki{r5 us€d and the lcaso,lableness of acoounting
estinates and rdaH dlsdoglr€s rnade by m.nag.rr|cnl

Coidud€ on the app.oprbterEss ot managcfislfs use of th€ gotrE con€ern baCs of ffiununC
and, based ofl the audit eridance obhirEd, ufutEr a matedal uncrrtainty exists retated to
events or. condltiorE that msy ca5t slgrlfiart dq.tt on the Groq/s and Sarat aHllty b adltinue
as a going concem. lf v,€ coodude that a maEdC uicerbinty gdsts, ur are Gquircd b draw
attention ln our audkD/s r@rt !o the related dsdqtlls ln Sl. @lso&rdted rnd separate
fiMndal SEmerts or, lf sudr dbdosures are trtadaquate, to madfy our opnicn, OI
condudoff are based m tile aldtt e{d€re obtal.Ed up to the daE of our audlto/s repo.t
Ho$rever, fiJtur€ events or condltbos m:y cause dl€ 6roup and tie Btnt to @se b coaldn€
as a going concem.

Ei.aluate tlle overall prcsenEtion, sttudure ard cofltent of Ele consolidated ard
linanclal statern€nts, lndding the disclosu.es, and v/t|ether tlp consotidated and

s€p€ra!e
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fimndal sbtemenE r$resert he undervrlg Eansacthrs arld e!.erts in a manner $|at nchieves
hlr tresefltauon,

Obbln $fficier,t appropriate adit eviderre regardir€ the financial lnfonrBtion of Ole entities or
busioess adhrides yiiS n the Group to €reress an odnion on th€ mnsolldated nnsnciat
statemenE, We are respondble fd tre direction, supe.rvision and performarKe of lhe audit. We
rernaln schly responsiue for oiJr audit oFinbn.

We conriJnicdte with trc6e charg€d vvlth EovenBnce regardillg, amorg otier matters, the Caoned
scope and timir$ of the audl ard signifrcant audit ffdirEs, irdudtng any ggnifiGnt d€fid€nci€s in
lnt€rnal conBol that we ldentifi durirE our adt.

We abo prc\,de tho* ctrrg€d witi governan€e I'Ji$ a statemeflt that !w tEve cqnpli€d wfi relevant
ethkal requlrements r€Erding lndep€lid€nce, ard to communaale wtth them aI rdationshlps and
oth€r matters that rnay r@naw b€ ts6ugitt !c b€ar o.) 0or lndep€rdence, aft, wtt€re applicade,
reiated sdeguards.

F om tha matt€rs 6anmunkated $/i$ 6ose dla€€d wiur qiordnance? we determin€ [lo6e rnatts5
that w€re of most sbniffarcs ln $e audk ot the aorEofidated ard separale flnardal stDtements of
the orent p€rrod ard a.€ tlErefure $e key adit matters. We descrbe ti€se matteG in our alditot"s
,@rt unhss law or rEgulathr prcdudes pubIc dsdoflre abqJt the matts, or when, in extr€rnely
rarg clrq,Jm*anc€s. $t€ d€iermine that a mauer $o{rH not be coomunkated in our repo.t becuse
the adr/e.s€ consqLrsnces of doirE so wouu reasonabv be c)(peded to ogtrveigh Sle puHk irterest
bemiE of sudr comm|.nbdorL

R@rt otr Otller Llgal rtrd Rcgrditgry Rlqulrqn€ntr

In accordance with U:e @.Ipanks Act, 199, Sre Seq,rddes ard ErdrarBe Rules, 2020, th€ Bank
CompaEy Ad, 1991 (8s amefded up to date) afld Ure ruks ard regutstions is$ed by Eangtadesh
Eanl! we also report 6Bh

(l) tti€ have obbined aI the lnlbmatlon ard explanatioos $fiich b t le best of our knor,iedge
arE belief were n€cessary for ttE purpose ot our atdit and made due v€rificauon th€reoi

(ii) b ttle eftent noted dJring the coirrse ot ou. audit rB{k p€rfurmed oo tie basis stated uoder
tile Ardib.'s R€spstsluttles fur the &rdlt of $e Onsotuated aM Separate Financbl
stt€menb secton b lbrmi|rg the above odnion on the onsdHaEd finandat siaEm€nts of
the Group ard ti€ s€parate finrndal stateflients oa the Sank ad qEidering &e reporb of
$e tlanagsnent to Bang[ade$ Bank on arti-fraud interral mntds and ln$ances of fraud
and forg€ties as stabd uMer the Manag€menfs Respoisibllity for the finandal stateme s
ard internal oonuol:

(a) lnternal ,udiL anbmal conboland Gk manaqem€nt anarqements of the Grolg and the
Bank as dlscbsed ln he finardal statements app€ared b be materially a@uate;Ii<

-o=EPfi
^ rtiE
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(b) ndtlrg has corp b ou. atientior regardlrE .nat€ri6l lnstances of forg€ry or iregularity
or adminlstratke enDr ard o(eptbfl or aoythlng detrkn€ntal commttted by empoyees

r' of the Group and tl€ Bank;

co.rsolldated financbl staterEnts oF the Bank indude 04 (four) subsld,artes,
Stock B.okerdg€ Urdted, UCB In'cstmen! Umlted, LJCg Asset tbnagement
Flntedr Cornpany Llmlted whkh reflect btal asseis of BOT 9,912 mlllbn, BOT
BDT 1,102 millbn, BOT 1,665 milioo respediyely a! at 3l December 2022 and
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Signed for & or behalf ot
ACr{/ll

Chartar€d Accountar*s

;;,/.llNlril:.:iii['{,

of Wl L,zn mi{ion, 8OT i23 milliofl, SDT 56 milllon, BOT 202 muiql r€spectir/€ly tor the
yerar a'rded 2022-

(iv) in our opinion, proper book ot acount as r€quired by law have beefl kept by the Group and
&e Eank so Far ffi it appearcd frcm our e€minatcn ot tho6e bods;

(v) ere re(ods ard stat€menb submitH by the bran&es have been propely mahtained and
consolidat€d in the financbl sbEnents;

(vi) 0!e corEofidahd bglarce sM and coosolklated pofft and loss account 69rth€r with &e
ann€xed notes deaft yrith by $e report arE in agr€emeit vyith th! books c, acaDunt md
retums;

(vr, $e ependillres inqjrcd u,se f6 fie pueose of Ele Group! ard dle Eanl(s h,rsln€ss icr
&e pedod;

{vir) f€ consolidated Enancial statem€nts o, $c C*urp snd Ur separ.te fioarKhl sbtefiEnts of
fie Banl ha1€ b€€n drat$ up h cdltormlt} with pr€yrinng rules, r€gdatbns and accounthg
st ndar& as €,elaln€d h mEs 2.10.52 ard 2.1.1 as 1r€ll rs d.ted glldane issued by
&nglad€$ &nk;

(ix) .dequate pIn tsioos hare beefl made fu lorns ard advances and oth€r 6s.ts whldr arr in
ow qplnbn, doubtfiJl ot r€co\rery;

(x) the informatbn aod e(dan8Uons Equircd by o* have bcei recetved and ixmd sadsfurtory;

(xi) r^Ie ha\€ re't ia^Ed otr€r 8{196 oa the rb&{dghEd rss€B of tle B!r* ard gert o,e, Z, u2
p€rs6n ho(lrsi and

(xiD Gpltal to Rbk{ydghted AsseB Rado (CaAR) has been .natntahed ad€q.EEly dunrB Ule
period based on pvfsh,rs albrred by Bangladesh Bank ag8hrst the rEsjrement as ery6ineO
in n*s lZ1 ard 13.6.

Dhaka,

2 5 tPR 2023
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United Commercial Bank PLC

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 Oecember 2022 to 3l December 2018

amount in BDT million

37.t2.2022 37.t2.202L 3t.72.2020 37.t2.20L9 31.12.2018

Taka Taka Taka
Particulars

I eka Taka

PROPERTIES & ASSETS

25,380.75 24,947.75 26,403.57 22,790.4LCash 30,939.72

Cash in hand (lncluding foreign currencies) 9,100.80 7,494.61 5,707.34 6,3s2.67 s,210.05

Balance with Bangladesh Bank & its agent bank(s)
(lncluding foreign currencies)

21,838.93 L7,882.t4 79,246.41 20,050.96 t7,580.7 4

20,633.13 23,063.85 12,766.95 16,808.65Balance with other banks & financial institutions 17,975.93

ln Bangladesh 4,509.39 19,568.10 79,948.24 11,090.67 15,878.99

Outside Bangladesh 13,466.55 1,065.03 3,115.57 t,616.28 929.66

930.00 1,700.00 1s0.00Money at Call on short notice 3,200.00

lnvestments 79,010.19 83,047.00 66,986.98 59,r97.44 52,157.76

Government 65,222.00 72,7 46.47 57,027.67 48,419.21 41,715.2t

70,772.22Others 13,788.19 10,300.52 9,959.37 70,442.56

loans and Advances 47 4,639.75 408,309.82 356,065.74 325,483.78 296,577.50

381,754.40 340,985.34 306,814.01Loans, Cash Credits, Overdrafts etc 451,148.36 277 ,089.6r
Bills purchased and discounted 23,49L.38 26,555.4L 15,080.40 74,669.76 L9,487.89

Fixed assets including premises, furniture & fixture t7,ot8.2a 74,624.12 M,544.22 9,084.1077,O26.5t

Other assets t3,7t4.8t 12,835.96 11,959.69 9,427.42 7 ,065.65
Non-banking assets

TotalAssets 633,306.92 570,424.85 498,578.73 449,513.76 404,634.47

TIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities:

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and
agents

to1 ,o39.7 4 89,410.44 62,240.92 42,72s.06 45,243.66

Deposits and other accounts 424,643.42 347,023.43 352,313.50 330,416.27 297,016.34

Current accounts & other accounts 92,967.52 7A,346,L1 69,33s.92 51,740.72 48,838.64

Bills Payable 1 ,016.02 8,845.27 8,280.26 9,4L4.29 7 ,520.O7

Savings Bank Deposits 85,798.09 80,659.23 70,999.74 56,6s5.94 s2,012,66

Fixed Deposits 202,075.93 2t9,773.t6 203,697 .54 206,565.91 t88,624.91

Bpa rF r ...+ifi.ates of Deposits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

f,the?-D66Aits 36,825.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Liahiliti.t 56,601.7561,405.65 44,245.79 43,608.79 3L,979.34

a@Sitities 593,128.81 533,036.02 462,440.27 415,150.11 37 4,239.34

r(edtal i(Aareholders' Equity

Paid up c$ftrl 14,062.31 72,143.91 L2,175.2t lt,595.44 10,541.31

share Premi(g 7,454.94 7,454.94 1,454.94 1,454.98 1,454.98

Statutory Reserve 75,764.31 74,555.97 t3,424.99 72,435.39 71,448.97

General Reserve 26.58 26.58 26.58 26.58 2fus8

Other Reserve 2,797.O7 2,631.85 2,792.72 2,758.36 2,N63
Retained EErinetf ,011 " r nrr lfi1'l 6,072.42 s,935.48 5,864.0s 5,092.92 ^a:r3.6ql

United Commercial Bank pLC
irnired Com

mpany secrehry
mercial Bank piC

SECTION 14: COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UCB

Draft lnformation Memorandum of
UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of BDT 3,000 Million

Managing Director
Prime FirrNc Capital MaMgrot0l [il!itcd

0.00

United Commercial Bank pLC
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40,774.11 37,388.83 35,738.51 33,363.65 30,395.13
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Total shareholders' Equity
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@ranagrng Director & CEO
Haqu€

Managi g Dircclo.
Pnm. Fil)rnll Crpir,l M.rr!.rrt tim:rrd

0.00Non controlling interest 0.00017 0.00 0.00

Total Shareholders' Equity with non-controlling interest 40,774.7r 37,388.83 35,738.51 33,363.65 30,395.13

498,578.73 449,513.76 404,634.47Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 633,306.92 570,424.85

United Commercial Bank PLC

Consolidated Profit & [oss ]qccount

As at 31 December 2022 to 31 December 2018

amount in BDT million
2022 202r 2020 2019Particulars

Taka Taka Taka Taka

lnterest lncome 32,301.60 21,984.16 27,690.58 31,336.8s 25,535.s 1

14,766.74 fi,497.66 20,269.O4 16,058.88lnterest paid on deposits and borrowings etc 71,081.47

Net lnterest lncome L5,214.t3 13,817.98 9,798.91 t7,o67.77 9,476.63

lnvestment income 5,414.47 5,646.29 6,170.68 4,898.01 4,426.44

6,466.82 4,910.r2 5,109.88 4,618.50commission, exchange and brokerage 8,899.01

Othe. Operating lncome 319.79 338.83 150.86 139.14 r39.42

Total Operating lncome (A) 30,247.40 26,269.92 2t,o90.57 2L,2A.gr 18,661.10

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salary and allowances 8,427.75 7,736.21 6,560.47 6,047.64 6,579:67

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc 1,667.49 7,747.5t 1,011.26 1,009.68 1,229.73

94.66 67.37 63.28Legalexpenses 136.05

Postage, stamps, telecommunications etc 241.21 191.89 178.46 792.21

Stationery, printing, advertisements etc. 1,943.13 2,754.98 1,489.66 1,235.01 1,131.85

Chief Executive's salary and fees 14.10 13.45 15.02 13.7 4 9.91

Directors'fees 4.33 3.34 3.s3 5.05 5.40

Auditors'fees 1-.28 1.85 1.25 1.23

Depreciation and repair of banks assets 2,t54.5L 1,859.16 1,622.23 t,447.35 803.75

Other expenses 4,474.29 3,L02.26 2,923.46 2,597.66 7,O44.7 4

Total Operating Expenses (B) 19,034.53 16,346.13 13,900.60 \2,6t7.03 lt,012.79
Profit/(Loss) before provision ( c ) = {A-B) 71,2t2.45 9,923.79 7 ,749.97 4,597.74 7,64437
Provision for Loans & Advances 5,515.51 4,391.18 2,14a.19 2,67 4.t/ 3,158.04
Provision for diminution in value of investments 646.37 -244.59 -447.42 -272.1.7

Other provisions -482.03 549.36 240.06 70.23 -379.32

TotalProvision (D) s,679.8s 4,695.95 7,946.44 3,430.80 2,506.62

Total Proiit/(Loss) before lncome taxes (C - D ) 5,533.01 5,227.44 5,243.54 5,166.98 5,141.69

Provision for Taxation 2,234.36 2,776.73 2,294.69 2,309.18 2,639.38

Current Tax 3,413.81 4,166.08 2,836.87 2,931.27 2,460.09

Deferred Tax -1,239.51 -1,389.9s -542.18 -622.02 779.29

3,298.6s 2,45t.7t 2,948.85 2,457.4O 2,502.37

*p+opdations
sft;pry*#u" 1,186.28 1,130.98 989.60 986.42 981.55r

sta rt+#.F u nd 40.24 28.51 s
/Nrff 245.97 (-

Retained Surplql nf I ]ml q r nf l
,l[!1*6.16 1,288.95 1,930.68 1,871.38 r,szo.F_

Attributable t& I "'- -
r /l nl . r ?t\?3

United Comme;ciat Bank pLC ,MD & Company Secretafl
Unired Commercial Bank piC

0.00

Consolidated lncome Statement of United Commercial Bank PLC

2018

Taka

707.72

143.22

1.95

686.40

Net Profit after Taxation

37.77

United Commcrcial Eank PLC
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Equity holders' of the Bank 1,826.16 1,288.95 1,930.68 1,871.38 L,520.76

240EC2023 +

=

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of United Commercial Bank PIC

2 4 0t[ 2023

aruk Ahammad , FCA III{ uzzaman, FCs Arif Qeputy Managing Director& CFo
llMD & Co mpany Secrehry

ng Director & CEO

1r ll

D .e)
'n62n., :75

aul Haque
s

Managing Director
Primr Fi0ance Crpital Mriagcmeit Lidkd
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Non controlling interest -0.00009 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

L,426.t6 1,288.95 1,930.68 7,47734 L,520.76

United Commercial Bank Pl-C

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the period ended 31 December 2022 to 31 December 2018

amount in BDT million
2022 20t9 2018

Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

cash tlows from operating adivities
lnterest Receipts in cash 38,346.83 33,310.95 33,166.88 35,528.36 24,992.69

lnterest Payments -16,806.03
14,277 .95 27,449.96 1t,611.38 13,432.69

Dividend Receipts 216.50 234.35 283.36

Fees & Commission Receipts in cash 5,L-16.7t 4,812.OO 3,6s7.96 3,327 .87 2,949.86
Recoveries of loans Previously written off 236.94 102.58 103.35 t69.29 267.64
Cash Payments to employees -4,657.44 -7,705.30 -6,569.33 -7,278.38 -6,589.59

Cash Payments to suppliers -5,50s.31 -3,527,41 -3,324.31 -2,997.26 -2,504.80

lncome taxes paid -4,634.24 -3,499.33 -2,551.42 -2,42a.42 -2,442.93

Receipt from other operating activities 289.06 562.48 325.09 546.11
Payment for other operating activities -4,044.t3 -2,947.40 -2,452.63 -1,582.31 -7,349.42

4,614.85
7,243.04 1,371.38 7,676.70 6,772.32

lncrease/Decrease in operatinB assets and liabilities

Statutory Deposits
16,679.99

-8,713.15 -6,596.32
2 734.25

Purchase/Sales of tradlng Securities -647.48 51.87 210.85 -1,134.22 -627.43

Loans and advances to Customers -66,327.93
57,711.46 30,402.34 28,907.05 35,525.98

Other as!ets -819.86 383.01 -3,070.04 -1,589.62 t,275.40
Deposit from banks 798.80 3,49s.51 -2,001.2s -3,O02.73 4,978.17
Deposit from customers 36,887.88 31,061.61 2s,386.60 36,557.99 14,O32.54

Other Liabilities -2,113.49 2,467.O1 5,882.34 t6.79 750.95

23,246.55 30,938.43 12,706.99
-4,655.17

fl,444.OO

Net Cash from operating activities (A)
18,631.70 23,69s.3s 11,335.61 3,020.94 11,071.68

Cash flows from investing activities
-7,1.75.31 -142.50 97.29 804.55 -97 4.61

Purc property, plant & equipment -1,635.03 -3,495.4a -t,359.87 -1,423.28 299.26
ash from investing activities (B) -2,810.40 -3,637.98 -7,262.58 -6La.72 -2,273.94

from financing activities
Recet m borrowings 19,448.18 29,642.90 19,036.96 -3,118.60 71,047.27
Sub-Or d Bond -1,820.00 -3,000.00 900.00 0.00 -3,s00.00

Dividends paid -608.76 -579.77
50.00

United Commercial Bank PLC d ired Commercial Bant PLC
United Commercial Bank pLC ta

F.
3
o.

2021 2020Particulars

189.85 335.45

765.09

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and
liabilities

9,035.52

Tidcee!1fro m Sale of Securities

^sw,1!54.13
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0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ucB'

Cash received from lssuing of Right Shares

Balance Sheet of United Commercial Bank PLC

0.00

6,493.13Net cash from financing activities (C) 9,62A.tA 26,O34.14 19,357.19 -3,058.60

-3,813.93 -1,299.20 6,759.00 -666.39 -6,a52.48(D) Net lncrease/(Decrease) in cash (A+8+C)

3,5L5.7L 1,57L.48 7,312.O7
7,787.45 1,668.75

Effects of the changes of exchange rate on cash and cash

equivalents*

cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ( E) 49,273.88 48,941.59 40,470.52 39,749.46 44,933.20

48,915.66 49,213.88 48,941.59 40,870.52 39,749.46Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (F)

Consolidated Cash and cash Equivalents at end ofthe year

Cash in hand (including foreign currencies) 9.100.80 1,498.61 5,701.34 6,3s2.61 5,210.06

21,838.93 fi,482.74 79,246.47 20,050.96 77,54O.74Balance with Eangladesh bank and its agent bank

16,808.65Balance with other banks & financial institution 1.7 ,975.93 20,633.73 23,063.85 72,766.95

3,200.00 930.00
1,700.00 150.00

Money at call on short notice

48,915.66 49,273.a8 48,941.59

United Commercial Bank Pl-C

Balance Sheet

amount in BDT million

3\.t2.20203r.72.2022 3t.72.2021 3t.r2.20t9 31.12.2018
Particulars

Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

PROPERTIES & ASSETS

25,380.18 24,947.54 26,403.42cash 30,939.03 22,790.71

Cash in hand (lncluding foreign currencies) 9,100.11 7,498.04 5,707.L7 6,3s2.46 5,209.96

Balance with Bangladesh Bank & its agent bank(s) (lncluding foreign
currencies)

21,838.93 77,882.t4 19,246.41 20,0s0.96
77 ,580.7 4

Ealance with other banks & financial institutions 76,472.05 19,409.25 20,468.43 12,123.38 16,256.t4
11 ,352.86ln Bangladesh 3,405.51 18,344.22 to,447.70 75,326.48

Outside Bangladesh 13,466.55 1,065.03 3,115.57 1,676.24

Money at Call on short notice 3,200.00 930.00
1,700.00 1s0.00

lnvestments 76,434.s6 81,387.61 65,323.45 57,800.97 50,830.84

64,706.40 72,7 46.47 57,O27.61 48,419.21 41,775.27

Others 7t,724.fi 4,647.14 8,295.84 9,381.75 9,115.63
foans and Advances 468,605.10 402,44t.74 351,683.56 322,728.14 294,677.94

Loans, Cash Credits, Overdrafts etc 445,l 3.71 37s,926.32 336,603.16 304,058.38 215,184.05

Bills purchased and discounted 23,497.38 26,555.41 15,080.40 18,669.76 19,487.89

Fixed assets including premises, furniture & fixture L4,579.41 L4,727.L9 14,539.96 ,4,454.64 9,056.11

9![eq€6F 20,646.67 L4,734.25 15,413.97 tt,549.57 8,993.36

: Non-banking assets

aTotatAw 624,O76.43 565,314.21 493,306.95 446,760.12 402,749.1O
;filgrIrrrss$66Jt4?rrar

\iEhitities: -"aJ

Borrowings from other banks, tinancial institutions and agents 103,891.89 8s,803.63 s9,399.13 40,911.33 44,694.26

Deposits and other accounts 426,O24.44 389,900.72 353,981.62 330,632.23 297,!72.42
Current accounts & other accounts 94,312.55 41,223.06 77,004.04 57,996.09 +S\?s.rzl

f
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ng Director & CEo

Faruk Ahammad
ueputy Mairagjng Directo
United Commercia, Ba

Un,ted Comm;rciat Bank piC
United Commercial BanK PLC

40,470.52 39,749.46

As at 31 December 2022 to 31 December 2018

929.66

Government

2{ 0E[ 20n 
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.RD
Mdlilezaul Haque
Managing Director

Prim. tintnrie Capilal Mtnrgemrnl Iin ited
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Bills Payable

Profit and Loss Account of United Commercial Bank PIC

Faruk Ahammad, CA AT]\, uzzaman, FCS Arif QuDMD&C ompany Secretary
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Managing Director
Irimc finrmc Crpilal Midaleocl] t Irm ttr d

Savings Eank Deposits 85,798.09 80,659.23 70,999.74 56,655.94 52,O32.66

Fixed Deposits 202,075.93 219,713.16 203,697.s4 206,56s.91 188,624.97

Bearer Certificates of Deposits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00Other Deposits 36,825.86 0.00

Other Liabilities 57,199.U 52,t67.85 44,859.97 4?.,433.54 30,947.77

Total Liabilities 587,120.t7 527,472-20 458,240.72 413,977.tO 372,444.45

Capital / Shareholders' Equity

Paid up Capital 74,062.37 12,743.97 t2,t75.27 71,595.44 10,541.31

Share Premium 1,454.98 1,454.98 7,454.94 1,454.98 1,454,98

15,730.18 14,546.97 t3,424.99 72,435.19 7L,448.97Statutory Reserve

General Reserve 26.58 26.s8 26.58 26.58 26.58

2,797.07 2,637.85 2,792.72 2,758.36 2,647.63
Retained Earnings 6,885.49 5,997.66 5,797.76 4,512.28 3,7a0,79
Total Shareholders' Equity 40,956.66 37,442.0t 3s,066.23 x2,743.02 29,900.25
Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 624,O76.43 565,314.21 493,306.95 446,760.t2 402,7 49.10

Consolidated Profit & Loss AEcount

As at 31 December 2022 to 31 December 2018

amount in B0T million
202L 2020 2019 2018Particulars

Taka Taka Taka

Interest lncome 31,684.84 27,323.6s 21,306.96 30,944.75 25,266.93
lnterest paid on deposits and borrowings etc 17,010.39 13,927.26 77,796.18 20,150.94 16,024.50

Net lnterest lncome 14,674.45 13,396.39 9,510.78 t0,797.47 9,242.44

lnvestment income 5,685,11 s,463.61 6,13s.36 4,8s3.22 4,430.77
commisrion, exchange and brokerage 7,899.47 5,739.L7 4,693.98 4,920.06 4,480.62
Other Operating lncome 263.10 220.57 148.09 137.80 138.76

Total Operating lncome (A) 24,522.74 24,419.7 4 20,444.2L 20,708.89 74,292.52

Salary and allowances 7,658.70 7,166.52 6,354.11 5,912.08 6,491.61
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc 7,623.56 t,122.45 995.87 998.00 7,226.75

Legalexpenses 94.59 724.65 94.18 67.27 63.15

Postage, stamps, telecommunications etc 17 4.62 189.26

Stationery, printing, advertisements etc 7,694.26 1,249.t5 7,482.a2 1,227.39 1,721.86

-ChlE tui{lrsalary and fees 14.10 13.45 15.02 73.7 4 L91
dffiors'fees 2.59 2.71 3.46

. nudi@q'fees 7.73 1.15 7.73 1.15 1.15

ffi.ion and repair of banks assets 2,073.6r t,822.t9 1,609.94 1,431.67 799.96
'€ther e@rses 3,670.80 2,945.32 2,900.05 2,580.30 1,035.10

Total Op'8zrating Expenses (B) t7,051.97 14,636.03 13,631.10 12,430.21 L0,902.27
Profit/{Loss) before provision (C I = (A-B) L7,464.77 10,183.71 6,457.72 8,27a.6a 7,390.25
Provision for Loans & Advances 5,422.69 4,2s9.49 2,107.29 2,626.56 3,154.6€
Provision for diminution in value of investments -23s.22 -434.25 673.47 -292,S4\
qtheJ ptoXFleps ? i IlEt ?023 -442.03^ . ^-149^11

240.06 -37N

United Commercial Bank pl,C

)

a

0.00 0.00

Other Reserve

Urited Commercial Bank PLC

20?2

Taka Taka

OPERATING EXPENSES

219.09 184.56 141.98

3.54 5.40

612.04

46.57

Deputy Managing Director & CF0

United Commercial Bank PLC

United Commercial Bank pLC
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Total Provision {D) 5,552.70 4,573.81 1,909.10 3,345.50 2,482.49

Total Profit/(Loss) before lncome taxes (C - D ) 5,976.O7 5,609.91 4,944.O1 4,932.09 4,907.76

1,892.06 2,432.73 2,090.82 2,160.05 2,538.81

Current Tax 3,133.38 3,823.48 2,632.95 2,743.08 2,360.49
-542.73oeferred Tax 7,241.32 -7,390.74 -623.03 774.72

Net Profit after Taxation 4,O24.OL 3,t77.77 2,857.20 2,772.04 2,365.9s

Appropriations

Statutory Reserve 1,183.21 7,721.94 989.60 986.42 981.55
Start-Up Fund 40.24 31.77 24.57

CSR Fund 245.97

Retained Surplus 2,554.59 2,O23.42 1,839.02 1,745.62 7,387.40

4,024.O7 3,t77.17 2,857.20 2,772.O4 2,368.95

United Commercial Bank PLC

For the period ended 31 Oecember 2022 to 31 December 2018

amount ln B0T million

30.06.2022 202L

Taka I aka Taka Taka

cash flows from operating activities
lnterest receipts 37,O14.27 32,470.71 32,708.44 35,723.54 24,124.12
lnterest payments -16,514.79 -74,078.15 -21,279.66 -17 ,536.52 '13,398.31

Dividend receipt 714.57 260.05 303.13
Fees & Commision receipt 4,343.77 4,t67 .69 3,381.91 3,737.99 2,47r.87
Recoveries from previously written off advances 236.94 102.58 103.35 769.29

Payments to employees -7,4 .80 -1,t79.97 -6,369.19 -7,142.81 -6,501.52
Payments to suppliers -4,792.36 -3,240.24 -3,290.80 -2,973.56 -2,495.99
Payment for Advance lncome Tax -4,392.74 -3,285.96 -2,392.31 -2,379.84 -2,361-.32

Receipt from other operating activities 212.8a 544.01 302.27 582.03
Payment for other activities -3,962.64 -2,89s.28 -2,426.33 -t,563.37 -1,339.s7

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 5,160.68
6,831.52 1,185.98 7,457.O4 6,592.08

lncrease/Decrease in operating assets and liabilities
Statutory Deposit 9,035.52 -16,679.99 -8,713.t5 -6,596.32 -2,734.25
Purchase/Sale of trading securities -390.64 -118.38 481.10 -1,070.68 -142.2a
Loans and advances to customers -66,123.36 -50,798.18 -24,955.42 -28,0s6.20 -35,199.85
Other Assets -1,900.25 -2,326.62 -7,797.49 -75.27

Deposit from Banks 798.80 3,495.51 -2,001.2s -3,002.73 4,974.77
Deposit from customers 3s)2a.92 32,247.23 25,312.57 36,616.58 13,998.56

-1,668.99 2,885.99 3,728.s3 29.54 2,603.20
{ <?,,
i- 4b -24,920.OO -31,294.43 -13,037.30 -3,477.30 -t7,o7t.t3
)*ffi 6;8qa{{]s activities (A) -24,462.aL -11,851.32 3,579.74 -10,479.06
'eelAjlows from i ng activities
Purchase/5ale of Securities -10.40 100.00 804.55
Purchaseof PJo-pe rt),^P la nt & Equipments -1,490.08 -1,250.60 -1,349.58 -1,358.8s -1,277.20
rrretcautrllhh{llJtlnsactivities(B} ?1 lEt2C23 r2r0flt98r nr11,261.00 -1,249.s8 -554.30

^iQlss.7s

g<
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*di
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aruk Ahamm ad, FCA ATtrl Ta uzzaman, FCS Arieputy Manag! ng Director & CFo DMD & Co mpany Secre tary ing Director & CEs o
Md ezaul Haqu e
Managing Director ._bi--'

Itnited Commerciat Eank pLC i,nited Com mercial Bank PrC United Commercial Bank Ptc
Pir! Fi[aDc. Clpilal Mrnalrnr rt Liritffi

Cash Flow Statement of United Commercial Bank PLC

Provision for Taxation

rI l T

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Particulars 2020 2019 20la
Taka

149.09 206.57

267.64

64t.75

:OiE-er fitqEe<--=.-

-19,759.33

,532.90 -982.55
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Cash flows from financing activities

tct l{ 0t[ 24 lEt,2023 24 l,ET,M

aruk AhAMMAd, FCA ATT' iduzzaman, FCS Arif

o
tr
J

tr

4 qtt,2t23 )

Doputy Ma 6ging Dhector & CFO
United Commercial Bank pLC

DMD &
ft

Company Secretary anaging Director &cEo .i
i,-,-r-prc r!K*rr^l?""

Managing Director
Prine litrice Crpru I [1ani]grr!0t Lioilcd

Receipt from borrowing 19,908.26 29,404.51 t7,547.ao -3,7a2.93 10,847.47
5ub-Ordinated Bond -1,820.00 -3,000.00 900.00 0.00 -3,500.00

Cash received f.om issuing of Right shares 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Cash dividend payment -608.76 -579.77 -1,054.13
Net cash from financing activities (C) 18,088.26 25,795.75 17,908.03 -3,742.93 6,293.73
(D) Net lncrease/(Decrease) in cash (A+B+C) -3,694.0s 7L.94 4,407.73 -757.50 -6,445.O7

Effects of the changes of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalentsr 3,515.71 1,571.48 1,372.01 1,747.45 1-,668.75

cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ( E) 47 ,989.43 46,346.07 40,226.80 39,196.85 43,913.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (F) 47,8rt.09 47 ,989.4X 46,346.OL 40,226.4O 39,196.85

Cash and cash Equivalents at end ofthe year

Cash in hand (including foreign currencies) 9,100.11 7 ,498.O4 5,701.17 6,352.46 5,209.95
Balance with Bangladesh bank and its agent bank 21,838.93 17,842.14 t9,246.4r 20,050.96 t7,580.7 4

Balance with other banks & financialinstitution 76,872.45 79,409,25 20,468.43 72,123.34 16,256.1.4

Money at call on short notice 3,200.00 930.00 1,700.00 150.00

47,81t.09 47,949.43 46,346.O1 40,226.4O 39,196.8s

Sl No, Particulars 2027 2020 2019 2018

1 N/A N/A N/A N/A

2 N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

4 Debt to Equity Ratio 72.94 72.7 7 L7.79 11.43

Debt to total assets ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Accounts receivable turnover ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A

8 N/A

9

10 Return on assets (annualized) o.67 0.6 0.65

11 Return on equity (annualized) 70.27 8.7 6 8.4

72 Earnings per share (EPS) (annualized) 2.86 2.49 2.23 2.28 2.O4

13 Net asset value (NAV) per share 29.13 29.29 28.8 28.27

74 Net operating cash flow to Net income N/A

Js Total debt to tangible asset ratio N/A N/A

4^ NPL 5.99 4.47 2.55 3.63 6.79

{aflQl Adequacy Ratio 13.06 73.64 74.92 14.68E

Unlred CommercialBank PTC U nited Commercial

SECTION 15: COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL RATIOS OF UCB

o
trlo

2

0.00

2022

Current ratio

Quick ratio

3 Break-Even Point (including financial costs)

11.34

5

6

7 Gross Margin ratio N/A N/A

Operating lncome ratio

Net lncome ratio

0.61 0.62

8.42 8.84

28.36

!2.9
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SECTION 15: CREDIT RATING REPORT OF THE ISSUE

Credit Rating of the lssue:

Credlt RatinB Report of the lssuer:

Credit Rating Report for UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond, issued by Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL) is

annexed to this lnformation Memorandum. Please check Annexure - 2.

ECRL Default Studies 2021

Default Summary by Rating Category

2411
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2023
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2024
A+B Stable

07 May

2023

06 May

2024
ST2 ECRL Stable

iriiteo Commercial Bank PLC Uni
naging Oirector I CEO
red Commercial gank pLC

Prime [inan it rlal la

SECTION 17: LATEST DEFAULT MATRIX AND TRANSITION STATISTICS OF CRC
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Date of
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Surveillance

Deputy Maneging Director & CFO
United Commerciat Bank pLC
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Cumulative Default Rate by Rating Band

Yedt X Yeot 2 Yect 3 Yeqt 6 Ye* 7 Ye$ 3

AAA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.Ay; 0.Ar4 0.096 0.094 0.0./; A.A% 0.094

AA 0.0% a.a96 0.094 0.0% 0.09/a 0.0% a.0% a.a96 a.a% a.a%

A 4.1% 0.1% 0.294 0.2% 0.3"/; 0.i% 0.3% 0.i% 0.3% 0.391

BBB 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% a.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%

B & Lower 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% i.o% i.o% 3.0% i.0% 3.0%

Hiqh Grode 0.0% O.1% A.19, 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2y' 0.2t6 0.291

High Yield 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.i% 0.3yo

Allcaryotate 0-1% a.1% a.1"/; 0.2% 0.2% 0.2."/" 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%

Rating Transition Matrix (2011 - 2021)

7-year cumulative rating transition matrix
Frc.n I To AAA L{ A BBB BB B C Deiaulf

96.20k
96.6% 7.4%

123%
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2-vear cumulative rating transition matrix
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Prime Bank lnvestment Ltd (PBIL) a subsidiary of Prime Bank Ltd started its journey from April 28, 2010

vide certificate of incorporation no. C-84266/70.lt is one of the leading investment banks of the country
with a paid-up capital of BDT 3,000 million. The PBIL has been operating actively in the capital market

since 2006 and its management has over one decade of experience. The Board of Directors consists of
highly experienced scholars including economists and the people with entrepreneurialtrack records and

business development.

The functions of investment banking were separated from Prime Bank Limited by forming a subsidiary

company in terms of Bangladesh Bank's BRPD circular no. 12 dated 14 October 2009. Bangladesh

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) thereafter issued a full-fledged merchant banking license in

favor of Prime Bank lnvestment Limited, vide letter no. SEC/Re8/MB/SUB /2070/03/20g dated 02 June

2010 with effect from 01June 2010.

Being one ofthe largest investment banks in the country, the PBIL offers various services such as mergers

and acquisitions related services, business valuation, syndication and structured finance, issue

management, corporate advisory, trustee, underwriting and portfolio management services to its clients.

Considering its strong clientele base, expertise of its management and support from the parent company,

the PBIL has the competitive advantage in providing investment banking-related services to its clients.

(as on December 31,2022)

(as on December 31,2022)
Name of Shareholder's

1, Prime Bank Limited 299,999,994 99.99
2 Others 06 0.01

Total 300,000,000 100

vi) Portfolio Management Service

a. Non-Discretionary Portfolio
Margin Account
Non-Margin Account

cretionary Portfolio
Nita

ii. Doloncha pa

lssue Management Service

a. lnitial Public Offering (lPO)

2f0 q[13 tssues (Rr) 
2 4 0tC 2023

2d 0t[ 20n 20n

is

e

aruk Ahammad, FCA
Deputy Menaging Director & CFO
United Commerciat Bank pLC

adri
Managing Director & CE0
United Commercial Bank pLC

,e)
Md. R6zdul Haque
Managing Director
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d

6.:.

!s
+ v

...<

c

!,

9
J G

.)
lno i,

a2 4 0EC
J)

.lT du
OMD &

zzaman, FCS

ny Secrctary

F,t

Authorized Capital BDT 10,000,000,000
Paid-up-Capital BDT 3,000,000,000
Net worth BDr 2,942,798,756

Untted Commercial Bank piC
Pime Iiu0ce Capitil Mrlagrt!!nt Li0i

SECTION 18: DESCRIPTION OFTRUSTEE

Shareholding Position of the PBIL:

Business Activities of the PBIL:

Nos. of Shares[sr- ]
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c. Repeat Public Offering (RPO)

d. Registrar to The lssue

e. Underwriting
f. Private Placement

viii) Corporate Advisory Service

a. Capital Raising & Restructuring

b. RJSC Related Services

c. Lead Arrangement
d. CorporateGovernanceStructuring

ix) lnvestment Ba nking Service

a. Local& Foreign Loan Syndication

b. Merger & Acquisitions

c. lssuance of Bond

(1) Board of Directors of the PBIL:

(2) Status of Debt Securities issued under the trusteeship of PBIL:

2T BET

Faruk Ahammad, ,\Tl\t duzzaman, FCS Ari

?

1r $tt,?s8

d)
Md. R#ul Ht)(1D & Co p anaging Director & CE0

aque

Managing Director
\J n

sl. Name of the Director Position
Mr.CQKMustaqAhmed Chairman

2 Mr. Azam J Chowdhury Director
3 Dr.GMKhurshidAlam Director

Mr. Sha msudd in Ahmad Phd Director
5 Director

l

North-West

Generation
Company
Limited

Non-Convertible
Red€emable
S ubordinated Bond

07 years
Nov
20,

20r9
Nov t0,202t I0.000 t.000

Network
Limited

Zero Coupon Bond 05 r€ars

July
21.

2020

15 crore
subscribed as

on Dec 22,
2021

1,000 30 120

l Midland Bank
Limircd>

Fully Redeernable
Non{onvertible
Non-Listed
Unseaured Zero-
Coupon Bond

05 years 5,060 5,060

Not
Approved

yet b)
BSEC

fxtu
Unsecure4 Non-
Convertible and Fully
Redeemable, Fired
Rate Zero Coupon
Bond

05 years 4.000 4,000

Not
Approved

yet by
BSEC

)
City Auto Rice
and Dal Mills
Limited

Unsecured and Non-
Convertible Zero
Coupon Bond

03 years 3.500 3.000

Not

v;b,&
BSEC\-

Lll
Issue
Date

Dxte of
completion of

tbe
subscription

Repayncnt
amoont Outstanding Remarlig

Name ofthe
lssucr

trt turity
Pcriod

inited Comme

any Secrutary
rcial Eank pLC

Prim. Fi0an(e Crpilil llrrlg'n'01

1

4

Mr. Hassan O. Rashid

lhlue of
d.bt

(Million
BDT)

Name of th€ Isirest-

9,000
Palment

on time

Partially
subscribed

2t 0t[

Doputy Maneging Dkector & CFO

LJnited Commerclal Bank PLC
United Commercial Bank PLC
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SECTION 19: MODUS OPERANDI OF THE ISSUE

Modus Operandi of the lssue has been incorporated form the Trust Deed executed between the lssuer
(United Commercial Bank P[C] and the Trustee (Prime Bank tnvestment Limited)

A lication Procedure
The Bonds shall be distributed 90% through private placement and !0% under public issue. Each lnvestor
(Bondholder) under private placement shall enter into a separate Subscription Agreement with respect
to their investment with the lssuer and shall be bound by the terms and conditions set out in the
Subscription Agreement and the Trust Deed containing in details of the rights and obli8ations of the
lnvestor(s).

Allotment
On the Date of Allotment, the lssuer shall allot a nd issue the Bonds in favour ofthe respective Bond holder.
The Bonds will be allotted according to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt
Securities) Rules, 2021.

Refund
Not applicable at the time of lssuance. However, subjectto receiving proper consent from the regulatory
authorities Refund in relation to the subscription may be possible upon mutual agreement between the
lssuer and each Bondholder.

Transfer
Bonds are transferable subject to the Terms and Conditions set out in this Trust Deed

re rpetual securities in respect of which there is no fixed redemption date and the lssuer shall only
to repay them in accorda nce with the Condition 8 (Exercise Of Coll-Option By The lssuerl by

ing its call option

at s conversion or exchan eo ton

o

a
'lol'

E

Bo s are unsecured and contingent-convertible subject to the Terms and Conditions set out in this Trust

CALL-OPTION features

Deed.

E +qh^Bp-
r,rL lir

nd shall be redeemed
23

CA 4T[I Ta

DMD &
United C

,e)
Md. Fkzdul Haqu s

2 4 [Et,2023

Com

zzaman, FCS Arif n
Secretary

I Bank PLC
anaging Dhector & CEO

Managing Director

E
.-.

Faruk Ahammad.
ueput"v I,!;- - lr:.""E ! i.6616r
Unired C6n1;pa;6. : .-;j6

& cFO
K PLC

ommercia
United Commerciat Bank pLC

Prim! finanre Ctpihl M,lrgrtrent Limited

5

Due Diligence Certificate by the Trustee
Due Diligence Certificate of the Trustee is annexed to this lnformation Memorandum. Please check
Annexure - ll.

Trading or listins with the stock exchanse:
The Bonds shall be listed with stock exchange(s) and the trading or listing procedure ofthe Bonds shall be
allowed in accordance with and as per, instructions from the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC).

Repavment and Redemption features of the Bond
The coupon on the Bonds shall be paid on semi-annual basis on the Coupon Payment Dates, as set out in
the Condition attached in Schedule 1 (Terms ond Conditions of the Bonds) of this Trust Deed. The Bonds

{"
s

I in accordance with Condition I lExercise of Coll-Option by the lssuerl.
24 0EC2t13 

24 0Etzon
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TRANSFER OF BONDS
Bonds are transferable subject to the terms and conditions set out in the Bond Documents. Each Bond
shall be transferred in accordance with Condition 4 (Tronsfer of Bonds) and the CDBL Bye Laws.

Faruk Ah ammad, FCA {TItl uzzaman, FCS Arif

1

?

Dsputy Managing Director & CFO
Uniled Conrmercial Bank pLC

ny Secretary ag ing Dircctor & CEO
,ll,4D & co
,, iierl Com

Particulars

ladesh Securities & Excha Commission Fees: 3,000,000
Application Fee Fixed 10,000 10,000
Consent Fee 0.10% on the issue size 3,000,000 3,000,000

B, Fees related to with the Stock Exchange(s): 3,1oo,Ooo

lM Scrutiny Fee to
Stock Exchange(s)

Fixed 50,000 100,000

0.25% up to BDT 10 crore of size of the issue 250,000 s00,000

lnitial Listing Fee to
Stock Exchange(s)

0.15% on the rest of size of the issue (Fees will be minimum BDT

50,000 and maximum BDT 10,000,000 for each exchange)
600,000 1,200,000

Annual Listing Fee

lor Stock
Exchange(s)

0.05% on BDT 100 Crore of size of the issue 150,000 300,000

ESS Fee lor
subscription process

Fixed 1,000,000 1,000,000

C. CDBL Fees and Ex esi 978,500
Security Fee Fixed (Refundable) 500,000 500,000
Documentation Fee Fixed 2,500 2,500

BDT 5,000 up to BDT 5 Crore lssue Size

BDT 10,000 up to BDT 20 Crore lssue SizeAnnual Fee

BDT 20,000 above BOT 20 Crore lssue Size 20,000

20,000

Distribution Fee 450,000 4s0,000
Tk.500 Per Month 6,000 6,000

D. Fees related to the tssue
24,054,000

lssue Management
Fee

900,000 900,000

VAT on lssue
Management Fee

15% of the Fund Arrangement Fee 135,000 135,000

Fund Arrangement
Fee

0.4% ofthe issue size 18,000,000

ee

VAT on Fund
15% of the Fund Arrangement Fee 2,700,000 2,700,000

on Un

mtss on
iting

U nde

Co
Commission 0.1% on underwritten amount 60,000 60,000

15% on the total Underwriting Commission 9,000

lnitial 300.000 300,000

RegulatoryTrustee
Fee

Application Fee: 50,000, Registration Fee: 100,000, Annual Fee:

50,000 (Not included in calculation, is payable yearly during the
tenure of the bond)

200,000 200,000

i[fi1m"
Deed

n Fee
0.1% of the total issue size and maxirauCrfRtl' 1,000,000 3,000,000

.\
1,000,0s

mercial Bank pLC
Unitcd Commercial Bank pLC
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SICTION 20: DETAItS OF FEES STRUCTURE AND EXPENSES

,a)
Md. (e./aul Haque

.t

Managing Director

Basis of Calculation Amount in BDT

A.

0.00015 of the issue size

Connection Fee

lnitial

18,000,000

9,000

Trustee Fee

Pime Filmcr Clpiul Maiag.merl Limrud
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Credit Rating Fee lnitial 100,000 100,000

SECTION 21: ADDITIONAL DISCTURSERS FOR lM UNDER PUBLIC ISSUE

Particulars of the Public lssue:L

Lawyer Fee lnitial 150,000 150,000

Miscellaneous certificates and others if applicable s00,000 500,000

lssuer United commercial Bank PLc (the "Bank"/ the "lssuer")

Name of the lnstrument UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond

lssue Type Unsecured, Contingent-Convertible, Fully paid up, Non-Cumulative, BASEL lll

compliant, Perpetual Debt instrument for inclusion in Additional Tier I Capital

Total lssue size BDT 3,000,000,000/-

Mode of lssue 90% Private Placement and 10% Public lssue

Public lssue Size BDT 300,000,000 (10% of the total issue)

Face Value/l!sue Price BDf 5,000/ (Five thousand taka only) per bond

Number of Public lssue
Unit

Bonds per lot 01 Bond

Market Lot 01. U nit

The Bond is perpetual i.e. there is no maturity date and there are no step-ups or
other incentives to redeem.

Maior Terms and
Features

As per Term Sheet disclosed in page no. 16 -19

Joint lssue Managers Prime Finance Capital Management Limited & Sonali lnvestment Limited

Underwriters Prime Finance Capital Management Limited & Sonali lnvestment Limited

Credit Rating Company
for the lssue

Emerging Credit Rating Limited

Particulars of the lssuer:
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Faru
Depury
United

ATIU

DMD & pany Secretary

uzzaman, FCS Ar dria
0

anaging Director & CEO

Name & Address Contact Contact Person

United Commercial Bank PLC

B U

7 G u h nd s a ven eU

Phone: +88-02-55668070

Fax: +88-02-55668070-5000

e-mail; www.ucb.com.bd

Faruk Ahammad FCA

DMD & CFO

Finance Division

kAhammad, FCA
Managing Director & CFO
Commercial Bank p, ^ Unlted Commercial Bank pl,C

NB:

- Listing expenses as Per Alternative Trading Board rules may be applicable as and when declared by the exchanges.
- Regulatory cost may be subject to amendments by the respedive regulators.
- Actual costs may be varied if above mentioned estimates differ and will be adiusted accordingly.

a

t\\t\'1\L1e
Mdl RGz,Aul Haque
Managing Director

Grand Total 28,032,500

60,000 under public offer

Maturity Period/Tenor

center (L7th Floor), Plot: cws

Cell: + 01713108770
Email:

faruk.ahammad@ucb.com.bd

United Commercial Bank pLC nime Finanre Cepiul Manrgeml0l Lihrltd



ucBt
Draft lnformation Memorandum of

UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of BDT 3,000 Million

t. Particulars of the lssue Manager(s):

Name & Address Contact Contact Person

Sonali lnvestment Limited

Head Office, Borak Biz Centre
(1st and 2nd Floor),70,
Dilkusha, Dhaka-1000

Tel:01746286810 Md. Shawkat Jahan Khan

chief Executive officer

iv. Particulars of the Underwriter(s):
Contact Contact Person

Prime Finance Capital
Management Limited

PFI Tower (7th Floor)

56-57 Dilkusha C/A

Dhaka-1000

Tel:01713335851 Md. Raiibul lslam

Head of lssue Management

Particulars of the Sto€k Exchanges/s in which the security to be listed:
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Name & Address Contact Contact Person

Prime Finance Capital
Management Limited

PFI Tower (7th Floor)
56-57 Dilkusha C/A
Dhaka-1000

Tel:01713335851 Md. Rajibul lslam

Head of lssue Management

Tel:01746286810

Website: https://sonaliinvestment.com-bd/

Md. Shawkat Jahan Khan

chief Executive officer

!{i-ame & Address
/2^

Contact Person

Tel:88 02 9564601,

88 02 9576210-18

mka stock Exchange Limited

DSE Tower, Road: 21, House: 46

Nikunja, Dhaka-1229
:t ?nr? ? r nFt ,fl?1

Fax:88 02 9564727
n r or? 1{lrQ

United Commerciat Bant< ilc
rl'rll
tiMI

t.lrrtted Comme

United Commercial Bank pLC
a0t ml IimiFirance

E-mail: isla m ra iibu lmoha m m ad @pmail.com

Website: https://www.Dri mefincap.com/

E-mail: sonaliinvestmnetlimited@smail.com

Website: https://sonaliinvestment.com.bdl

Name & Address

E-mail: islamra iibu lmoham mad @Email. com

website: https://wvrw.Drimef incap.com/

Name & Address Contact Contact Person

E-mail: sonaliinvestmnetlimited(agmail.com

Sonali lnvestment Limited

Head Office, Borak Biz Centre
(1st and 2nd Floor),70,
Dilkusha, Dhaka-1000

Contact

Mr. Mohammad Mahfuzur Rahman

AGM & Head of lndex Management,

Data services and publicationl$

Prime Caprul
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88 02 9569755

E-mail: imdsp@dsebd.ore

Website: u/ww.dsebd.org

Name & Address Contact Contact Person

Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC.

CSE Building, 1080, Sk. Mujib Road Agrabad,

Chittagong, Bangladesh

Tel: +880 2333314632-3,

+AAO )33332041 7-2

Mr, Mohammad Monirul Haque

DGM, Head of Listing

Fax: +880 2333314101

+880 2333326810

E-mail: monir(acsebd.ore

SECTION 22: CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY THE COMMISSION lN THE CONSENT LETTER

As per the consent letter by the Commission (Letter ref: BSEC/C\|DS-2O412022/\547; dated:
14 December 2023)

1. The lssuer shall ensure required all compliance of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance,1969, the
Ba ngladesh Secu rities and Exchange Co m m ission (Debt Secu rities) Rules,2021, Commission's Directive No.

BSEC/CM R RCD/2009-193/19 dated 23 May 2021, the Depository Act, 1999 and other securities Laws,

Rules & Regulations for Debt Securities regarding processing ofapplication, subscription, refund,
allotment, listing and trading;

2. This consent shall remain valid for 06 (six) months for private offer and 03 (three) months for public offer
from the date of consent, failing which the permission will stand cancelled to the extent of un-subscribed
portion;

3. The lssuer shall not change or modify the submitted draft lnformation Memorandum, Trust Deed &
Subscri ption Agreement after consent to issue the debt secu rities without prior approval of the Commission

tn gard;

4. The lssuershall disseminate approval oftheCommissionalongwiththepurposeoftheissue,amountand
of the bond etc. as price sensitive information, as prescribed by the Commission;

The lssuer shall execute the deed of trust as per schedule-c as approved by the commission in favor of
the trustee and register the same under the ReBistration Act, 1908 (Act No. XVI of 1908) and shall submit a

copy of the registered trust deed attested by the Chief Executive Officers of the lssuer and the trustee to
the Commission;

24 0E[ ftn
Auditors' report along with Audited Financial Statements of the issuer made up to a date not earlier tleE

id$;270 days from th
iffiielnt

7 r [Et 2[23

e of the lnformation Memorandum (lM) and shall be incorporated
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?aruk Ahamma d, FCA
ATIIl duzzaman, FCS AfifDeputy Managi g Dhoctor & CFO a

. Rdzairl Haque
DMD & pany Secretary naging Director & CEO Md

Mrnaging Director *ui{ i-

United Commercial Bank pLC
United Com rnercial Eank pLC Uni ted Commercial Bank PLC

Website: www.csebd.org

Pime fillrllce Crpirdl Maiegcftnl Iimrlrd
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before the offer;

7. Financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with lnternational Accounting Standards (lAS) and

audit thereof shall be conducted in accordance with the lnternationa lSta ndards on Auditing (lSA), as

adopted in Bangladesh. The financial statements shall be audited within 120 days from the date of ending
of the financial year;

8. Annual General Meeting (AGM) ofThelssuershall be held in eachyearofthe cregorian Calendar;

9. A copy of audited financial statements and a copy of annual report and the minutes of annual general

meeting shall be submitted to the Commission within 14 (fourteen) days ofthe completion ofthe audit or,

as the case may be, holding of the annual general meeting;

10. The lssuershall inform the Com m ission along with su pporting documents and evidence aboutanychange
of its registered address, directors, managing director, business or any other material change that affects

the affairs of the lssuer;

11- The proceeds or fund of the bond shall be placed in an escrow or specified bank account, and utilization of
such proceeds or fun shall also be made from the escrow or specifled bank account;

12. The lssuer shall submit a report utilization of proceeds as well as implementation status to the Commission,

the trustee, the issue manager(s) and to the stock exchange(s) as applicable, on half-yearly basis within 10

(ten) days of close of the half year, till full utilization of proceeds;

13. lf there is any FDI or external debt, the issuer shall report it to Eangladesh Bankj

14. Approved information memorandum (lM) and Deed ofTrust shall be made available in the websites ofthe
lssuer or the lssue Manager or the Exchange(s), as applicable, till the closure of the subscription list;

15. Thelssuershall pay,within 5 (five) working days of issuance of this letter, a feeattherateofO.lO%onthe
total face value of securities to be issued through a bank draft or payment order issued in favor of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. lf the applicant fails to pay within the specified time, this
consent shall be revoked;

16. The Commission may impose conditions/restrictions from time to time, as required. lf the lssuer or the
lssue Manager or the Trustee of the issue fails to comply with any ofthe conditions as stated in this consent

letter, the lssuer or the lssue Manager or the Trustee of the issue would be subject to penal provisions

under the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 or any other related securities laws.

2 4 0Ec 2023
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SECTION 23: DECLARATION AND DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATES AS PER ANNEXURE(S)- l, ll, lll & lV

lRule a(2Xa)l

This information memorandum has been prepared, seen and approved by us, and we, individually and collectively,
accept full responsibility for the authenticity, accuracy and adequacy of the statements made, information given in
the prospectus, documents, financial statements, exhibits, annexes, papers submitted to the Commission in support
thereof, and confirm, after making all reasonable inquiries that all conditions concerning this public issue and
prospectus have been met and that there are no other information or documents, the omission of which make any

information or statements therein misleading for which the Commission may take any civil, criminal or administrative
actions against any or all of us as it may deem fit-

we also confirm that full and fair disclosures have been made in this information memorandum to enable the
investors to make a well-informed decision for investment.

sd/-

Managing Director & CEO

U nited Commercial Bank PLC

Place: Dhaka

Date:
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Managing Oircctor & CEO
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k-Ahammad, FCA
ve _.:gino Director & CFO
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United Corrme rcial Bank PLc

Annexure- |

Declaration about the responsibiliw of the Managing Director & CEO of

United Commercial Bank PLC in respect of the information memorandum
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Annexure-ll

lRule 3(1Xm), 4(1Xc) and a(2) (a)l

Due diligence certificate of the Trustee

Prime Bank lnvestment Limited (PBIL)

To

The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

Sub: lssuance of 540,000 numbers under private placement and 60,000 numbers under public offer of Unsecured,
Contingent-Convertible and Floating Rate Perpetual Bond of BDT 5000 each of Llnited Commercial Bank PLC.

We, the under-noted trustee to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue, state as follows

1. We, while act as trustee to the above-mentioned issue on behalf of the investors, have examined the draft
lnformation Memorandum, legal and other documents and materials as relevant to our decision; and

2. On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the issuer, its directors and officers, and other agencies;

independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the issue and the contents of the documents and

other materials furnished by the issuer.

WE CONFIRM THAT:

(a) all information and documents as are relevant to the issue have been received and examined by us and the draft
lM, draft deed of trust and draft subscription a8reement forwarded to the Commission has been approved by us;

(b) we have also examined all documents of the assets to be charged with the trust and are satisfied that the assets

bear the value, title and charge status as disclosed in the lM - N/A

(c) while examining the above documents, we find that all the requirements of the Bangladesh Securities and

Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021 have been complied with;

(d) we shall act as trustee to the issue as mentioned above as per provisions of the deed of trust to be executed with
the issuer or the originator, as applicable and shall assume the duties and responsibilities as described in the deed of
trust and in the lM;

(e) we shall also abide by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021 and

conditions imposed by the Commission as regards ofthe issue; and

(f) the above declarations are unequivocal and irrevocable.

For Trustee

Managing Di r&CEO
ment Limited (PBIL)Pri
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AnnexureJll
Due diligence certificate by issue manager

Prime Finance Capital Management Limited

lRule a(2XalI

To

The Bangladesh securities and Exchange Commission

Dear Sir,

we, the issue manager to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue, state and confirm as follows:

(1) We have examined all the documents submitted with the application for the above-mentioned issue, visited the
premises of the issuer or originator and interviewed the chairperson, directors and key management personnel of
the issuer or originator in connection with the finalization of the information memorandum pertaining to the said

issue;

(2) On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the directors, offlcers and auditors of the issuer or
originator, other agencies, independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the issue and the
contents of the documents and other materials furnished by the issuer or originator.

WE CONFIRM THAT:

(a) The information memorandum filed with the Commission is in conformity with the documents, materials and

papers relevant to the issue;

(b) All the legal requirements relating to the issue as also in the rules, notification, guidelines, instructions, etc.

framed/issued by the Commission, other competent authorities in this behalf and the government have been duly
complied with;

(c) The disclosures made in information memorandum are true, fair and adequate to enable the investors to make

a well informed decision for investment in the proposed issue and such disclosures are in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, the Trust Act, 1882, the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(Debt Securities) Rules, 2021 and other applicable laws;

(d) Besides ourselves, all the intermediaries named in the information memorandum are registered with the
Comm

e have satisfied ourselves about the capability of the underwriters to fulfil their underwriting commitments;

ffy' sed activities ofthe issuer for which the funds are being raised in the present issue fall within the 'maino
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sub: lssuance of 60,000 numbers under public offer of Unsecured, Contingent-Convertible and Floating Rate

Perpetual Bond of BDT 5000 each of United Commercial Bank PLC

till date such registrations are valid;
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(h)Allthe applicable disclosures mandated in the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities)

Rules, 2021 have been made in addition to other disclosures which, in our view, are fair and adequate to enable the
investor to make a well-informed decision;
(i) We enclose a note explaining how the process of due diligence has been exercised by us in view of the nature of
current business background or the issuer or originator, situation at which the proposed business stands, the risk

factors, sponsors experiences etc. We also confirm that the due dili8ence related process, documents and approval

memos shall be kept in record by us for the next 5 (five) years after the issue of securities for any further inspection

by the commission;
(j) We enclose a checklist confirming rule-wise compliance with the applicable provisions of the Bangladesh

Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021 containing details such as the rule number, its

text, the status of compliance, page numbers of the information memorandum where the rules have been complied

with and our comments, if any;
(k) We also declare that we have managed issue of securities of the following issuers including originators in the last

05 (five)years as following:

Managing Director
Prime Finance Capital Management Limited

Place: Dhaka

Date:

2 4 0E[ 2023 2{ DEI 2023
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anaging Director & CEO Managing Director

serial
No

lssue
Dividend Payment History

2021 20zo
2019

I Silva Pharmaceuticals
Limited

2018 Tk. 10
5%C

s%c
6%C

5%B

2
Esquire Knit
Composite Limited

2019 Tk.40 100/.c 75%C 75%C 75%C

3
No issue was
managed

2020 N/A

4

Desh General
lnsurance Company
Limited

2027 Tk. 10 10./"c to%c 100/.c 72%C 70%c

5 2022 Tk. 10 5%C

Faruk Ahammad_
ueputy Ma jraging Directo;
unned Commercial Ban

UMD & Company Secretary
rlnired Commercial Brnk pLC

United Commercial Eank PLC !io( [i.r.re capital Mrnl!r!!!r Lrrlilld

For lssue Manager

sd/-

2{ $Et?$23

Month/
Year

lssue
Price

2022
2018

N/A

lslami Commercial
lnsurance Company
Limited

70%c 7%C 3%S
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Annexure-lll
Due diligence certificate by issue manager

Sonali lnvestment Limited

lRule a(2Xa)l

Sub: lssuance of 60,000 numbers under public offer of lJnsecured, Contingent-Convertible and Floating Rate
Perpetual Bond of BDT 5000 each of United Commercial Bank PLC

Dear Sir,

We, the issue manager to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue, state and conflrm as follows:

{1) We have examined all the documents submitted with the application for the above-mentioned issue, visited the
premises of the issuer or oriBinator and interviewed the chairperson, directors and key management personnel of
the issuer or originator in connection with the flnalization of the information memorandum pertaining to the said

issue;

{2) On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the directors, officers and auditors of the issuer or
originator, other agencies, independent verification of the statements concerning ob.iects of the issue and the
contents of the documents and other materials furnished by the issuer or originator.

WE CONFIRM THAT:

(a) The information memorandum filed with the Commission is in conformity with the documents, materials and
papers relevant to the issue;

(b) All the legal requirements relating to the issue as also in the rules, notification, guidelines, instructions, etc.

framed/issued by the Commission, other competent authorities in this behalf and the government have been duly
complied with;

(c) The disclosures made in information memorandum are true, fair and adequate to enable the investors to make

a well informed decision for investment in the proposed issue and such disclosures are in accordance with the
requirements ofthe Companies Act, 1994, the Trust Act, l-882, the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(Debt Securities) Rules, 202L and other applicable laws;

(d) Besides ourselves, all the intermediaries named in the information memorandum are registered with the
Commission and till date such registrations are valid;
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(h) All the applicable disclosures mandated in the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities)

Rules, 2021 have been made in addition to other disclosures which, in our view, are fair and adequate to enable the
investor to make a well-informed decision;

(i) We enclose a note explaining how the process of due diligence has been exercised by us in view of the nature of
current business background or the issuer or originator, situation at which the proposed business stands, the risk

factors, sponsors experiences etc. We also confirm that the due diligence related process, documents and approval

memos shall be kept in record by us for the next 5 (five) years after the issue of securities for any further inspection

by the commission;

0) We enclose a checklist conflrming rule-wise compliance with the applicable provisions of the Bangladesh

Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021 containing details such as the rule number, its

text, the status of compliance, page numbers of the information memorandum where the rules have been complied

with and our comments, if any;

(k) We also declare that we have not managed issue of securities ofthe following issuers including originators in the
last 05 (five) years as following:

For lssue Manager
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Chief Executive Officer

Sonali lnvestment Limited

Place: Dhaka

Date:
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Annexure - lV

Due diligence certificate by the underwriter
Prime Finance Capital Management Limited

lnule +(2)(a)l

To

The Eangladesh securities and Exchange commission

Sub: lssuance of 60,000 numbers under public offer of unsecured, contingent-convertible and Floating Rate Perpetual Eond
ot BDT 5000 each of United Commercial Bank PLC.

Dear Sir,

(2) On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the issuer or originator, its directors and officers, and other
agencies, independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the issue and the contents of the documents and

other materials furnished by the issuer or originator.

WE CONFIRM THATI

{a)We are registered with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission as a merchant banker and eligible to carry out
the underwriting activities. Our present paid-up capital stands at BDT 2,032,800,000 (two billion thirty two million eight hundred

thousand) only and we have the capacity to underwrite a total amount of Tk. 10,068,719,220 (Taka ten billion sixty eight million
seven hundred nineteen thousand two hundred and twenty only) as per relevant legal requirements. We have committed to
underwrite for up to BDT 30,0qr,000 for the upcoming issue.

(b) At present, the underwriting obligations are pending for us

(c) All information as are relevant to our underwriting decision have been received by us and the draft lM forwarded to the
Commission has been approved by us;

{d) We shall subscribe and take up the un-subscribed securities against the above-mentioned issue within 15 (fifteen) days of
calling up thereof by the issuer or originator; and

(e)This underwriting commitment is unequivocal and irrevocable

For the Underwriter
sdl-
Managing Director
Prime Finance Capital Mana8ement Limited
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SI Name of Issue Underwriting Amount (Taka)

1.- Aman Tex Limited 40,000,000

2 Ratanpur Steel Re-Rolling Mils Limited 18,000,000

41,726,0363 Omera Peboleum Limited

/i Mercantile Banl Bond 10,000,000

HR Textile MiUs Limited 50,000,000

URO Agrovet Limited 125m,000

7 Alliance Firunce PLC 25,000,000

United Commerciat Eank pLC United CommercialEank
United Commercial Bank pLC

Draft lnformation Memorandum of
UCB 2nd Perpetual Eond of BDT 3,000 Million

We, the under-noted underwriter{s)to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue, state individually and collectively as follows:

(1) We, while underwriting the above-mentioned issue on a firm commitment basis, have examined the draft information
memorandum, other documents and materials as relevant to our underwriting decision; and
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Annexure - lV
Due diligence certificate by the underwriter

Sonali lnvestment [imited
lRule a(2Xa)l

To

The Bangladesh securities and Exchange commission

Sub: lssuance of 60,000 numbers under public offer of Unsecured, Contingent-Convertible and Floating Rate

Perpetual Bond of BDT 5000 each of United Commercial Bank PLC

Dear Sir,

We, the under-noted underwriter(s) to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue, state individually and collectively

as follows:
(1) We, while underwriting the above-mentioned issue on a firm commitment basis, have examined the draft
information memorandum, other documents and materials as relevant to our underwriting decision; and
(2) On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the issuer or originator, its directors and officers, and

other agencies, independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the issue and the contents of the
documents and other materials furnished by the issuer or originator.
WE CONFIRM THAT:

(a) We are registered with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission as a merchant banker and eligible

to carry out the underwriting activities. Our present paid-up capital stands at BDf 2180.00 Million and we have the
capacity to underwrite a total amount of BDT 10,900,000,000 as per relevant leBal requirements. We have

committed to underwrite for up to BDT 30,000,000 for the upcoming issue.

(b)At presen the underwriting obligations are pending for us:
C'
(.a First Securiy lslami Bank Limited: BDT 10 Crore

-2 ls Oxygen Limited: BDT 5 Crore

. Brothers Garments Company Limited:2.5 Crore

Best Holdings Limited: BDT 4 Crore

Eshana Non-Woven Fabrics (ind.) Ltd: BDT 2.635 Crore

For the Underwriter:

sd/-

Chief Executive Officer
Sonali lnvestment Limited
Place: Dhaka, Date: E
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(c)All information as are relevant to our underwriting decision have been received by us and the draft lM forwarded
to the Commission has been approved by us;

(d) We shall subscribe and take up the un-subscribed securities against the above-mentioned issue within 15 (fifteen)

days of calling up thereof by the issuer or originator; and
(e)This underwriting commitment is unequivocal and irrevocable.

1r 1[t,1!'li ?t$t[?$?3
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The Due Diligence Certificates are also annexed to this lnformation Memorandum as mentioned below

a) Declaration of the Management of the lssuer as per Rule 3 (U (i) of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Commission (Debt Securities) Rule 2021. Kindly Check Annexure-l

b) Due Diligence Certificate of the Trustee IRule 3(1](m], 4(rXc) and +(2] (a)], is attached with this information
memorandum. Kindly check Annexure - ll

c) Due Diligence Certificate of the lssuer Manager as per [Rule 4(2](a)l of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Commission (Debt Securities) Rule 2021. Kindly Check Annexure-lll

d) Due Diligence Certiflcate of the Underwriter as per [Rule a(2Xa)] of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Commission (Debt Securities) Rule 2021. Kindly Check Annexure-lv.

SECTION 24: PARTICULARS OF THE UNDERWRITERS AND UNDERWRITTEN AMOUNT

Name of the underwriter Prime Finance Capital Management Limited

Legal status of the Underwriter Public Limited Company

Details of contact information of
the Underwriter

Md. Raiibul lslam
Head of lssue Management
Prime Finance Capital Management Limited
Mobile: + 88 01713335851
Email: isla m ra iibu lmoha m m ad @gma il. co m

Name of the issue managed by
the Underwriter

1. Aman Tex Limited: BDT 40,000,000.00/-
2. Ratanpur Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited: BDT

18,000,000.00/
3. omera Petroleum Limited: BDf 4\726,036.001-
4. HR Textile Mills Limited: BDT 50,000,000.00/-
5. URO Agrovet Limited: BDT 12,500,000.00/-

6. Alliance Finance PLC: BDT 25,000,000.00/-

Underwritten Amount BDT 30,000,000

Name of the Underwriter Sonali lnvestment Limited
Legal status of the Underwriter Public Limited Company

Details of contact information
-df-the underwriter

v
Md. Shawkat Jahan Khan
Chief Executive Officer
Sonali lnvestment Limited
Mobile: +88 01713040537
Email: sonaliinvestmentlimited@email.com
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1. First Securiy lslami Bank Limited: BDT 10 Crore
2. lslam Oxygen Limited: BDT 5 Crore
3. B. Brothers Garments Company Limited: BDT 2.5

Crore
4. Best Holdings Limited: BDT 4 Crore

5. Eshana Non-Woven Fabrics (ind.) Ltd: BDT 2.635
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UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond of 8DT 3,000 Million

co

As per the consent letter by the Commission (Letter ref: BSEC/CI/DS-2 04/2022/1547; dared:
14 December 2023)

1. An applicant for public issue of "Unsecured, Contingent-Convertible, fully paid -up non-cumulative BASEL-

lll complaint 2nd Perpetual Bond of BDT 30 crore by United Commercial Bank PLC" shall submit
application/buy instruction to the cut-off-date (i.e., the subscrlption closing date); Stock-Broker/ Merchant
Banker where the applicant maintains customer account;

2. The application/buy instruction may be submitted in prescribed form or electronic form, which shall contain
the Customer lD, Name, BO Account Number, Total Amount and Category of the Applicant;

3. Eligible lnvestors shall submit an application through the Electronic Subscription System (ESS) of the
exchange(s) and deposit the full amount intended to subscribe by the method as determined by

exchange(s);

4. The General Public and Non-Resident Bangladeshi (NRB) shall submit the application through the
Stockbroker/ Merchant Banker where the applicant maintains customer account.

Step-2 (lntermediary):

L. The registered Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall:

a) Post the amount separately in the customer account equivalent to the application money;

b) Accumulate all the applications (Subscription Forms)/buy instructions received up to the cut-off date and

transfer the amount to their respective Consolidated Customer Account;

2. The registered Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall prepare category wise lists of the applicants
containing Customer lD, Name, BO Account Number and within 3 (three) working days from the cut-off
date, upload to the ESS, the lists of applicants in electronic (text format with title'-'separator) format,
deposit the full amount received from the applicants including Foreign investors by the method as

determined by exchange(s).

3. The application (Subscription Form)/buy instructions shall be preserved by the Stock Broker/Merchant
Bankers up to 6 (six) months from listing of the securities with the exchange;

4. The Exchanges shall prepare a consolidated list of the appllcations and send the applicants' BO lDs in
electronic (text) format to CDBL for verification on the next workinB day. CDBL shall verify the BO lDs as to
whether the BO accounts of the applicants are active or not, verify more than two applications by an

ual and verify more than two applications using same bank account;
nthe next worklng day, CDBL shall provide the Exchanges with an updated database of the applicants

ining BO Account Number, Name, Addresses, Parent s' Name and Joint Account information along
e verification reportj
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eiving verification report and information from CDBL, the Exchanges shall scrutinize the
applications, prepare lists of valid and invalid applications within 2 (two) working days;

On the next working day, the Exchanges shall provide the Commission, lssuer and lssue Manager with the
soft copy of subscription result;

Step 3 (lssuer or Originator):
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SECTION 25: PUBtIC :SSUE APPLICATION PROCEDURE

Step-1 (Applicant):
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and the Exchanges;

Within 2 (two) working days of receipt of the subscription result, the lssuer and Exchanges shall:

a) Process pro-rata allotment of securities to the applicants under Public Offer.
b) lssuer shall issue allotment letters in the names of the Allottees in electronic format.
c) lssuer shall credit the allotted securities to the respective BO accounts on the basis ofallotment

data (BOID and number ofsecurities) via their CDBL VeDAS Terminal.

d) Any fraction shall be considered to the nearest integer and accumulated fractionalsecurities shall

be allotted on a random basis.

Step4 (lntermediary)

1. On the next two working day, Exchanges shall:

a) Remit the amount of allotted applicants to the issuer's Bank Account opened for subscription purpose;

(b) Distribute the information and allotment letters to the stock broker/Merchant Bankers concerned in

electronic format with a request to refund the balance application money.

(c) On the next working day of receiving the documents from the Exchanges, the Stockbrokers/ Merchant

Banker shall refund the excess application money in the customer accounts and inform the applicants about

allotment of securities.

- As per the consent letter by the Commission

SECTION 27: PRIVATE OFFER APPtICATION PROCEDURE

The Issuer shall make an offer of Unsecured. Contingent-convertible, fully paid -up {non- cumulative

BASEL-lll complaint 2nd Perpetual Bond of BDT 270 crore (Two hundred and seventy crore) through Private

Placement.

The applicants shall apply for a minimum 200 units (each unit of Taka 5,000/-) which totaling of BDT

1,000,000 (Taka ten lac);

The subscription shall be received through the designated bank account of the lssuer during subscription
period not less than 30 (thirty) days and not more than 180 (one hundred eighty) days for private offer;

Application process for private offer shall be prescribed by the issuer and made it available on lssuer's

website;
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SECTION 26: RIGHT OPTION/ISSUE APPIICATION PROCEDURE

As per the consent letter by the Commission (Letter ref: BSECICVDS-204/2022/7547; dated:
14 December 2023)

2.

3.

4.
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Credit Rating Ltd

UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond
Corporate Bond Ratin$ (Agreement Number: 2022-06-27-63815)
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: United Commercial gank PLC

: UCB Investlent Limited

: Prime gank InvestrEnt tjmihd

: t{ubaiya Hassan Lamia
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2023 Surveillance Review
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UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond
Major Rating Factors

Strengths

Challengel
Risks

Surplus SLR & CRR against the requirements
C-onsistent performance in credit and deposit
Increase in post-tax profft
Experienced management team

Gradual decline in CBAR over the years

Large amount of NPL with high concentration on bad loans
High level of large loan

ratio remained 9,010/0 which arc above the regulatory requirement, During the
higher NPt has led h a greater inc.ease in the risk weighted assets of the

Emerging Credit Raung Limited (ECRL) has afflrmed A+B (pronounced as Single A
Plus Bond) loog term credit raung to UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond (hereinaftet refered to
as 'Perpetual Bond" or "me tund" or "The Issue2 issuance of BDT 3?000.00 million
in face value based on audid financials of FyZ0l9-2A22 and other available
information up to the date of rating d€claration. The ou$ook on the rating is Stable,
The outlook on the rating is $table, The rating is consistent with ECRLT
methodology for this type of Bond rating.

The ratings reflect the strengths of the bank which is backed by experienced top-level
management, lmprot/ed in post-tax profit, conslstent peformance in gross loans and
deposlts, as well as surplus SLR & CRR against the requirements. Howeyer, ECRL is
concerned about the large amount of NPL with high concentration on bad loan5 high
level of large loan and gradual decline in CRAR over the years.

The Bond wlll be issued to raise additional ]']er-I capital to strengthen the capital
base of United Commercial Bank PLC in accordance with Banqladesh Banl(s
Guidelines on Risk-Based Cap'tal Adequacy. The bond is unsecurcd, conungent-
convertible, fully paid up, non-cumulative, EASEL m compllant, perpetual debt
instrument for inclusion in additional tier l capital. The Bond is perpetual i.e. there is
no maturity date and tlere are no step-ups or other incentives to redeem. However,
there is a call opuon which could be exercised by the issuer only after 10 (ten) years
of issuancg with pdor approval from the Bangladesh Bank and subject to meeting
some conditions,

yeaf

(D

?

lLJ ct(J

z

U

a

+'5
(tc0
EL iJof
:!<

tr t'

4.,

baok. This, in coniunction with reduction in Tlter-2 capihl of the bank due to principal
repayment of subordinated bond has resulted ln a fall In the CRAR of the bank.
Furthermorg ECRL is concerned about the gradual decllne ln the bank.s CapitaFto- S
risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) over the period under revlew. Nevertheless, tie R-
bank has maintained the minamum capital requirement of 12.50V0 in Fy2022. =However, as mentioned eartier, if the lncreasing irend of the NpL continues, it will 
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terms of performance of the issuer, tha CRAR of Ule bank remained 13.06% and



lotal asset base UCB is experiencing a grotrino tren.l over the years mainly fueled by
consistent broadening of the grosg loan irortfolio. However, the growth rate has
narrowed down as compared to preyious year mainly due to feduced investment in
government bonds and treasury bills, and balances with other banks, and financial
institutions in Bangladesh. In Fy2A22, total asset base of the bank grew by tl.t0o/o
and stood at BDT 628,076.83 million from BDT 565,314.2i million in the previous
yetsr- In the meantime. gross loans and advance portfolio of the bank grew by
15.43% as oprf,sed 14.44oto in Fy20Z1 and reachecl to BDT 468,b05.10 million f.om
9AT 402,487.74 million. On the other hand, non-performing loans (NpL) of the bank
has significantly increased by 58.300/o and reached BDT 28,A7?.69 million in FYZ0Z2
as opposed to BOf V,73729 million in Fy2021 indicating a deteriorating asset
quality. if NPL increases Furtl8r in the coming years, it will increase the risk-$reighted
asset of the bank which will ultimately have an adverse impact on the CRAR of the
bank, Meanwhile, concentration of NpLs followed a similar trend to previous year with
bad loans being 93.060/o of the iotal NpL (97.690lo in Ftzou), followed by 5.72%
sub-standard loans (1.60Yo in Fy2021), afid 1.22o/o doubtful loans (0.71olo in
m021), The bank met its requirement in terms of prcvision requlrcment of BOT
19,208.24 milllon and there was no surplus or shortfall in provision. Due to the
swelling of NPL during the year, BDT 5,960.42 million $,as credited to the interest
suspense account of the bank. On the oth€r hand, BDT 3,120.71 million was
recovered from interest suspense account during the year whereas BDT 65.20 million
was waived and BDT 1,153.16 milllon was written off.

8y the end ot year 2022, UCB rescheduhd loans totaling BDT 24,U5.90 million
against 192 accounts wheraas it was 8DT 5,387.91 million against 5l accounts in the
previous year. The amount of rescheduled loan has increased by 348.71Vo over the
years whereas number of accounts against which loans were rescheduled incrcased
by 276.47a/o. Moreover, UCB has written off of B0T 4,232,49 million of its loans and
advances during the period FY2022 whereas it was only BDT 533.99 million in
FY202r. At the end of the year, the Npts, rescheduled loans and written.off loans
together represented only 12.050/o of the loan book of the bank, exhibiting a
dramatic uplift from 5.88 in the prcvious year.

UCB has high a,(posure to large loan portfollo. In Fy2022, although exposure to large
loans (including funded and non-funded loans exceeding 10yo of the bank,s tobl
capital) decreased comparcd to the previous )€ar, the exposure is still hiqh^ Tte
balance of these loans amounted to BDT 242,979.10 million to 40 customers, down
ftom gDT 244,994.41 million to 41 cuslomers in the previous year. However, UCB,S
large loan accounts for 52,28% of total loans and advances h fyZOZ2 sligh y higher
from 60.87yo in FY2021 signifying the coiossal dependency on few borrowers.

Multlple iregularit':es in the banking sector came to tight in the ,atter half of the
FY2022, which hindercd the confidence of the depositors and consequen y they
started to withdraw their deposits from banks. However, despite the prevailing
prcssure on deposits UCB'S deposit base has o$erienced a rnoderate fise ol 9,27o/o
as compard 12.03Vo growth in Fy2021. The bank has kept its ADR mtio withln the
regulatory requircment of Bangladesh Bank of 8Po during Fy20Z2 and scored
86.14% in the loan to deposit ratio which shows further room for credit facilities to

E offered, In addition, UCB has been maintaininE Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) and
Liquidity Requirement (SLR) in line with Bangladesh Bank requirement,

UCg has experienced a signlficant escalation of l5-96oib in ib interest income,
reachhg BDT 31,684.84 million in FY2022 compared to BDT 27,323.65 million in trc
previous year majorly driven by increase in interest income from its rising loans and
advance portfolio. However. this growth was slighdy surpassed by the banks interest F
expense, resulting in a comparatively lower growih of 9.54y0 in tlle net interest R
lncome which st@d at BDT f4,674.45 mlllion ln Fy2022, compared to a nobble
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Total A.sets (BDT million)
Total AsseE Gmwth (Vo)
cros6 Loam (BDT tdillioit)
Gross Loans Growtlr (o/o)
oeposit3 (8DT Million)
Deposit Growth (o/o)
Gross ilPL Ratio (o/o)
Loan to D€posit Ratio {o/o)
I{et Intercst Income (ADT mitlion)
Net Intecst IncomB crowth (9/o)
I{oo-Intercst lr|come (BDT million)
Non-Interest Income Growth (o/o)
Pr€-Tax Profit (EDT miltion)
Post-Tax Pr!fit (BDT milllon)
Post-Trx Protit Growth (o/o)
Post-Tax LOAE {o/o)
CRAR (o/o)

468,605.10
16.43

426,028.44
9.27
5.99

86.14
74,674.4s

9.54
13,848.29

5,916.07
4,024.01

26.65
10.27

445,760.1,2
10.93

322,728.74
o (')

330,632.23
11.26
3.63

83.79
10,797.81

16.83
9,911.08

9.51
4,932.09
2J72.04

77.02
8.84

565,314.21 493,306.95
14,60 10.42

442,481.74 351,683.56
74.44 8.97

389,9A0.72 353,981.62

14

076.83
11.10

10.1s
4.47

83.73
13,395.39

40.85
17,423.35

4.06

7.06
z.l:r

81,18
9,510.78

(11.s2)
70,977 .44

10.76
5,609.91 4,948.01
3 ,777 .17 2ps7 .20

3.07
8.42

11.20
8.76

13,64

UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond

BDT 3.515.71 million from BDr 1.571.48 m lion in the prior year. Conrequently, the
total operating income of the bank exhibited a L4,glok boost in Fy20Z2, reaahing
BDT 28,552.74 million compared to the previous year,s growth rate of 21.149o.

In contrast, total operating cosis of UCB grew at a slightly higher rate as compared
to tolal operating income resulting in a marginat escalation in the cost to incorne
raho, standing at 59.790/o during this year, which was 5g.979/o in the ffior year.
Despite rising- costs, higher operating income r€sulted in a 12.62%o boost in pre-
provlsion profit, reaching at ADI L1i68J7 million in fyZ0Z2. On the other hind,
although increased provision expense has narrowed down the pmfit before tax of he
banlq lower tax expense has enabled the bank bo portray a Z6.a5o6 growth in the net
protit after tax reaching at BDT 4,024.01 million in Fy202Z ftom BDT 3,U7.17 million
in FY2021. Furthermore. average interest spread of UCB witnessed a slight increase
and ended at 4.160/0 in FY2022 compared to 4,049o in Fy2021.

The Stabls rdting outlook reflects fCRL's expectations that UCB is llkely to maintain
i& business growth and consistency in matching maturities of assets ;nd liabilities,
and the bank wlll adopt stricter policies and actions to improye asset quality.

Exhiblt 1: financibl ffighlights: Uni@ Conmerciat &nk pLC

2021

United Commercial Bank pLC
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A.1. Cr)nrir-?ny $ackgr.-:urir i

United Commercial Bank PLC (UCB) was incorporated as a public limited company in Bangladesh on
June 26, 1983 under the companies A{t l9l3 and $ras given permission by Bangladesh Bank on Jone
28/ 1983 to conrmence its banking buliness. The bank got listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited
on 30th November 1986 and Chlttagong Stock Exchange Limited on 15th November 1995. It sta(ed
its joumey with an initial paid up capital of BDT 35.50 million which subsequently rose to BDT
14,062.37 million at the eM of 2022. It5 vision 

's 
to be tfie bank of first choice through maximizing

value for its ciients, shareholders & employees and aontributing to the national economy with social
commitments and iti mission is to offer finanaial solutlons *Et create, manage and irrrease its
clients' wealth while improving the quality of life in he communities it serves. The bank offers
services for all commercial banking needs of the customers, which include deposit banking, loans &
advances, export & import financing, inland & intemational remittance facility etc. In addition, tie
bank has commenced operation of its offshore banking unit ftom 2010 and cunently the bank has 1

offshore banking unit operating in Dhaka. With the view to bringing the unbanked people into the
banking facillties, UCB has started Mobile Aanking Services under the title of UCash in 2013. The Bank
obtained permission for Islamic Banking tuanch from Bangladesh Bank on 6 February 2020 arrd
offering all types of Islamic Shariah mmpliant finances. The bank has four subsidiaries, (0 UCB Stock
Brokerage Umited which provides brokerage service, margln loan etc., (ii) UCB hvestment Limited
which carries out full-fledged merchant banking activitles in Bangladesh, (lil) UCB Asset Managemerit
Limiled which aims to manage podfolio and fund of both individ0als and institxtions and (iv) UCB
Fintech Company limtted that offers npbile transactions, utility bill payment, in-stlre and e-
commerce payment and other value added financlal seNices.

A.2. Operational Network

Unid Commercial Bank PLC has a country-wide network of ZZ4 (2OZ1t 21, branches and 663
(2021: 628) ATM5/CRMS and 314 (2021: U2) agent banking outlets as on 3t December 2022.

A.3, Market Shar€

UCB'S loans & adrrnces and deposit position were BDT 468,605.10 million and BDf 426,078,44
million respectively at the end December 2022. Considering the banking indusry as a whole, all
scheduled bankd total loans & advances and deposit were BDT 14,411,965,00 milllon and
14,891.591,00 million respectively at the end of December 2022, UCB contrlbuted 3.25016 oF ma*et
share in terms of loans and advances and 2.86 of market share in terms of deposit at the end of
December 2021 .

Figure 7: IJCBL9 na*et share by d@db Figurc 2: IICBL! na*et share by loans & adta&es

UCBL's Market Share 8y UCBL's Market Share By
Loans Deposit

3.25o/o 2.860/0

r UCBL

B Other Bank

9 UCEL

n Other Bank

96.75V0 97 .74o/o

A.4. Products and Servi€as

UCB offers a full range of aommercial banking products and seryices under Retail Banking. NRB
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services include various types of savings accounts, current account, fixed deposit, DpSs, vadous
personal, auto and home loan, credit and debit card, lockff services, SMS banking etc. Under SME
banking, the bank offers UcB sME Installment Loan (U$L) and various other loars as well as SME
deposit accounts such as cunent accounts, easy account, monthly deposit and fixed deposit. For
Corporate customers, the bank offers export and import finance, house building finance, industrial
loan, letter of credit, project finance/ syndicated/structured finance, working capital finance and other
mrporate banking loans, Moreover, the bank offers varlous savings, DpSs, remittarce services under
its NRB banking seruice, Besides the above-mentoned prcducts and services, UCB also offars Agent
Banking with a vision to deliver bankjng services t0 the unbanked population across Bangladesh,
Recently the bank also started to offer Islamic banking products such as Taqwa deposiL Taqwa
investment etc.

A.5" Shareholding Structure
United Commercial &nk PLC sta*ed its
journey with paid-up capttal of BDT
35.50 million. Presenuy it has authorized
capital of BDT 15,000.00 million and
paid-up capital of BDT 14,062.37
million. tu on Derember 31, 2022, the
four broad categories,
Sponso6/Directolr, Institution (Financial
& Others), Gerieral Public and Govt, of
Peoples Republic of Bangladesh
rep.esented 34,650/o, ?1,42o/o, 43.78/o
and 0.8190 of the total paid-up capital
of the bank resp€ctlvely as sholvn ln the
chart.

A.6, UCB 2nd p€rpetual Bond Issuane€ Objective

United Commercial Bank PLC (UCB) has decided to ralse Additional lier-l Capitai throuqh the
issuance of UCB znd Perpetual Bond ln orider to strengdren 16 capital base in accordance with
Bangladesh Bank's Guidelines on Risk-Based Capital Adequacl (Revised Regulatory Gpital Fmmework
in line with Basel lll). The proposed bond issue $,ill allow the bank to enhance lts capltal strength and
contlnue to grow iE balance sheet ln the future years,

A.7. Subscdption Statut
out of BDT 3,000 million issue size of the bond; BDT 4700 million will be issued under private
placement and BDT 300 million will be issued under publh offer (subject to regulatory approval).

A.8. Structure of UCB 2nd Perpetual Bond and Terms
Exhibit 2: StnEtue d l/CB 2nd Per@lul tund atd Tetns
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l{ame of the Instrument UCB znd Perpetual Bond
Issue Type Unsecured, Contingent-Convertible. fully paid up. Non-Cumulative,

BASEL IlI compliant, Perpetual Debt instrument For Inclusion in
Additional Tler I Capital

fssuer United Commercial Bank PLC

Nature of Instlum€nt Unsecured

Purpose and Objectives

24 1,rr,^^-

N

To raise Additional fier-l Capital through issuance of UCB znd
Perpehlal Bond in order to streng*hen its capital base ln accoda
with Bangladesh Bankt Guidellnes on Risk-Based Capital
(Revised Regulatory Capital Framework in line with Basel III).
The funds being raised by the Bank through the mentioned Issue
not meant for flnancinq any particular project. The Bank shall utilize the
proc€eds of the Islue for lts regular buslness activities. The Bank st8lf
not utilize proceeds of the Issue fo. any purpose which may b€ in
contravention of the regulations/ guidelines/ norms issued by the

k and Ba and Commission

United Commeiciat Bank pLC
DMD & Company Secretary

Unlted Commercial Bank pLC
Director
Ma$gimtrl Liflitid
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2
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where appllcable,

UCB Inv€stment Limited

Prime Finance Cnpital Management Limited & Sonali ,nvestment
Limited

24 2023
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Deputy M.-r.l
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Md.
Managing Director

?drne Firenre Capital Managcment Lim ited

fi"[$qBat)
RCzdul Haque

Eond
Ir llnr

ATM TA uzzaman, FCS Arif
Man ng Director &

n

Underwritsr for the
public offer/is$ue
Tru6te€
Legat Adlrisor
I'lode of l9stre

fa.ility siz€

Prime Finance Capital Management LlmiEd & Sonali hvestment
Limited

90% of the issue size under Private placement and 1096 of the issue
size under Public Offer
BDT 3,000,000,000
GDT e700,000,000 under private placement and BDT 300,000,000
urder ublic issue

Prime Bank Investment Limited
Lex.ruris

No, of Bonds to be
Isaued
Face Value Per Lot

540,000 under private placement and 60,000 under public offer

BDT 5,000/ (Fiye thousand taka only)
Bonds per lot 01 bond
Minimum Subscription 01 lot for public issue and 200 lots for private placement

Not Appllcable, The gonds shall be perpetual i.e, there is no maturity
date and there are no step-ups or other incentives to redeem.

Investors As per NOC from Banqladesh Bank and Consent Letter from
Banqladesh Securities and Exchanqe Commissio,l.

Coupor Rtte Refercnce Rate + Coupon Margin

R€fer€nce Rate 2o-year Treasury- Eond rate.
(Latest available rate of 20-year Treasury-Bond rate as plblished by
Ht Managemeflt Department of Bangladesh Bank on the quobtion
day)

Coupon Margin 2.00o/o

Quotation Day Five (05) days before the first day of any period for which a coupon
rate is to be determined.

Coupon Range Coupon Ceiling: l0olo
Coupon Floor: 5olo (subiect to havinq available distributable orofit)

Coupon Discretion The bank will have full discretion at all times to cancel
distributions/Dayments to the bondholder

Exeraise of Coupon
Discretion

Any coupon payment will be distributed subject to having available
distributable profit of the issuer

Coupon Payment
Frequency

Semi-Annual
r Coupn will be pald to the bondholders semi-annually.

However, the first coupon payment period will be from the
issue datelsubscdption closing date up !o the ensuing either 30
,lune or 31 December of the respective year whichever is
earlier of issue datelsubscription closing date

. Thereafter, coupon payment will be made semi-annually on
lune and December (i.e. Coupon Period will be from 01
lanuary to 3olute and 01 lufu to 31 December or up to Issuer
Call date, or r€ulatory call date, lf exercised).

.Late Payment

\

Issuer shall pay a late Fyment penalty of 2% (two percent) higher
than the Coupon Rate and be payable on the amount not paad on the
due date till the date of actual payment unl€ss the exercise of coupon
discretiofi is not in effect.

-8tt5ilf6s Day
Co;Etior / Effect of
Holiditt

If any Coupon/ Profit Payment Date falls on a day that is not a
Business Day, the payment shall be made by the Bank on the
immediately succeeding Business Day.
lf the Call Option Due Oate (also being the last Coupon l
Payment Date, in case Call Option is exerclsed) of the .Bonds !

DMD & comPanY secretary

united Commercial Bank PLC United Commercial Bank PLC

Arranger
Issue Marager for the
public offer/issue

Tenure
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-rl?lls on a day that is not a Business Day, the Call Option price
shall be paid by the Bank on the immediately preceding
Business Day along with profit accrued on the Bonds until but
exc the date of such ment.

Not Appllcable.
Since the instrument ,s perpetual in nature i,e. there is no mah./rity
date; late rcdemption is not applkable unless and untl it is eligible for
call criteria.
Not A

tr [tt
Pa0e B of

a.

.l(!

'E

=

r
il
t-'

o-

U)
o

s

a

o
fu D,'
o-'<dEo-

4

o

.q .9:z,=

{.4

?)
? 4 oil 2A23

?t !EUCB 2od

saruk Ahamrnad, CA ATM Tah uzzaman, FCs
Deputy Me;laging Director & CF')
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DMD & Company Secretary M na9rng clor

Arif adri
Dire M ul Haque

Managing Director
hine Iinuce Crpital Manrgrmel]t Lrmited

Late Redemption

Put Price
Call option

Call Option Eligibility

Can be exerched only after ten years of issuance, with prior approval
from the Banqladesh Bank

Not Applicable

nts after th. call is exercised
Claim Settlement in the
event of Liquidation or
Wind-up

Claims of the ini/estors on the bond are:
1. Supedo. to the claims of investors in equity shares and

perpetual flonrumulative preference shares, if any, of the
bank whether currently outsbnding or issud at any time in
the future.

2. subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors and
subordinated debt of the Bank other than any subordinated
debt quafirying as Mditional Tier I Capital (as defined in the
Basel III Guidelines) of the Bank;

3. Is neither secure{ nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer nor
related entity or other arrdngement that legally or economically
enhances the seniority of the claim vis-a-vis bank creditoB

4. Notwithstanding anythlng to the contrary supulated herein, the
clalms of the Bondholders shall be subject to the provisions of
Loss Absorption in tfiis brms and features.

Any losses will be absorbed in the following manner:
Converslon to common shares at pre-spe(ified kigger point as needed
!o reach the minimum consolldated CET-1 ratio as per Bangladesh Bank

(qurrently of 4.500/0).
Loss Absorptlon
Methodology

CET-1 on Trlgger Date wlll be considered to identify the shortfall
percentage and it will be conveded into common shares eventually. If
a fractional share issuance arises upon conversion, the issuer will round
the number of shares issuablq up to the next whole numbe.. Fractional
lot size will also be rounded to the next whole number.

Trigger Point for Loss
Absorption

If the bank's consolidated CEI-I falls below Bangladesh Bank
requirement (Cunently of 4.509o) and sbys below for 03 Ohree)
successive quarters; then, the 3rd quarter-end date of cons€cutive
below-minimum CET-1 Ratio would be tfte Trigger-Point (date), Once
the trigger point has been reached and exercised, the cycle will shrt
again.

Convercion Strike Price Avemge market price of the immediate 180 days or par va[te (curren y
BDT 10) u',hict€ver is hiqher.

[Qryment Suspension

H$q)dolosy

*\

In case of the event of exercise of loss absorp$on feature of the bond,
any coupon payment in between the higger date and publication date
of audited financials will be hold. The bondholder will not be eligible fot
the coupon payment if tfie same situation prevails (CEI-I (Conso)
remains belotrv the regulatory requirement of 4.5oh) after Ule l
pqllication of audited fmancials. I

Corl?Lrsion Nntice In time of conversion Trustee must notiry the bondholders in
accordance with not less than 2 business days prior to start of each.

€3ib

United Commercial Bank PIC United Commercial Bank pLC

:-

Put Date

1. Replace this instrument with capital of the same or better
quality that are sustainable for the income capaclty of the
Bank, or.

2. Gpital posiuon ls above the minimum

Loss Absorption



conversion period of the commencement date and the final date of
such conversion period. All notices are validly given if:

. Mailed to bondholders at their respective address in the
register,

. Published fo. drree consecutlve days in one English newspaper
and one Bengali newspaper; each haying wide circulation in
Bangladesh,

. Emailed to bondholders at their respective addresses set out in
the lssuer Register provided that such notices !,lll only be
considered as validly given unless followed up lirlth hard copies
of the natices being mailed to the bondholders or published for
three consecutive days in a leading ne*irspaper as aforesaid,

Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the seventh
day after being so mailed or on the later of the date of such

Event3 of D€fault Not Appllcable.
It is further clarified that cancellation of dascretionary payments/coupon
shall not be deemed to be an event of default. The Bondholders shall
have no rights to accelerate the repayment of Future scheduled
payments (coupon or principal) exce9t ln bankruptcy and liquidation.

Common Equity
llolders' Dividend
stopper Clause

TransfcrabilitylLiquidity

Dividend Stopper Clause will be applicable to these Bonds and it will
stsp common equity holders' dividend payments on common shares in
the event U€ holders of the Bonds are not paid coupon, In the event
the holders of the Bonds are not paid coupon, they shall not impede
the tull discretion that Issuer has at all tlmes to cancel
dlskibutions/payments on the Bonds, nor will they impede / hinder:

(i) The Re-Capitalization ofthe lssuer.

(ii) The lssue/s right to make payments on other instruments,

where the payments on this other instrument were not

also fully discretionary
(iii) The lssuer's right to making dktributions to shareholderr

for a period that extBnds beyond the point in time that
coupon on the Bonds are resumed. The normal operation

of the lssuer or any restructuring activity (including

acquisltionsl disposalsl-'

Freely transferable in accordance with the provisions of the Deed of
Trust.

Governang Law
Tfle Bonds are governed by and shall be construed in accordance with
Ure existing laws of Bangladesh. Any dispute arising thereof shall be
subiect to the iurisdiction of courts of Banqladesh.
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B. FINANCIAL ANALY$S
8.1. Capital A@uacy
Exlribit4: kM lndldbrs of IEB
Ff 31 Decenber

19-FY2022 data extracted From Audlted Fi.a.ri.l Statements
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Tier-I Capital (BDT Million)
xetal capital (BDT Million)
hD(Fisk weishted Assets (BDr Mittion)

$er-IlEtio (o/o)

BAR(%)

36,328.23

52,673.82
403/261.2r

9.01

13.06

27 t254.27
46,236.!s

314,868.22

8.66
14.68 ,
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United Con
mpanySecretary
mercial gank plC

Managing Director
P,iDl h0lm Clprlll Mi0a!etut[l Lrlllikd

34,164.53

s2,760,9s
386,741.54

B.89

13.64

28,848,43

50,231.61

336,719,54
8.57

14.92



Capital adequacy focsses on the overall capital soundness of a bank in order to protect depositors
and other crcditoE from the bank's potential losses. Therefore, under Basel III, Bangladesh Bank has
adopted various risk-based capital requirements, requiring each bank to hold a minimum capital of
12-500/0 along with a capital conservation buffer that includes a minimum core capital ratio of 6.0006
is required.

'l'ier I .apltal increased by 5.71ol0, mainly due to increases in statutory reserves and paid up capital.
Meanwhile, the Bank's Tler 2 capital decreased by 11,13Y0 due to the repayment of subordinated
debt and the reduction of provision for unclassified loans. As a result, the Banks total capital Cfier-I
and Tler-II) decreased sllghtly by 0.15y0 from BDT 52.756.93 million in fY2021 to BDI 52,573.82
million at the end of FY2022,

At the same time, the bank's risk-weighted assets increased by 4.2V/o to reach BOT 4A3,261,21
mllliofl by the end of FY2022. ]]er I capital grew faster lhan risk-weighH assets and ultimately Tier I
ratio improved year-on-year. However. total capital growth slowed as Tier II (apital deseased
rclative to total risk-welghted assets. As a result, the capatal to risk weight ratio deterlomted slighuy
fom 13.6406 a year earlier to 13,060/o. ECRL is concerned about the gradual decline in the banks
Capital-to{isk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) over the perlod. Nevert}eless, the bank has maintained
the minimum capital reguirement of 12.50% ln Fr2022.

Figarc 4: Capital-t&isk Webhw AsseE Ratio (CMR) tusltlon of L|CB
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8.2. Asset Composition & Trends
Exhibir S: kletd Indifltots for IJCB
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ucB's total ass€t base showed year-on-year growth from ryz019 to Fy2022. Accordinq to financial
data, asset book of UCB has witnessed a grolvth rute of 11.10?o by standing at BDi 620,076.83
million in FY2022 while a slight inrease growth rate of 14.60% was experiencd by the bank in the
prior financial year by shnding at BDT 565314.21 million. Looking at the composition of total asseq
the gross loans & advances is the main component which occupied majority portion of 74.6lvo oi
tobl assets in fy2022, However, tohl asset grotvth slowed year-over-year, mainly due to reducuon in
the bank's investment portrolio and balances with other banks'& financial institutions in Bangladesh.

8,2.L. Asset Quality
Gross loans, the main component of total assets, soared ry 16.43% and reached at BDT 46g,605.10
million in FY2022 comparcd to 14.44% growth in the previous year"

In the meantime, the investment portfolio of the bank reduced by 6.09% followed by a SZ.26Vo
decline in investment in government treasury bills and 0.62y0 decllne investment ln government
bonds. Consequently, total lnvestment portfolio of the bank reached to BDT BDT 26,434.56 million in
FY2022 down from BDT 81,387.61 mlltion tn Fy2021.

Figure 5: klecd ltdlcab$ ,f LCB
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With rising loans and ad\rances, non?erforming loans (NPL5) increased by 58.30o/o compared to BDT
17,737.29 million in the previous year, reaching gDT 28,077.69 million by the end of FyZ022,
ultimately resulting in a total non-performing loan mtio for Fy2022 of 5.9Wo whkh was 4,4lyo a year
ago.

Non-performing loans (NPL) of the bank ls mainly .omprised of bad loans, Among the tohl non-
performing loans, 93.050/0 {fY2021:97,6V/o) are classifled as Bad Loans, 5.77/o (Fyal2t:1,061b) as
Sub-standard Loans, and remaining 1.22qo (Fy2021i 0.71%) 

's 
recorded as Doubtful Loans.

Therefore, this result suggests that bank has greater concentration on the bad loss loan in its non-
performing loan over the years. Furthermore, it should be noted that unclassified loans and advances
constitutes of 2.3?o/o of Standard (SMA) Loans, 97.28o/o ol Standard Loans and 0.400/0 of SMA-
Special PSDL (BRPD-s) Loans.

noted above, UCB'S non-performing loans registered an increase in FYZoZZ however the loan loss
ratio was observed b decline through the end of Fy2022. On the other side, the bank met its

in terms of provision requirement of BDT 19,208.24 million and there was no excess or
proyision. Howeyer, as NPL exceedei the required reserves, banks, loan loss reserve st"

ratio fell from 93.50% to 68.41% in F1m22,

'o
5

OI
4=
3q
EFxr*

o.

(r)

o

?

J

F

,L
4 uEt, ?023 {[t?

U1

ATM

DMD &
na6 sUnlted Commercial Bank PLC

United Commerci

paoe rr of 22 
-)

*u@/^r*
Managing Director

Pi[c Fimce Crpilal Maolgemtnt Lifiiled

F

t q 0Et'

s
.)t{



,tl

Figare 6: S€lected lndlcdtot:s of UCB

30,000.00

2s,000.00

20,000.00

1s,000.00

10,000.00

5,000.00

2A]9

!r Gtoss IPL5

- 
toan Lrss Relervei

"**liet NPtf,rtio (X)

E
Fa
a0

0.00

-1.00

-2.00

-3.00

4.00

-5.00

2022

8.2.2. Loan Diversifiaation and Concentration

UCB focuses on vadous economic sectors including ready-made garments and textile, commercial
trade financing, power and energy industry, houslng and construction industry,
engine{ring/metauship-breaking industrles, seMce Industries, food and allied industrieg. paper &
paper product industry, jute industry and marry more reflected by its sector wise loans & advances.

Accordlng to sector concentration, the loans and advances portfolio of UCB was primarlly dominated
by uncategorized lnduskies (19,10olo) followed by ready-made garmenb & accessories (17.94vo),
commercial trade finarKlng (76.740/o), textiles (6.93Yo) and Real Estate (5.34%) and the rest by
various other industries during FY2022. Geographically only 2,96oh of the bank's loans and advances
are rural, while the remaining 97.04Eo are concentrated in urban areas. Dhaka sector accounts for the
majority of tfle loan concentration at 76,7QVo, while tie Chittagong sector rank second with 19.1490
ln f'(2022.

Flgarc 2: lndustrfwire distributlon of t@ns & advanftt ol IJCB

2020 2021

Axis Tltle

F

--
-

rc

trt.
Ir
I

a.a Mrnufr.Urrlng

Commercial T..d€ f h.hcin8

Ela!*ontc! Medh

tlourha hdu5tr1,

T.anlport & Communlcation

Edu6tlonallnrthut€. Hotel,Rdtaurant

Shlp Re-c.ydhg

Bd.k Fld4 Allto B,kt , Tlk5

Ch€nlcrl & Chemi<al ducts
Prp.. & P.pcr Pmducls hdu!t.L.

llrte lMustrLt

Alrldrhurr

RM6 & Arcegsarie!

5 2022

,2Om

a 2021

s
n

5
E}

o
o
.l.!

f

CN

.S,N
et sq000,000.000.00 100,000,000,000.00 E

A

x

!

E
J

E

IB.El. Rescheduled and Wrltten-Off Loans
.)
E'o

During fY2022, the bank's reschedullng of loans and advances has increased significantly ln terms of
both amount & accounts and totaled gW 24,775.90 million against 192 accounts whereas it was BDT
5387.91 mi,lion against Slaccounts in

fffro"
year. Morcover, written off of BDT
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4.232.49 million of its loans and advances during the period FY2022 whereas it was only BOT 533.99
million in FY2021. At the end of the year, the NPL5, rescheduled loans and written{ff loans toqetlrer
represented only 12,050/0 of the loan book of the bank, exhibiting a dramatic uplift frorn 5.8BoA in the
previous year.

8.2.4. Large Loan Exposure

In FfN22, exposure to large loans (inciuding funded and unfunded bans exceedinq 100/6 of the
bank's total capital) decreased compared to the Eevious year, The balance of these loans amounted
to BDT 242,979.10 million to 40 customers, down from ADI 244,W4.41 millton to 41 customers in
tfie previous year,

8.2.5, Off-Balance sheet exFosure

The off-balance sheet exposuro of UCB is conslsted of 43,ffio/S of accephnce & endorsements,
27.51Yo of letter of guarantee, 18.450/0 of irrcvocable letters of credft, 9,42% of bills for collection
and 1.040/0 of forward assets in Fr2022, Hence, Acordingly, UCB reported tohl off-balance sheet
er(posure of BOT 217 t939,76 milllon, dow. 16.31% in FY2022, compared with an inoease of Z9.69yo
in trie previous year. Moreovei the off-balanc8 sheet items of the bank accounted for 34,70% of the
tobl assets of the bank in FY202Z (fyaAzl-i 46,A7o/n) demonstrating reduced exposure during this
year compared to FY2021.

8.3, Earning Trends and Profrtability
Exhibrt 6r *te& Indicalors d IEB
FY Sl Occenbcr ZOZ2 2021 2O2O 2019

FYr019-FY2022 dala eftt acted from Audltcd Fnramial Sl;tements

Qedit demand is gaining momentum across the banking sector as the economy reopens after the
pandemk. facilitated by higher gross loans and advances/ interest income on loans and advances of
the bank surged by 15.160/0 which eventually led to a 15.950/o total interest income of the tlank.
Similarly, rise in the deposit base oF the bank along with borrowings and other uncategorized liabillties
have resulted in a hlke in total interest expense of the bank, The increase ,n interest expenses
surpassed the growth in interest income of the bank urhich shrunk Ste growth of net interest expense
of tie year. In line with this, net interest income of UCB increased by 9.45Vo ln F'Q022, totaling BDT
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of the bank has surged by L4.92o/o by standing at BDT 28,522 mlllion during the yea

4.674.45 million, compared to a 40.85o/o lrow*r in the prior year.
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the growth of the Bank! investment portfolio also generated higher investment reE,gns
he year. On the other hand, non-interest income decreaseal by 67.080/0 in FY20E to

187.75 million as capital gains from the sale of shares in FY2022 decreased slgniflcaglly.
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the same time, commlssion income. fees, exchange & brokerage as well as other operating ingllne
by 37.630/o and 19.55o/o respectively n FY2O2?. As a result, the total operating inceme
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Net Interest Income €rcwth (o/o)

Non-Interest Income (BDT Million)
Hon-Interest Income Growtlr (o/o)
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Pr€-Tax Profit (BDT Million)
alost-Tax koftt (BDT Million)
Post-Tax Profit Growti (o/o)

Po6t - Tax ROAE (o/o)

lnterest Spread (o/o)

l{et Interest Margin (c/o)
Cost to Ircome Ratio (o/o)

9,sr0.78 t0,797.81
9.s4 40.8s (11.92) 16.83
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27.23 4.06 t0.76 9.51
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Figt rc 8: Selected iadicato"ls ol L1CE
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UCB'5 total operating expenses increased by 16.510lo to reach BDT 17,053.97 m'llion ir FY2022. As a
result, the cost-to-income ratio has risen al 59.792o/o this year, up from 58.97o/o last year. Finally,
improved operating profia growth led to a 12.620lo lncrease in profit before provision adjustment,
bringing the total for FY2022 to BDT 11,468.77 million. Nevertheless, the Bank still managed to
generate a higher pre-tax proflt compared to the prevlous year, even though the Bank's provisiofl
costs increased significantiy during the year due to the increase in flon-performing loans. On the
other hand, the increase in tax charges could not .educe the bank's after-tax profit, which was BDT

4,024.01 milllon ln FY2022 compared to BUT 3,1n.0 million in FY2021. Additionally, UCB'S aveEge
interest margin decreased slightly to Z,Boo/o i^ FY2022 compared to 2.89Vo in FY2021.
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8.4.1. Fund Managem€nt

UCBt funding comes from its deposit base, intefuank liabilities, uncategorized other liabilities, equity
and subordinated debt. Majority of the fundinE comes from its deposit base making up 67.B3vo of
UCB'S to€l liabillues and equity base at the end ot FY2022, with lnterbank liabilities accounting for
16.54%, followed by uncategorized other liabilities (9.110/0), equity (5.520&), and subordinated debt
accounting for the rest 1.8390. Multipte iffegularities in the bankang sector came to light in the latter
h.ilf of the FY20Z2, which hindered the confidence of the depositors and consequenfly they started to
withdraw their deposits from hank. However, despite the prevailing pressure on deposits UCB'S

deposit base has improved moderately 61 9.27o/o in FY2022 compared !o a gmwth of 10.15o/o ln

FY2021. Fixed deposits remain the major component of the deposlt base displaying a 9,007o growth
over the previous year and constituting 56.080/o of the total deposits and 38.0404 of the total funding
base. Meanwhile, the bank is consistently lncreasing its attention on current and saving deposits over
the years which are comparauvely low cost deposits. Following this, the current deposit and saving
deposit of the bank grew by 16.129o and 6.370/o respectively in F'{2022. On the other hand, bills
payable exp€rienced a decrease of 20,6B0/o by the end a{ FY20?7, Nonetheless, the composition of
the componen6 of the deposits lollowed a similar trend as the preceding years' In the meantime,

interbank liabilities of the bank have increased consistently over the years except ior FY2019. The
dependence for funding from lnterbank liabiliues inoeased further by 21.08Yo in Fl207Z,

The bank has kept lts ADR ratio tyithin the requlatory requirement of Bangladesh Bank of 87olo during
F!2022 and scored 86.14v0 in tie loan to deposit ratio which shows further room for credit facilities
to be offered, The net toans (subtracting provision and interest suspense account fmm gross loans)

were 158,910/0 of the stable funding base in 2022 which was !46.770/0 in previous year.

Eigare lO: W ,ldicators of UCB
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Daposits to Total Funding (q/o)
hterbank Liabilitier to Total Fund
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351,683.56 402,48L.74 468,605.10

353,981.62 349,900.72
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322,728.14

334,632.23 426,028.44

81.18 83.73
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8.4, Funding and Liquidity
ExhiMt 7: klec@ hdlcators of UCB
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UCB has been maintaining Cash ReseNe Ratio (CRR) and Statutory Lrquidity Requircment (SLR) in
line with Bangladesh Bank requirement. The CRR and SLR requirement of UCB against conventional
banking was SW 17,75978 million and BDT 5&652.44 million as on December 31, 2022, The bank
kept BDT 18.485.34 million and 8DT 75,926,83 million respectively for CRR and SLR as on December
31, 2022. Total surplus amount from CRR and SLR stood at BDT 725.57 million and BDI 17,274.39
million in FY2022 rcspectively. In lhe meantime, The CRR and SLR requirement of UCB against
Islamic banking is BDT 314,14 million and BDT 431.95 million as on December 31, 2022 agBinst
which UCB kept 3DT 386.24 million and BDT 653.06 million respectively. Total surplus amount from
both CRR and SLR against tslamic banking stood at BDT 7a10 million and BDT 221.11 million in
FY2022 respectively.

The maturity-based asset and liability profile of UCB are distributed over different time horizons. The
bank had net liquidity gap in 1 - 3 months, and over 5 years bracket in FY2022 and shown surplus
net liquidity in all other brackets, Eventually, the total net liquldity comprisiru all maturity periods in
FY2022 has resulted in net clmulative surplus.

C. MARKET RISKANALYSIS
Markets rlsks of a perpetual Bond may arise due to uncertainty related to the lnteresvprofit rate risk,
limited subscrlber risk, call risk etc, Moreover Bond by nature ls exposed to many sources of risk. The
term structure of the interest rate/proflt rate can shift and twist ln different ways. lssuem may default
due to sector wide problems or individual cred't dimcuties.

The Perpetual Bond is sensitive towards both market ard company speciflc risks. All investments
which offer a balance between risk and potential retum are g.aded to be the higher rated investrnent.
The balance between risk and return varies by the typ€ of investment (in this case Perpe&al Bond),
the entity that issues it, the state of the economy and the cycle of the securities markets,

The entlty in discussion will issue an Unsecured, Contingent-Convertiblq fully paid up, Non-
Cumulative Perpetual Bond of BDT 3,000.00 million For the purpose of strengthening Tier I capital
base. UCB Investment Limlted has been acting as the mandated lead arranger whereas trustee of the
bond is Prime Sank Investment umited. ECRL considered tie following risk analysis related to the
both market and insbument specific risk.

C.1" Coupon Rate Risk

coupon rate risk affects the value of Bonds that arises when an investme.nt's value will change due to
a change in the absolute level of interesvproflt rates. An upward movement of the market interest
rate over the term deposit will generate a higher return of $e Bond than benchmark rate. But the
rate of retum will not fall below 6.000/0 p.a, lowering the isk of the potential lnvestors. In addition,
on the part of the ban( coupon rak risk is also mitigated by the coupon ceiling rate of 10.00V0 p.a.

which means at no circumstance the coupon rate wlll go above 10.000/0 p.a.

C.2. Call risk
There is a call option for the issuer which can be exercised only after ten years of assuance, with prior
approval from the Bangladesh Bank. However, to exerclse the call optlon, the issuer needs to redace
this instrument with capital of the same or better quality that are sustalnable for the income capacity
of the Banlq or, Capltal positon is above the mlnimum reguirements after the call option is exercised.
In thls case, the bondholders will lose the expected profit.

. COMPANY SPECIFIC RISK ANALYSIS
integral part of financing business and thus every financia! instiution ls exposed to risk of

s
and magnitude. So, the prime responsibility of every Rnancial institution ls to manage

such that its return from business can be maxlmized. Banks are exposed to flve core risks
their operation, which are Credit Risk, Assevuability Risk, Foreign Exchange Risk, lnterlal
& Compliance Risk, Money Laundering Risk, and Information & crmmunication Technology

Security Risk. As a prudent and attaches top
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Credit risk is one of the most vita, risks for any commercial bank as like United Commercial Bank PLC.

Credit ,isk arises from non-pedormance by a bormwer. It may arise from either an inability or an
unwillinqness to perform in the prc-commitment contracted manner, The real rlsk from credit is the
deviation of podfolio performance from its expected value, The $edit risk of a bank is also effect the
book value of a bank. Tlrc more credit of a particular is ln risk, the more probability of a bank to be
insolvent.

D.?" As$et Lialrility Management Risk

Asset Liability Management (AtM) is an integral part of Bank Managemenq and so it is essential to
have a shuctured and sysbmatic process to manage the Balance Sheet risk properly. UCB has
developed an "Assets Liability Managernent Committ€e" comprlsing of the senior management of the
bank to make important decisions related to the Balance Sheet of the bank. It also dweloped a
guideline ln line with Bangladesh Bank guidellnes to meet abovementloned purpose, The Asset
Uability Manageme* Committee (ALCO) of UCB is headed by the Managing Director of the Bank
which meets at least once in every month to look after the financial market activitles, manage
liquidity risk, lnterest rate rlsk and Fx or cunency risk. Asset Uabillty Management (ALM) desk of the
Treasury is primarily responsible for management of liquidity risk on a daily basis by appropriate
coordination of funding activities, Asset Liability lylanagernent risk can be classified into three major
cateEories such as liquidity r,sk, lnterest risk, forelgn exchanqe risk.

0.2,1. Liquidity &isk

Liquidity risk is the potenbal for loss !o a bank arising fron either its inability to meet its obllgations
as they fall due or to fund increases in assets wlthout incurring unacceptable cost or losses. Liquidity
risk arises when tlre crshion provided by the liquid assets are not sufncient enough to meet maturing
obligations, Liquidity risk is often triggered by the consequences of other financial risks such as credit
rislt lnterest rate rislq foreign excharue risk. etc, For instaflce, a large loan default or changes in
interest rate can adversely impact a bank's liquldity position. Loans to deposit ratjo indicates a bank
liqu'dity position and UCB'S loans deposit ratio stood at 83.73o/o in December 2021 which indicates

the overall liquidity posiuon is in satisfactory level. UCB'5 Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) is

entrusted with the responsibility of managinq short-term and long-term assets and ensuring adequate
liquidity at optimal funding cost. ALCO also reviews llquldity requirement of the ban& the maturity of
assets and liabilities, deposit and lending priclng strategy and the liquidity contingency plan,

D.22. lnterest Rate Risk

lnterest rate rlsk is the possible loss from adverse movements in market interest rates. Changes in
lnterest rates affect a bank's earnings by changing its net interest income and the level of other
lnterest-sensitive income and operating exp€nses. An investmenys value will change due to change in
the absolute level of interest rates. Such changes usually affect securities inversely and can b€
reduced by diversiryhq or hedging (through an interest rate s{ap) techniques. The Asset Liability
Committee (ALCO) of UCB is the main body which looks after and monitors investment profit rdte
structure, The commlttee also evaluate any market risk arises from the regulatory pressurc thus
reducing the profit rdte. Moreover, ALCO mmmittee is always watdful to adverse movement oF the
different market variables.

2,3. foreign fxchange Risk

E exchange risk is the current or prospective risk to earnl0gs and capital arising from adverse
is in currency exchange mtes. Managing foreign exchange rlsk involves prudently managing \s'.,.-

cu
rates on the financial position of the bank. Introduction of market bas€d ochange rate of
rrency positions in o.der to control. within set parameters, the impact of changes in

si<,
)I

Taka has resulted in both trading opportunities and associated foreign exchange volatility risk.
has developed a "Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy"
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S.*, Sp*:r*tional Risk

Bangladesh Bank defines operational risk as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal pocesses, people and systems or from external events. This ope.ational risk also includes
legal risks but not strategic and reputational risks.

D.3,1., &nti-Mon!:y Laundering Policy

Money laundering risk refe6 to acquired or eamed propedies directly or indirectly through illegal
means. Ir'l boarder sense, illegal transfer, convemion, concealment of location or assistance in the
above act of the properties acquired or eamed directly ff indirectly througlr legal or illegal means. So
Anti Money Laundering risk is defined as the loss of reputaton and expenss incurred as p€nalty for
being neqligent in prevention of money launderinq activities. UCB has formulated a guideline on AML
and ATF iss{es since in line with the amendment of the AML Act 2012 made by the Government.
Cent,"l Compliance Unit (CCU) ls in force headed by the Chief AnU Money Launderlng Compliance
(CAMLCO) at Head Office and Branch Compliance Unit (BcU) headed by the Branch Anti Money
Lau0dering Compllance Officer (BAMLCO) who is entrusted to conply with BFIU instructions in order
to prevent Money Laundedng and Combating Financinq of Terrorism. In line with this, they
independently review the kansactions of the accounts to veriry suspicious tran$dions. UCB has also
preparcd its own policy on "Prevention of Trade Based Money Laundering" on september 29, 2020
based on the BRU guidelines on the same.

S.3"2, Internal Control dnd Complianee (ICC)

UCB has a diversified and complex financial activity withh the €lunby. Since its activity involves hlgh
risk, the lssue of effective intemal control system, corporate govemance, ftmsparency, accountability
has become significant issues to ensure smooth periormance in banking industry of Bangladesh. In
many banks intemal control is identified with intemal audit; the scope of intemal control is not limited
to audit work. It is ao integral part of the daily activity of a bank, which on its own medt identifies the
risks associated with the process and adopts a measure to mitigate the same, lnternal Audit on tie
other hand ls a part of Inbmal Conbol system which reinforces the control system through regular
reyiew. In line with this, it plays an imporbnt role in preventing and detecting fraud and protecting

the organization's resources, At the organization level, lnternal control objectlves relate to the
reliability of financial reporting, Umely feedback on the achievemeivstrategic goals, and comdiance
with laws and regulations. At the specific transsction level, internal corfrol refers to the actions taken
to ad eve a specinc objective. As per BB requirement, UCB has revised its organogram and structure
of internal control and compllance division alonq wlth audit division and audit division has been
separated tom IccD whidr will act independenBy ftom now, Internal control can provlde reasonable
not absolute assumnce that the objectives of an organization will be mel Effectiv€ internal conttol
implles that the organlzation generates reliable financial reporting and substantially complies with all
laws and regulations that apply to it

D.3.3. Information & Conlmunicatlon Tehnology (IcT) secudtf system

Risks surrounding IT, such as network failure, lack of skllls, hacklng and viruses and poor sysbm
integration have the potential !o have a negauve impact on a Bank. UCB has developed an "ICT
tblicy" comply with the 'Guideline on information & Communication Echnology" issued by Bangla&sh
Bank for protecting the ICT systems. So it becomes prerequisite to establish disaster recovery site for
rescuing valued data and !o re-establish normal business operation. The bank lmplemented a disast€r
recovery site that would be activated in case of disaster, whidl brought and restored data in
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systems Sofu/vare (oFSS),
Banking Software (CBS) of UCB, namely
went live from 22d June 2014. With the lmplementatlon of CBs,

authenticated way. The new CORE Flexcube UBS of Oracle

workplace more secured. UcB is connected to Banghdesh Bank & other Eanks netwo*. 5o Bank can
transfer/receive money and s€curities in real time. It reduces the cost of exchanging money and
services, and is indispensable to the functioning of $e interbank, money. and eapital ma*ets, To
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E. MAHAGE M EI.IT AtiI D OTH E R QUALITATWE FACTORS

E. 1. Corporate Governan{e

United Commercial Bank PLC focuses on ethi.s, innovation and transparencl for establishing rrell
organized corporate governance within the company. The main objective of UCB'S corporate
govemance is to develop a stmng, sustainable and competitive company in the best interest of its
shareholders, employees, business associates and society at large. Aligned with the regulatory
requirements and guidelines set by the Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh securities & Exchange
Comrnission (BScC), the bank maintalns good corporate governance standards. The Board of
Directors (BoD) of the bank consists of 20 eminent. The board is headed by Ms. Rukhmlla Zaman, the
Chairman of BoD. She is a young woman entrepreneur of the country and also the Managing Director
of Aramit Group, a leading manufacturing Conglomerate oF the counw.

The corporate governance system of the bank ensures that duties and responslbllities are
appropriately segregated between the BoD and management to provade sufficient checks, balance
and flexibility for smooth business operation. The 8oD approves the bank's budget and business plan

and rcvlews those time to time so as to give directions as per changing economlc and market
environment. l-lle BoD reviews the policies and manuals of the various segmer*s of businesses in
order to establish effective risk management in credit and other key areas of operations. The BoD
also ensures that adequate internal contml systems are ln place and they are consistentiy complied
with to provide reasonabh assurance that financial records are reliable for preparation of flnancial
statements. The BoD further ensures that quality of financial reporting is maintained, assets of the
bank are safeguarded against unaufrorized use or disposiuon and accountability for assets and
business transactions are maintained. with an obiective to monitor and manage the bank's
operations, performance and strategy in line with Bangladesh Bank's guidelines, the BoD of UCB has
three sub-committees. Details of these committees are presented below.

8.1.1. Exec0tive Committee

The Executive Committee of the UCB consists of 7 members and is headed by Mr. Anisuzzaman
Cho$dhury. The commlttee takes declsion on emergency matters as and when requird and assisb
the BoD !o fulfill its responslbiliues such as to s€t objectives, strategies and overall business plans for
efFective functioning of the bank, The committee revie1^,s the policies and guidelines lssued by the
Bangladesh Bank regarding c,€dit and other opera[ons of the banking industry, The Executive
Commiuee of the Board appmves the credlt proposals as p€r approved policy of the Board. The
management ensures due diligence of the cEdit policy and risk ]rEnagement at the time of
submittng the credit proposals.

E.1.2, Audit Committ€e

The Audit Committe€ of UCB is comprised of 5 members of the BoD and 15 chaired by Mr. Touhid
Shipar Rafiquzraman. This Audit committee acts as a bddge among the BoD, Executive Authority,
Depositors and Shareholders etc. The committee reviews the flnancial statement of the bank at least
on quarterly basis. They conduct various special reviews by the Eoard Audit Cell, a hlghly empowered
cell working under the committee. Audlt Committee meets wlth the external auditors to discuss audit
plan and risk management process of the bank.

E,I.3. Risk Manag€ment Committee
Apart from the Exeaufive committee and Audit Committee of the Boardr a Risk Management

mi$ee has been formed which is responsit{e for planning and guiding on overal} risk
of the bank. This committee consists of 6 members and is chaired by Mr, M. A. Sabur.

ittee's prime responsibillties are to define the rlsk appgtite, designing organizational
manage risk within the bank, understanding the inherent rbks of the bank, then
approving risk management policies. The committee is also involved in enforcing and

adequate recordkeeping and reporting syslems, reviewing and approving limib and reviewing
at least annually and last but not the least monltoring compliance with overall risk management
policGs and limits.
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The strategic managemenl activities and overall business operations of UCB are supervised and
directed by the Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Arif Quadri wl'lo is a prominent and professional Banker
with years of rewarding multidimensional experience in banking and other fields of Management is
the Managing Director & CEO of Unlted Commerclal Bank PLC (UCB). Before that, he was serving the
Bank as Additional Managing Director. Prior to joining in UCB, he was the Deputy Manaoing Dlreclor
& Chief operating Officer of premier Bank Limited. Along with the role of Managing Dircctor oF UCB,
Mr. Araf Quadri is also contributing as Chairman of UCB Asset Management Limited. He attended
different training pmgrams and seminar at home and abroad. Mr. Arif Quadri has excellent academic
kack record, He cornpleted his both graduation and post-gmduation degree in Economics from
Jahangirnagar University,

Apart from functional departrnents, several Management committees have been fomed to handle the
banking operation and identiry and manage the risk associated with the business. The key
committees are Senior Manaqement Team (SMT) and Asset tiabi,ity Committee (ALCO) for ensuring
compliance with Bangladesh Banl(s guidelines,

$enior Management Team (SHT)| sMT of UCB comprises of senior executives of the
management and headed by the Manaqing Director & CEO of the bank, SMT meets on regular basis
to discuss relevant agenda and scruunizes all the cases thoroughly before referring tio Executive
Committee/Board for due approval decision.

Asret Liability Committee (ALCO)! The bank has set up Asset Liability Commlttee which is
headed by the Managing Director, The committee's prime roles and responsibilities are to manage
liquidity & profit rate risk of deposit and lending. understanding the market dynamics and dsk
elements involved within the business, assuming money ma*et activities and last but not least
complying bank's statutory obllgEtions wlth the local Central Bank regulations.

8,3. Human R€source Managem€dt

UCB has consistently been ftedlng the development requirements of emplo)€es in r.drious job grades
with the requisite competencies enabllng them to meet the changing business needs and also to
replenish employees retiring from bank's services.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Unlted Commercial Bank PLc

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of United Commercial Bank PLC and its
subsidiaries (the "Group') as well as the separate financial statements of United Commercial Bank PLC
(the "Bank'), which comprise the consolidated and separate balance sheets as at 31 December 2022
and the consolidated and separate profit and loss accounts, consolidated and separate statemenLs of
changes in equity and consolidated and separate cash flow statements for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of signifiGnt
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and separate flnancial
statements of the Bank glve a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and
the separate financial posihon of the Bank as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated and separate
financlal perlormance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS) as explained in note no. 2.1.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audito/s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), guidelines issued by Bangladesh Bank, and rules
and regulations issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), and we have fulfllled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered

untants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye-Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

t and approprlate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a

Key au rs are those matters that, in our professional jldgement, were of most signiflcance in

r
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter desc our descri our audit addressed the matter is provided ins
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Description of key audit matters
1. Measurement of provision for loans and advances
Refer to note no. 7, 72.L, 12.2 and 35 to the consolidated and separate financial statements

The process of estimating provision for loans and
advances associated with credit risk is
judgmental and complex. While estimating such
provision certain judgmental factors need to be
considered including:

. Future business performance
borrower;

. Key assumptions relating to
business;

. Performance of the borrower;

. Market value of the collateral;

. Ability to repossess collateral; and

. Recovery rates.

Furthermore, these provisions are processed

manually using the voluminous data extracted
from the IT system of the Bank and Following the
instructions of Bangladesh Bank (the central
bank of Bangladesh) issued from time to time.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group and the Bank
reported total provision for loans and advances
of BDT 19,208 million (December 2021: BDT
16,584 million) and BDT 19,208 million
(December 2027i BDT 16,584 million)
respectively.

of the

further

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness oF key controls focusing on the
following:

Credit monitoring and pror'isioning
process;
Identification of loss events including
early warning indicator and deFault
warning indicators; and
Review ofqua*erly Classification of Loans
(cL);

Our substantive procedures in relation to the
provision for loans and advances portfolio
comprised the following:

Reviewed the adequacy of the provision
requ irements;
Assessed the methodologies on which the
provision amounts are based,
recalculated the provisions and tested the
completeness and accuracy of the
underlying information; and
Finally, assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures against
relevant accounting standards and
Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

2. Recognition of i[terest income from loans and advances
Refer to note no. 7 and 20 to the consolidated and separate financial statements

Recognition of interest income has significant
and wide influence on financial statements.

Recognltion and measurement of interesl income
has involvement of complex IT environment.

identifled recognition of interest income
and advancas as a key audit matter
is is one of the key performance

of the Bank and therefore there is an
risk of fraud and error in recognition of

interest by management to meet specific targets
or expectations.

^S{Jhe 
year ended 2022, the Group and the Bank

ffi fi l.r.g';l',,+'f,Tff*ffi,,t"i'?[,,H;
2021 t) Decembet Z0Z!: W4 27.465 million)-

use

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls over recogniion
and measurement of interest from loans and
advances.

We have performed test of operating
effectiveness on automated control in place to
measure and recognize interest income.

We have also performed substantive procedure
to check whether interest income is recognized
completely and accurately.

We have assessed the appropriateness andi
presentation of disclosures against relevant'

standards """ 
o'ilt11oi{ 
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Our response to key audit mattersDescription of key audit matters
and BDT 30,868
December 20Zl:
respectively.

million
BDT

2021 to
million)

(lanuary
26,804

Refer to note no. 7 to the consolidated and separate financlal statements

We have identified loans and advances as key
audit matter because there is an inherent risk of
fraud in disbursement of loans and advances by
management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

At the year ended 2022, the Group and the Bank
reported total gross loans and advances of BDT
474,640 million (December 2021: BDT 408,310
million) and BDT 468,605 million (December
702L: BDT 402,482 million) respectively.

We tested the deslgn and operating
effectiveness of key controls focusing on credit
appraisalr loans and advances disbursement
procedures and monitoring process of loans and
advances.

We have performed procedure to check
whether the Bank has ensured appropriate
documentation as per Bangladesh Bank
regulations and the Bank's policy before
disbursement of loans and advances. In
addition, we have performed procedure to
check whether the loans and advances arc
recorded completely and accurately and that
are existed at the reporting date.

Furthermore, we have assessed the
appropriateness of disclosures against
Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

4, Impairment assessment of unquoted shares
Refer to note no. 6b to the consolidated and separate financial statements

In the absence of quoted price in an active
ma*et, the fair value of unquoted shares and
securities, especially any impairment is
calculated using valuation techniques which may
take into consideration direct or indirect
unobservable market data and hence requires an
elevated level of judgement and assumption.

Due to high level of judgment and assumption
involved in evaluating the impairment

ment of unquoted shares, we considered
be a key audit matter.

'a-

assess
Finally, we have, assessed the appropriateness
and presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank
guidelines.

EBation of treasury bills and treasury bonds
Refer to note no. 6a and 6.1 to the consolidated and separate financial statements

flihofrlSssification and measurement ot treasury

ili,s:i:'#?:"I";'Jfr"m,.R?s;**'i
We assessed the processes and controls put in
place by the Bank to identiry and confirm the
exigtdn0f..bf20Elsury bills and treasury bonds-

nited Com*rH,'&:68ffiffi&
..DMD.{comn:nl.slcrei{?- Managing Direcror & cEo
United comnrertialBank Ptc unit"i co.mercial Bank plc

3. Loans and advances

Loans and advances are the main element of
financial statements of the Eank. Interest income
of the Bank is mainly dependent on the portFolio

of loans and advances. Management
performance is highly dependent on the target
achievement of loans and advances. Loans and
advances disbursement requires robust
documentation followed by approval from
appropriate level of authority.

We assessed the process and controls put in
place by the Bank to ensure all major
investment decisions are undertaken through a
proper due diligence process.

We have tested a sample of investment
valuation as at 31 Decembet 20ZZ and
compared our results to the recorded value.



@ #,,f"**P,ix

Our response to key audit matters

(u
(!

5
st

cg

ga

oa

o
&
tDo

t
Ea

cL ;lOI
5<.r !!.r=-5u6
ts=,rF

o.

j,,

!".
o

?.4

aru
puty Menagi &,

Ahammad, CA
ATM Ta uzzaman, FCS Arife'dffiHlf{8 D1 D & Company Secretary

Managing Director & CEO
United Commercial Bank pLC

M
Managing Di

-

Description of key audit matters

In the absence of a quoted price in an active
market, the fair value of T-Bills and T-Bonds is

determined using complex valuation techniques
which may take into consideration direct or
indirect unobservable market data and complex
pricing models which require an elevated level of
judgment.

We have obtained an understanding, evaluated
the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the key controls over the
treasury bills and treasury bonds valuation
processes, including controls over market data
inputs into valuatlon models, model governance,
and valuation adjustments.

We have tested a sample of the valuation
models and the inputs used in those models,
using a variety of techniques, including
comparing inputs to available market data.

6, Cajrying value of investment in subsidiaries by the Bank
Refer to note no. 9 and 9.6 to the consolidated and separate financial statements

The Bank has invested in equity shares of its four
subsidiaries namely UCB Stock Brokerage
Limited, UCB lnvestment Umited, UCB Asset
Management Umited, and UCB Fintech Company
Limited. As at 31 December 2022 the carrying

I value of these investments is BDT 7,500 million
(December 2021: BDT 5/500 million).

At the time of conducting our audit of the
separate financial statements of the Bank we
have €onsidered the recoverable value of the
Bank's investments in the above subsidiaries
stated at cost. Further, the subsidiary UCB
Fintech Company Limited continuing lts
operation having retained loss of Taka 2,281
million as at 31 December 2022.

The Bank is required to perform impairment test
of investments in subsidiaries when impairment

lBication exists. The impairment testing is
.gg;rsidered to be a key audit matter due to the
-@rplexity and judgements required in
delFnilNQg the assumptions to be used to
e5hate tht recoverable amount which is higher

W&galue less costs to sell and value in use.

Management has conducted impairment
assessment and calculated recoverable value of

Ets2[Elbsidiaries in accordance with IAS 36:
rmpaiTnr of Assers. 

? A UEI 2023

We have reviewed management! analysis of
impairment assessment and recoverable value
calculation of the subsidiaries in accordance
with IAS 36: Impahment ofAssets.In addition.
as per IAS-27: Separate Financial Statements,
when an entity prepares separate flnancial
statements, it shall account for investment in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
either at cost, as per ImS-9 and using equity
method as per LAS-28. Here. the Bank followed
the recognition of investment in subsidiaries at
cost.

In padicular, our discussion with the
management was focused on the continued
appropriateness of the used model, the key
assumption used in the model, the reasonably
possible alternative assumptions, particularly
where they had the most impact on the value in
use calculation. Further, UCB Fintech Company
Limited having continuous loss working on a 10
years strategh plan to remver its loss and being
a profltable entity.

We also checked mathematical accuracy of the
model, inputs used in the determination of
assumptions within the model were challenged
and corroborating inFormation was obtained

to external market informatiorces. 
1[ stt 1t1]

nwith reference
tnd$5&ig3ii

nited Comm
United Commercial Bank PLC

?dne Fintnre CaPital MamgcmlnlLi lle

Finally, we have assessed the appropriateness
and presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank
guidelines.
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Description of key audit matters
7. Deferred fax assets
Refer to note no. 9.4 to the consolidated and separate financial statements

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and tested the operational effectiveness
of the BanKs key controls over the recognition
and measurement of deferred tax assets and
the assumptions used in estlmating the Group
and the BanKs future taxable income.

We have assessed the completeness and
accuracy of the data used for the estimations of
future taxable income.

We have involved tax specialist to assess key
assumptions, controls, recognition and
measurement of deferred tax assets.

Finally, we have assessed the appropriateness
and presentation of disclosures against IAS 12:
fname Taxes.

8, Legal and regulatory matters

We focused on this area because the Bank and
its subsidiaries (the "Group') operates in a legal
and regulatory environment that is exposed to
significant litigation and similar risks arising from
disputes and regulatory proceedings, Such
matters are subject to many uncertainties and
the outcome may be difficult to predict.

9, IT

information system5

t!-e pqryfFive nature
vtbhriE6t, tne tarse

uo r a diu t ures focused on ITproced
control ds toueer&ffirUBlo

to theand Irbt'lexity
volume transactions rocessed in numeTous

ms and co.ttrols

These uncertainties inherently affect the amount
and timing of potential outflows with respect to
the provisions which have been established and
other contingent liabilities.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and tested the operational effectiveness
of the Group and Bank's key controls over the
legal provision and contingency processes.

We enquired those charged with governance to
obtain their views on the status of all significant
litigation and regulatory matters.

We enquired of the Group and the Bank's
internal legal counsel for all significant litigation
and regulatory matters and inspected internal
notes and repods, We also received formal
confirmations from external counsel.

We assessed the methodologies on which the
provision amounts are based, recalculated the
provisions, and tested the completeness and
accuracy of the underlying information.

We also assessed the Group and the BanKs
provisions and contingent liabilities disclosure.

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group and the Bankt fT

i,i'f'Sffi&[Ef+"ffi:,,':;

Overall, the legal provision represents the
Group's best estimation for existing lega! malters
that have a probable and estimable impact on
the Group's financial position.

United Commercia Bank PLC Managing Director & CEO
United Commercial Bank pLC

As at 31 December 2022 the Group and the Bank
reported net deferred tax assets of BDT 5,470
million (December 20271 BDT 4,7:26 million) and
BDI 5,470 million (December 2AZ7i &DI 4,229
million) respectively,

Signiflcant judgment !s requlred in relation to
measurement of defened tax assets as their
recoverability is dependent on forecasts of future
profitability over a number of years.

have
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Description of key audit matters Our response to key audit matters
locations daily and the reliance on automated
and IT dependent manual controls.

Our areas of audit focus included master data
management, user access management and
developer access to the production environment
and changes to the IT environment. Among
others, these are key to ensuring operating
effectiveness of IT dependent application-based
controls.

IT general controls (logical access, changes
management and aspects of IT operational
controls). This included testing that requests for
access to systems were appropriately reviewed
and authorized.

We tested the Group and the Bank's periodic
review of access rights. We also inspected
requests of changes to systems for appropriate
approval and authorization. We considered the
control environment relating to various
interfuces, configuration and other application
layer controls identified as key to our audit.

Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate
procedures. In addition, we understood where
relevant, changes were made to the IT
landscape during the audit period and tested
those changes that had a significant impact on
financial reporting.

Other Matter

The consolidated flnancial statements of the Group and also separate financial statements of the Bank
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021 were audited by MABS & J Partners, Chartered
Accountants, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 March 2022.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises all of the
information but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and our audito/s
report thereon, The other information is expected to be made available to {]s after the date of this
audito/s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider

the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate Financial
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, *k
Nare required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

nt is respons the consolidated flnancia
state nts of the Group k in accordance with
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enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial slatements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Bank Company Act, 1991 (as amended up to date)
and the Bangladesh Bank regulations require the Management to ensure effective internal audit,
internal control and risk management functions of the Group and the Bank. The management is also
required to make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of anti-fraud internal controls and report to
Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeries.

In preparing the consolidated and separate flnancial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's and the Bank! ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group and the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Bank's financjal
reportirq process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAS will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or enor and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAS, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate flnancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risk, and obtain audit evldence that is sufficient and appropriate to provlde a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
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financial statements represent the underlying transactions and even6 in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

obtain sufflcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matbers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020, the Bank
Company Act, 1991 (as amended up to date) and the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh
Bank, we also report that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

(ii) to the extent noted during the course of our audit work performed on the basis stated under
the Auditort Responsibllities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements section in forming the above opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group and the separate financial statements of the Bank and considering the reports of
the Management to Bangladesh Bank on anti-fraud internal controls and lnstances of fraud
and forgeries as stated under tlte Management's Responsibility for the financial statements
and internal control:

internal audit, internal control and risk management arrangements of the Group and the
nk as disclosed in the financial statements appeared to be materially adequate;

nothing has come to our attention regarding material instances of forgery or irregularity
or administrative error and except'on or anlthing detrimental committed by employees
of the Group and the Bank;

(iii) consolidated financial statements of the Bank include 04 (four) subsidiaries, namely IJCB
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of BDT !,279 million, BDT 123 million, BDT 56 million, BDT 202 million respectively for the
year ended 2022.

(iv) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group and
the Bank so far as it appeared from our examination of those book;

(v) the records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and
consolidated in the financial statements;

(vD the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss account together with the
annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and
retums;

(vii) the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Groupt and the Bank's buslness for
the period;

(viii) the consolidated financial stalements of the Group and the separate inancial statements of
the Bank have been drawn up in conformity with prevailing rules. regulations and accounting
standards as explained in notes 2.10,52 and 2.1.1 as well as related guidance issued by
Bangladesh Bank;

(ix) adequate provisions have been made for loans and advances and other assets which are in
our opinion, doubtful of recovery

(x) the information and explanations required by us have been received and found satisfactory;

(xi) we have reviewed over 80Yo of the risk'weighted assets of the Bank and spent over 7,112
person hours; and

(xii) Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Railo (CRAR) has b€en maintained adequately during the
period based on provisions allowed by Bangladesh Bank against the requirement as explained
in notes 12.1 and 13.6,

Dhaka,
Signed for & on behalf of

ACNAEIN
Chartered Accountants

e_5 AP( 2823

Md. Moni man, FCA
Partner

ICAB Enrollment No. 787
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Unit€d Comrnerclal Bank PLc & its Subsidiaries
consolidated Balance She€t

As at 31 December 2022

3r.12.2022
Taka

31,12.2021
Taka

PROPERTIES & ASSETS

Cash
Cash in haIld (lncludlng forelgn curreocles)
Balance ryith Bangladesh Bank & lts agent bank(s)
(Indudlng forelgn .urencies)

aahnce with other banks & llnanclal institutions
ln Baogladesh
outside Bansladesh

Money at Call on sho* notic€

Investments
Govemment
Others

Loans and Advances
Loans, C.ash Credlts, OyerdrafLs etc
Ellls purchased and discounted

t I ttt' ltlx

Notes

4

7

10

11

9,100 ,795,455
21,83B,928,071

3 30,939,723,526 25,38O,748,23L
7,498,609,1s4.

, . -17,98?,139p77 l

83,046,995,094
73,662,987,344
e,!84,00L7 50

408,309,815,648
3A1 ,754 ,4O4,17O

. ,?q,ss5J1_1,47L1

5

6

17 97

79

47 639 z4a
451,148,36r,902

23 384

20 21
4 ,509,386,65'1 19,568,097,037

13 ,031,784

3,200,000,000

o 1 462

Fixed assets including prernise+ funiture and tixtur€
Other assets
l{on-battking assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

tiabilities
Bo.ro|M|ng9 from other ba.ks, financial Instlh|tlons
and agents

Deposlts atrd other acco..rts
Cu(ent acclunb & other accounb
Bills Payable
gvlngs Bank Deposits
Frxed Deposits
Bearer Certlkaies of Deposlts
Otier Deposlts

other Llabllities
Total LJabillti6

ry Reserve
Reserve

Reserve

m9s

olders'Equity with no -controlling interest
ard Shareholders' Equity

2 4 0EC 2023

17,026,510,993

13t714,873,337

!7,O1At196t4AL

12,A3s,963$74

78,346,168,340
8,845,268,369

80,659,233 ,37 6
r81,860,356,177

633,306,922,167 s70,424,847,a49

LO7t0391740,584 A9,4rOt437F95

4 974 3A7 463
92,967,521,28

7,016,021,483
85,798,085,253

202,075,933,429

5 1

14,062,366,430
1,454,976,750

15,764,308,439
26,577,961

2,79?,068,995

12,783,969,490
1,454,9? 6,754

14,555,968,6Br
26,577,961

2,631,8s3,888
15,48A,290

-.s

8

9

85s 37

12 51,405,650,473 56,607,754,666
593,128,80A,O31 533,036,020,524

1 I 37 27
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15
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633,306,922,767
40,178,114136 37,388,827,325 .q
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Managing oireclor & CEO

united commercial Bank PLC
?ime Finance CaPital
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Capital / Shareholders' Equity
Pald up Capital
Share Premium

DMD & ComPany Secretary

United Cornmercial Bank PLC



Off Balance Sheet ltems

Contingent Liabilities

Other Commikrents
Documentary crcdit and short term trade related transactions
Foruard assets purchased and forward deposlts pla.ed
Undrawn note lssuance and revolving urden ,riting facilities
Undraw. formal standby facllltles, credlt llnes and othe. commltments

Total off-balance sheet items

The annexed notes from 01 to 49 form an lnteqral rt of

Managing Oire.tor & CEO

31.72-4022
Taka

aa.l2-ao2a
Taka

2L5 667 677 260,413,159,150
95,629,506,243
59,964,40A,737
39 ,547 .144,513
20,526,625,910

Slgned for & on behalf oF

ACNABIN

27

2,27L0A0,692

____212€3925!p9L __2g9,4EJE$99_

flnanclal statements.

Director Director

-

@ ACNABIN
Ckit.tcd Affomtttrts

Acceptances & Endorsements
Letters of Guarantee
Irrevocabh Letters of Credit
Eills for Colbcfion
Other Contingent Liabllities

18.1

18.2
18.3
18.4

110,309,146,9BB

57 ,499,501,948
75,222,523,708.
17,381/986,506:

2

This rs the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to ln our separate report of even date,

Dhaka,
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CA
Deputy MEnaging Dkector & CFO
Uniled Con!mercial Bank PLC

bakertiLLy

iduzzaman, FCS Arif dri

Md. Moni zzaman, ECA
PaItner

ICAB Enrollment No, 787

DYC 22304260] 8 74S 1095 85

24 0EC 2023
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aruk Ahammad,
AT]\1

zaul Haque
Managing Director

I ne Fiornce Capital Managcment Lioitcd
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nMD & company secre.ta_rl^ Manaqing Director & CEO
unlted commercial Eank PLC unit.i cormercral Bank pLc
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Director
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Uoited Commercial Sank Pl-C & its Subsidlaries
Corsolldated Profit and Loss Account
For th. yearGnded 31 Decrmber 2022

2022
Taka

702t
Taka

32,30t,597,460
17,O87.467,705 I

1',214,129,755

ACNABIN
Chdrlercd AcconntMls

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The aMexed notes from 0l to 49 form an

Inierest ln€ome
Inlerest paid on deposits and borrov,ings eta
Net Intercst Irco,ne
lnv€s[rnent incone
Commislion exdlange afid brokerage
Other Operating I.com€
Total Operatinq Incoine (A)

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salary and allowances
Renl t rcs, lnsuranco, electricity etc.
Legal expeises
Poltagq stamps, telecommunrcations etc.
Statioiery, printing, advertis€ments etc,
Chief Executive's salary and fees
Diredo.d fees
Audltod fees
De$ealatio.r and repair of banks asets
Other expenses
Total Oreriting Expenras (B)
Prolit b.tore provision (C) = (A-8)

Provision for loans & Advances
Provlsion for dlminution in value of lnvestmentg
Othea provisions
Total Pro9lsion (D)
Total Prolit before lncome taxet (C - D)

Provision for Taxation
Curait Tax
Deterred Tax

Net Prollt after Taxation

Approlrlatlons
Statubry Reserve
Start-Up Fund
CSR Fund
Retained SurDlus

Att lbutabla tol
Equlty holders' of the Bank
Non controlllnq interest

' 5,814,473,390
8,899,008,605

L 3r9,78s,244
30,247,396,985

20
2t

22
23
24

25
26

27,984,761,834

13,817,983,361

5,646,288,
6,466,823,42t

26,325,332,21

27

8,42t,749,tts
1,667 ,491,649

!47,724,456
24t,266,257

t,943,t27 ,626
L4,O98,442
4;3r,887
1.942500

2,154,511,753

7 ,736,214,129
1,147.506.345

136,054,009
191,894,385

2,154,980,062
13,450,900
3,339.785
L,27&,5O0

1,859,r59,1B0

28
29
30
3l
32

34
19,034,534,541 16,946,134,73a
11t2t2,452,444 9,979,L9r,479

35
36
a7

38

5,515,505,953
646,373,322

(482,028,218)

4,39t,115,429
(244,586,028)
549,363,208

5,679,851,057 4,595,9s2.509
5, 2a3,244,a7O

2,234,364,259 2,776,130,772
3,4t3,872,045

(1.239,507,786)
4,r66,078,526

(1,389,947,755)

--_--3299,8[2]L __],50L774,029_

1,826,159,153
(9r)

1,3{4,361,561
45

1,826,159,O62 7,344,36L,606
2.35 1,7439

statements.
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E'|anaghg Dioctor & CEO
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Dlrector

?4 0 c 2023

aruk Ahammad; FCA
Deputy Mrnaging Director & CFO
United Commerciat Bank pLC

Diaector

2 { [E[ 2023

uzzaman, FCS Ari
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Md. Moni FCA
Partrlcr

ICAB Effollrnent No, 787

DYC:23042607 87As1095

is the Congolidated Prolit and Loss Ac€o(]nt reforr€d io in our separate report of even date.

7023

2 4 llt 2023

Director

Signed for & on behalf or
ACIIABIN

2 4 oEC 20n

M aul Haque
Managing Director

Pimc fi0rnc! Capiul li{analtme0l Limiled

It
P! (.)

E!
F

IL

s
ATM

s
fl

Managing Director & CEO
United Commerciat Bank pLC
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ACNABIN
Cj d r-N ral A ff o tr |i I tl,tt\

(ircludlng foreign currencies)
Bangladesh bank and its agent bank
other banks & financial lnstitutlon
on short notice

2 { [Et 2$23

aman, FCS

& pany Secretary

United Commercial Baok PLC & its Snbsidiaries

Consolidated Cash Flow statement
Forthe year ended 3r. December 2022

Notes

A. Cash tlows from operatlng attivities
Interest Receipts ln cash
Interest Payments
Dlvldend Receipts
Fees & Commission Receipts in cash
Recoveries of bans Previously written off
Cash Payments to employees
Cash Payments io suppliers
Income taxes paid
Receipt from other operatinq activiues
Payment fo, other operathg acgvl[es
Operatlng protlt before changes ln opeEtlng asset
and llabiliUes

Increare/Decrease in oDeratlng assets and llabilltles
Statutory Deposits
PurdEse/Sales of kadlng Securitles
Loans and advances to Customers
Othet assets
Deposlt from banks
Deposit from clstomers
Other liabillties

Net cash used in operating activities (A)

B. Carh flows from investirg actlvities
Proreeds lrom Sale of Securities
Pur€hase/Sale of proDerty, plant & equipment
Net cash used in investing actlvities (B)

C. Cash tlows from financing activities
Receipts from borrowinqs
Sub-Ordinaied Eond
Dividends paid
Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

D. Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
E. Effects of the changes of exchange rate on cash and cash

eoulvalents
F. Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginnlng of the year
G. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Consolidated Cash and Cash Equiyalents at end of the year

4 947 969

4,614,451.139 7,243,O76,79t

3A 346,A31,674
(16,806,028,s16)

216t497,414
5,17 6,708,919

236,944,194
(8,6t7,478,775)
(5,505,311,332)
(4,638,236,660)

289,055,558

9,035,522,468
(647,47A,0s2)

(66,327,928,377)
(819,8s9,606)

798,799,900
36,887,880,866

2021

10,945,884
(14,277,9s2,671)

149,847,793
4 ,87 t,999,226

102,577,518
(7,705,298,800)
(3,s27,470,@3\
(3,499 ,32s,s27)

761093,9{0

(16,679,987,307)
57,466,937

(51,717,458,833)
383,014,186

3,495,509,363
31,061,611,148

73 754 2 46L 013 816
(23,246,ss3, ) (30,938,430,690)
(1a,63L,702,4!6) (2s,69s,3s3,899)

(1,175,370,413\
727

(2,810,403,140) (3,637,980,610)

29,642,896,100
(3,000,000,000)

(60a.760.452\

I (142,500,930)
, (3,495.479.680)l

19,44a,179 ,a46
(1,820.000,000)

r7t624,r79$46 26tO34135,644

(3,813,92s,710) (1,299,198,861)

3,515,705,744
49,213,877,452

t,s7 | iB1.,ot6
48,941,594,497

______43 L5 5:|.L27_ ____A9.A3e1es2
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Balance
Balance wlth

call

?{ oEc

aruk Ahammed CA
Dsputy Menaging Director & CFO

ATlll
DMDCommercial Bank pLC Managing Director E CEO

United Commercial Bank PLC

Er The annexed notes from 01 to 49 form ao lntegral part of these consolidated flnancial statements.

9,100,795,455
21,838,928,071
17,975,933,601

7,498,609,1

M
Managing Direcro

Irinc fioroce Capital tr{rnalcneor

17 !8821139,0n
20,633,128,82r l

3.200.000.000 r--- 4r.n3;;7.;5ft
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ACNABIN
Cbqrtrrql Accou afit

Urited Commercial Bank PLC
Balance Sheet

As at 31 De.ember 2022

5

12

31.12,2022
Taka

31,12,2021
Taka

PROPERTIES & ASSETS

Cash
Cash in hand (lncludinq foreign currencies)
Balance with Bangladesh Bank & its agent bank(s)
(Including foreign currencies)

Balan€e with other banks & financial institutions
In Bangladesh
Outside Bangladesh

Money at Call on short notice

9 586 380 !79
9,100,106,515 7,498,U0,461

17 $B],13s,077 :.928

1 249 97a
3,405,505,992 18,344,2t8,194

!?196,5!9,944 1 1 744

3,200,000.000

205 347
64,706,395 ,079 73 ,662,987 ,344
1 67,tZ6 7 ?24 156

3

4

frvestments
Governm€nt
Others

6

7Loans and Advances
Loans, Cash Credits, Overdrafts etc
Bills purchased and discounted

Fix€d assets including premises, fumiture and
fixture

Oth€r assets
Non-banking assets
Total Assets

LIAEII.ITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities
Borrowings from other banks, financial
institutions and aqents

565,3 ,4,21,.,4A2

10 103.891,493,4O0 45,803,634,252

11 440 764 389 723

46&605,096,016
', 44s,113,7t1,670
j 23,491,384,346

L4,579,41O,O7 4

20,646,673,379

40 735 743
375,926,324 ,26s

.***_&.

8

9

Delosits and other accourts
Current accounts & other accounts
Sills Payable
Savings Eank Depoets
Fixed D€posits
Bearer Certificates of Deposits

-Other Deposits

rother Liabilities
Liabilities

pita ld€rs' Equity

81,223,063,861
8,845,268,369

80,659,233,376
181,860,3s6,177

('

o
o(,
u
s*
E

t
5

E

qQ

qq
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tllo

a
a
CL

ct

tr
CT

57,r99,A36,76L
587 trzo,t?OP29

31 312 ao2 201

52,167,A45,a18

s27tA72,2O4,Os4

267 37 007
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re Premium

Reserve

aruk Ahammad
Ma aging Director

FCA I
& cFo ATM

United Commerciat Bank pLC

General Reserve
Other Reserve

1r oftHts#ll@".." r'646{"?tB,

t3
13.3
t4
15
10
17

14,062,366,430
1,454,976,'750

15.730,183.055
26,577,961

2,797,06a.995

t2,783,969,494
1 ,4s4 ,976,750

t4 ,546,968,923
26,577,96t

2,631,853,888
5,997,660,416

I:z

1'a
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tr
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uzzaman, FCS Ar
DMD & Company Secretary

United Commercial Bank PLC

6 BB5 4B5

2 { 0E[ ?l]Z'r

62A,O76,A29,r96 ____lE5d!a2114!t2- =rF\,
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15B2s

94 ,3t2,545 ,0
7 ,016,021 ,4A3

85,798,085,253
202,075,933 ,429

@ bakertitty Pdoc Fimncc Crpitll I\lanlg
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Notes
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Managing Director & CEO
United Commercral Bank PLC
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ACNABIN
Cb ar t er e d Acct r t t rua tts

Off Balance Sheet ltems

Contingent Liabilities

Acceptances & Endorsements
Letters of Guarantee
Irrevocable Letters of Credit
Eills for Collection
Other Contingent Liabillties

31.a4-202)
Taka

31.,.2.202!
Taka

Notes

Other Commitments
Documentary credit and short term trade related transactions
Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed

Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting facilities
Undra,xn formal standby facilitie' credlt llnes and other
commitments
Total off-balance sheet items

95,629,506,243
59,964,400,737
39,547 ,t44 ,5t3
?9$1.6$2j,sL9

2 4 0E[ 2023

naging Director & CEO

2,272,040,692

217,939,759,095 ___29q4E tr9l!90

Ditector

Signed for & on behalF of
ACNABIN

Chartered Accountants

18.1
18.2
18.3
18.4

2 667 77 403 260 159 150
110,309,146,988
57,499,501,948
75,222,523,708:
17,i9i,989,5!q:

269

The annexed notes from 01 to 49 fo ani rt ese financial statemefl ts.

Ma[aging Director & CEO Director

This is the Balance Sheet referred to ln our separate repo* of even date.
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ACNABIN
Cbartercd Aqomn s

lnterest Iocome
Interest paid on deposits and boror/inqs etc
Net Interest Income

Investment income
Commi5sion, exchange and brokerage
Other Operating lncome
Total Operatlrg Income (A)

OPERATIITIG EXPENSES

Salary and allou/ances
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc,
Legal expenses
Postage, stamps, telecommurkatlorE etc
Stationery, prin6nq, advertisements etc.
Chief Executive's salary and fees
Dkectors' fees
AuditoIs' fees
Depreciatior and reDair of bank assets
Other qpenses
Total Operating E(perEes (B)

Profit betore provlsion (C) = ( -B)

Provlsion fo. Loans & Advances
provision for diml.ution ln value of investments
O$rer prsvisions

Total Provision (D)

Total Profit betore Ircome taxes (C - D)

Provisioo for Taration
Current Tax
Defered Tax
Net Prcflt after Taxatlon
Approprlations
Statutory Reserve
Start-Up Fund
CSR Flnd
Retained Surplus

Earoings Per Share (EPS)

fJ The annexed notes fron 01 to 49 form an

€-.
'/1

This is

Dhaka,

United Commercial Eank PLC

Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 Decembet 2022

Notes

22

3L.12,2022
Taka

31.72.2427
Taka

20
21

31,684,835,83s
17,010,387,394

27,323,646,852
t3,927,259,01.4

14,67 4,449,44t
5,685,113,776
7,899,474,370

263,702,890

13,396,387,83S

'* "'i,qoloot,en 
:

s,739,170,57s:
220,574,859:

25
26
27

7,658,696,
1,623,559,944

94,587,412
2t9,090,942

1 ,694,262,239
b,094,442
3,544,347
1,725,000

2,073,607,674

7,166,522,1.40
1t122,q48,908

12e$54,s92
184,561,969

1,249,146,t12
13,450,900
2F90,290
1,150,000

L422,185,672
2.945 .319.079

939

28

30
31

33
3 436

L7,O53,969,4L5 14,636,O2s,612

!1,468t77!tO62 10 t7a3 t7 77t537

35
36

3B

5,422,689 ,930
612,038,691

1482.028.218)

4,259 ,894,629
(23s,220,899)
549,132,6U

5,552I7OO,4O3 4,573,406,414

5,916,070,659 5,609,90s,123

1,892,059,50s 2,432,734,220
3,823,478,7A)

{1,390,144,489)

3,133,378,030
(1,241,318,525)

4,O24.O17.754 3,!77,770,901

1 ,183 ,214,132
40,240,112

245,965,311
2.554.591.600
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United Commercial Bank PLC

Cash Flow Statement
For th€ year ended 31 December 2022

37,078,273,890
(16,s74,786,563)

178,s69,s08
4,383,768,584

236,944,194
(7,86?,?95,381)
(4,192,3s5,163)
(4 ,392,782,336)

272,883,290

2022
Taka

2027
Taka

A. Cash flo$rs from operating actlvlties
Interest rcceipb
Interest payments

Dividend receipt
Fees & Cornmlsion rec€ipt
Recoveries from prevlously wriften off advances
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Payment fo. Advance Incoflre Tax
Recelpt from other operatirB activlties
Payment for other acuvl0€s
Operating profit before dtanges Ir operaung assets
and liabalities

Increase/Decrease ir operatlng assets and liabilities
Statutory Oeposlt
Purchasqsale of trading securit,es
Loans and advances to customers
Other Assets
Deposlt trom Sanks
Deposit from customers
O$ier llabilltles

Net cash used in opeEting a€tivities (A)

B. Cash flows from investing actlvltles
Purchase/Sale oF Secuities
Purchase of Property,Plant & Equlpments
Net cash lsed ln hvesting activltles (B)

C, Cash flows from financing activities
Receipt from borowing
Sub{rdlnated Bond
Cash dlvldend panent
Net cash flow from financinq activitl€s (C)

D. t{et (Decrease)/lncrease ln cash and cash
equlvalents (A+B+c)

E. EffecE of the changes of exchange ra0e on cash and cash
FJequfualents

and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year
and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (D+E+F)

96 895 4273

32,410,109
(14,078,145,160)

149,088,539
4,167,689,559

102,577,518
{1,t791973,040)
(3,200,235,642j
(3,28s,957,698)

641,-146,940

(16,679,987,307)
(118,378,810)

(50,798,176,340\
(2,326,620,97s)
3,495,509,361

32,247,232,6M
794,799,900

35,328,916,884
991

(24,920, 03,276\ (31,294,429,733)
L9 759 32s 562 (24,462,806,605)

(53r,r0o"o0o)t
I (1.490.081,364),

(10,400,000)
2s0 100

(2,022,9A7364) (1,260,999,1O0)

29,444,508,263
(3,000,000,000)

,760,459)
18,084,259,144 25,79s,747'aO4
(3,694.O47,77A\ 71,942,O993
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3,515,705,784
47 ,949 ,429 ,516

1,571,481,023
46,346,006,394

_____32-8!e8Z_E2z 47 ,949 .429.St6

V
E

F
J

E

s3.1
3.2
4
5

.1
E1

Cash Egulvalents at the end of the year

ln (including foreign currenc,es)
with bank and lts aqent bank
with other banks & financial instltution

Money at call on short ootice
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5,160,677,7!4 6,831,623t127

9,035,522,468

J rs,ro8"zsr, r48
(1,820,000,000)

(390,644,970)

9,100,106,515
21,838,928,071
t6,872,052,936
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United Commercial Bank PLC and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the Financial Statements

As at and for the year ended 31 Decemb€r 2022

1, The Bank & its activities

1.1 Status of the Bank

United Commercial Bank PLC CUCB'or the'Bank') was incorporated in Bangladesh as a public limited
company with limited liability on 26 June 1983 under the Companies Act 1913 to carry on banking
business in Bangladesh, It obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 13 November 1983 to
commence its business. The Bank has 224 (2027:215) branches, 747 (2077t 135) sub branches and
663 (2077i 628) ATMS/CRMS and 314 (?lZL: 177) agent banking outlets as on 31 December 2022. Out
of the above 224 branches, 10 branches provided both Islamic Banking and Conventional Banking
facilities complying with the rules of Islamic Shariah and a new branch provided solely Islamic Banking
facilitles complying with the rules of Islamic Shariah. The Bank is listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange
(DSE) Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) Umited as a publicly traded Company.

The prlncipal place of business and the registered office of the bank is located at plot - CWS- (A)- 1,
Gulshan Avenug Dhaka - 1212.

1.2 Nature of Business

The primary objective of the bank is to conduct all kinds of banking businesses in Bangladesh. The
Bank offers services for all commercial banking and Islamic banking needs of the customers. The Bank
also provides a comprehensive range of financial services including treasury management transaction
services, foreign exchange and structured finance to corporate clients, inland and international
remlttance facility, governments and financial institutions. In 202Q the Bank started to offer Direct
Custody and Clearing (DCC) services to its offshore clients.

1.3 Off-shore Banking Unit

off-shore Banking unit (the unit), a separate business unit of united commercial Bank pLC, governed
under the Rules and Guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The Bank obtained the off-shore Banking unit
permission vide, letter no. BRPD (P-3) 744 (117)12010-2577 dated gth June 2010. The Bank
commenced the operation of its off-shore Banking unlt from November 10/ 2010. At present there is

one unit of off-shore banking operatinq in Dhaka under the Rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank.
The principal activities of the unit are to provide all kinds of @mmercial Banking services to its

Justomers in foreign currencies. Fioancial Statements of off-shore Banking also presented separately.

mic Banking

nk obtained permission for Islamic Banking Branch from Bangladesh Bank vide, letter no. BRPD
(P- 5 (77)12020-1453 dated 6 February 2020. Through the Islamic Banking wing and branch, the
Bank extends all types of Islamic Shariah compliant finance like hire purchase shirkatul melk (HPSM),
bai- Murabaha, Mushraka, Salam and agency, Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek (Hire purchase) etc. and
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1.5 Agent Banking

The Bank obtained permission from Eangladesh Bank on 07,A2,20f7 through letter no' ERPD (p-

,745$7)2017-677 to start the operation of Agent Banking and subsequently started its commercial

operation on February 1, 2018. There are 314 agent outleG launched around the country till 31

December 2022. "fhe principal activities of the unit are to provide services that includes - Account

Opening (Savings), Cash deposit & withdrawal (Agent Banking A/C),Cash Deposit in Branch AlC, hward
foreign remittance disbursement, Collections of bills/utility bills, Payment of social benefits, Transfer of
Funds, Payment of salaries, Generation and issuance oF Bank statements, SME Loan repayment

collection, Balance inquiry, Internet Banklng & SMS Banking, Corporate BiluDistributor fee collection,

Insurance Premium Collection etc.

1.6 Subsidiary Company

A subsidiary is an entity in which the bank has control as per shareholding and voting rights are

concerned. Control exists when the bank has substantial shareholding (more than 50 percent) in the

company, or the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an

enterprise as on the date of the reporting, Separate (solo) Financial Statements and Consolidated

Financial Statements are prepared for subsidiary investment as per International Accounting Standard

(lAS) - 27; 'separate Financial Statements'and IFRS-10; 'Consolidated Financial Statements'. Interest

of the minority is shown as the minority interest which includes share capital of the minority portion as

well as profit earned that goes to the non-controlling interest. However, intergroup transactions,

balances and the resulting unrealized profits/(loss) are eliminated on consolidation.

1.6,1 UCB Stock Brokerage Limited

UCB Stock Brokerage Limited is a subsidiary company of United Commercial Bank PLC. The activities

of the company include brokerage service, margin loan etc. The company is carrying out its activities

under the license from both Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. and chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

UCB PLC holds 24,999,999 nos. of shares of UCB Stock Brokerage Limited wlth face value of Tk. 100

each which is equivalent to 99.9999967o of the total shares of the company.

1,6.2 UCB Investment Limited

IJCB InvesEnent Limited was incoruonted in Bangladesh as a private limited company with limited

as on 3 August of 2011 under the Companies Act 1994 also, the Company has obtained

nking license from the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission on 05 October

20 The principal objective of the company is to carry out full-fiedged merchant ban

a
!,

h i.e. portfolio management, share transfer agency, fund management to iss

and securlty market, undeMriting, management and distribution of the issue of stoc
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1.6.3 UCB Asset Management Umited

UCB Asset Management Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Bangladesh as a Private Umited

Company with limited liability as on the 5th Day of February of 2019, under the Companies Act 1994

and registered with RJSC & F. The authorized capital of the company is BDT 100 Crore divided into 10

(Crore) Ordinary Shares of BDT 10 each. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of United

Commercial Bank PLC (UCB PLC) and has obtained its'licence (BSEC/Asset Manager/2020/46) as an

Asset Management Company from Bangladesh Securities & Exchange C-ommission on February 03,

2020. The registered office of the company located at Plot #CWS(A)-1, Road #34, Gulshan Avenue,

Dhaka-1212.

The company was formed aiming to manage portfolio and fund of both individuals and institutions,

underwrite the securities, invest pooled funds from clients into a variety of securities and assets, handle

high-net-worth individual accounts, and attract large investment from companies sponsoring mutual

funds,

UCB PLC holds 99,999.999 nos. of shares of UCB Asset Management Limited with face value of Taka
10 each which is equivalent to 99.99999900/o of bfal shares of the Company.

1.5,4 UCB Fintech Company Limited

UCB Fintech Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Company". a subsidiary of United

Commercial Bank PLc, was incorpocted in Bangladesh on 30 July 2020 as a private company limited

by shares under the Companies Act, 1994.

Product and services of UCB Fintech include mobile transactions (cash-in, cash-out, send money etc.)r

utility bill payment, in-store and e-commerce paymenl inward remittance, salary disbursement G2P

and P2G transaction, ai*ime recharge and other value added flnancial services.

ts Ucs pt-c holds 299.999,999 nos. of shares of UcB Fintech Company Limited with face value of Taka

is equivalent to 99.99999960/o of total shares of the Company.

Summary of shareholding in subsidiaries and associates

reholdinq position in all of its subsidiaries and associates is summarized below:

1C [t
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Managing Director

Total no. of
ordinary shares

No, of ordinary shares
held by UCB

Percentage
of shareholding

by UCB

2022. 2021 2022 202t

Name sf
subsidiaries

Face
value
per

share 2022

99.990/o 99.99o/o

UCB Stock

)Brokerage

,jmited

100 2s,000,000 25,000,000 24,999,999 ,z!. ooo ooo

-qrte
Investment
Limited

10 100,000,000 100,000,000 99,999,999 99,999,999 99-994/o 99,990/o

99.99o/o 99.990/o

UCB Asset

Iili.Tfftu
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Secretary --M
lBank PLC /rg
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202L

99,999,999

Fin.rce C.pilal Mrmgtfirrl Lmilld



@ AENABIN
Chd erul lcao l,tt']/tls

1.6.6 UCB Foundation

UCB is a not for profit, non'political, voluntary and charltable Foundation. Environment pollution free

through "Go Green Campaign" civilsociety awareness and other benevolent and CSR activities towards

the promotion of the objective of this Foundation. UCB Foundation has been registered under Societies

Registration Act, 1860. The registered office of the Foundation shall be situated at South Breeze, plot

#08, Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212.

The overall affairs of the Foundation shall be managed by an Executive Committee consisting of at least
9 (nine) members but not more than 19 (nineteen) members including ex-officio Executive members
and Execuuve Secretary who will be designated as follows:

i) Chairman

ii) Treasurer
lii) Executive Member
iv) Executive Secretary

2. Summary of significant accounting policies and basis of preparation of the financial
statements

preparation

to Bangladesh Bank circular BRPD Circular No: 02, dated 25 February 2019, these financial
(!

z

i.l
D.

d

z
ga!D

ts

P

&
Elo

rr
s
oa

nking
nts for the year ended 31 December 2022 comprise the operations of both the Domestic
Unit (DBU) and the Offshore Banking Unit (OBU) and the consolidated financial statements of

rrthe group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 comprise those of 'the Bank' (parent

$ompany) 
and its subsidiaries.

2,1,1 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Reporting Act 2015 (FRA) was enacted in 2015. Under the FRA, the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) was formed in 2017 and adopted International Accounting Standards (iASs) and

:lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS) as the applicable Financlal Reporting Standards for

Hublic interest entities such as banks. Consequently, the consolidated and separate financial statements
cof the Group and the Bank respectively have been prepard in accordance with International Financlal

$porting Standards (IFRSS) as adopted by FRC and in addition to this the Bank complied with the
?dquiremens of following taws and regulations from various Government bodies:

. The Bank Company Act, 1991 and amendment thereon;

. The Companies Act, 1994 and amendment thereon;

I
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o
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1 r:$
issued by aangtafqsflff4gTDB) time to time;
nge Rules 2020, 8*r{lEdesh Securlties and Exchange ordinancengl

19 ngladesh Securities and Exchange Act 1
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commission(Publiclssue)Rules2015,BangladeshSecuritiesAndExchangecommission(Debt
Securities) Rules 2021;

. The Income Tax ordinance, 1984 and Income Tax Rules 1984 and amendment thereon;

. The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act' 2012 and Value Added Tax and

Supplementary Duty Rules, 2016 and amendment thereon;

. ohuL St".l exchange Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchang€ limited (CSE) and Central

Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL) rules and regulations; and

. Financial Reporting Act. 2015.

In case ot any requirement of the BaIk company Act 1991 (as amended up to date), and provisjons

and circulars issued by Bangladesh sank (aB) differing with those of IFRSS' the requirements of the

BankCompanyActlggl(asamended'ptoaut"),andproMsionsandcircularsissuedbyBBshall
preuail. Materiat departures from the requirements of IFRS are as follows:

i. Presentation of financial statements

IFRS: As per IAS 1, a complete set of financial statements comprises a statement of financial

poritlon. u'rtut"runt of profit or loss and other comprehensive income' a statement of changes

in equity, a sfatement of cash flows, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting

p"l-ii", !'"a other explanatory information and comparative information. IAS t has also stated

ihe entity to disclose asseb and liabilities under current and noncurrent classification separately

in its statement of financial position.

t
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U) Bangladesh Bank: The Presentation of the financial statements in prescribed format (i'e

balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash Flow statement, statement of changes in equity'

liquidity statement) and certain disdosu res therein are guided by the "First Schedule" (section

The Bank ComPanY Act, 1991 (amendment up to date) and BRPD circular no' 14 dated

25 lune 2003 and subsequent guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. ln the prescribed format there

ts flo option to present assets and liabilities under current and non-current classiflcations'

Bangladesh Bank: As Per Banking Reg ulation and Policy Department (BRPD) circular no' 14

dated 25 June 2003, investments in quoted shares and unquoted shares are revalued at the

year end at market pnce and as per book value of last audited balance sheet respectively'

on should be made for any loss arising from diminution in value of investmenu otherwise

1[ $tt .* Sint#&s"st. 
ucB PLf {4qdFd$investment in shares and securities at

ii, Investment in EquitY instrument

IFRS: As per requirements of IFRS 9, classification and measurement of investment in shares

and securities will depend on how these are managed (the entity's business model) along with

F, their contractual cash flow characteristics, Based on these factors it would qenerally fall either

-- under 'at fair value through profit or loss account" or under 'at fair value through other

"g ;;;;J;;;;" i^.or",wh"ere'any change in the iair vatue (as measured in accordance with

Ea rni r:l at the year-end is taken to profit and loss account or other comprehensive income

E respectively,
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t. Subsequent measurement of Government securities

Eangladesh Eank: As per DOS Circular no. 05 (26 May 2008) and subsequent clarification in

DOS Circular no 05 (28 January 2009), Government securities/bills are classified either into
Held for Trading (HFD or Held to Maturity (HTM). HFT securities are revalued on the basis of
mark to market and at year end any gains on revaluation of securities which have not matured

as at the balance sheet date are recognised in other reserves as a paft of equity and any losses

on revaluation of securities which have not matured as at the balance sheet date are charged

in the profit and loss account. Interest on HFT securities including amortisation of dlscount are

recognised in the profit and loss account. HTM securities which have not matured as at the
balance sheet date are amortised at the year end and gains or losses on amortisation are

recognised in other reserve as a part of equity.

and Reverse Repo transactions
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: As per IFRS 9 when an entity sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an
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However, as per DMD circular letter no,7 dated 29 July 2072, non-primary dealer banks are
eligible to participate in the Assured Liquidity Suppot-(ALS) program, whereby such banks may
enter collatydli$et ffi arrangements wittth 0&$dd}+l Ba n k. Here the selling bank accounts

for the arrartqement as a loan, thereby continuing to recognise the asset.
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IFRS: Debt instruments include both bonds and bills. As per requirements of IFRS 9 Financial

Instruments, bonds ran be categorised as "Amortised Cost (AC)", "Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss (FVTPL)" or "FairValue through other Comprehensive Income (FVoCI)". Bonds designated

as Amortised Cost are measured at amortised cost method and interest income is recognised

through profit and loss account, Any changes in fair value of bonds designated as FVTPL is

recognised in profit and loss account while cfianges in fair value of bonds designated as FVoCI

is recognised in other reserve as a part of equity. As per requirements of IFRS 9, bills can be

categorised either as "Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVT?L)" or "Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)". Any change in fair value of bills is recognised in profit and

loss or other reserve as a part of equity respectively.

Sagreement to repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (repo),

plthe arrangement is treated as a loan and the underlying asset continues to be recognised at
c.tmortised cost in the entity's financial statements. The difference between selling price and

repurchase price will be treated as interest expense. The same rule applies to the opposite side
of the transaction (reverse repo).

Bangladesh Eank: As per DOS Circular letter no. 6 dated 15 July 2010 and subsequeot

clarification in DOS circular no.z dated 23 January 2013, when a bank sells a financial asset

and simultaneously enters into an agreement to repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) at a
fixed price on a future date (repo or stock lending), the arrangement is accounted for as normal

sales transactions and the financialassets are derecognized in the seller's book and recognized
in the buye/s book.
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v. Provision on loans and advances

IFRS: As per IFRS 9 an entity shall recognise an impairment allowance on loans and advances

based on expected credit losses. At each reporting date, an entity shall measure the impairment

allowance for loans and advances at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if
the credit risk on these loans and advances has increased significantly since initial recognition

whether assessed on an individual or collective basis considering all reasonable information,
induding that which is forwardiooking. For those loans and advances for whjch the credit risk

has not increased significantly since initial recognition, at each reporting date, an entity shall

measure the impairment allowance at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses that
may result from default events on such loans and advances that are possible within 12 months

after reporting date.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated 23 September 2012, BRPD circular no.

19 dated 27 December 2012, BRPD circular no. 05 dated 29 May 2013, BRPD circular no. L6

dated 18 November 2014, BRPD circular no. 12 dated 20 August 2017, BRPD circular no. L5

dated 27 September 2017, BRPD circular no. 16 dated 21 luly 2020 and BRPD circular letter
no. 52 dated 20 October 2020 and circulars issued lill 2022, a general provision at 0.25olo to
20lo under different categories of unclassifled loans (standard/SMA loans) has to be maintained

regardless of objective evidence of impairment. Also provision for sub-standard loans, doubtful
loans and bad/losses loans has to be provided at 5% io 20o/o, 5o/o to 500/o and 100Yo,

respectively for loans and advances depending on the duration of overdue. Again as per BRPD

circular no. 14 dated 23 September 2012, BRPD circular no. 07 dated 21 lune 2018 and BRPD

circular no. 13 dated 18 October 2018, a general provision at 0o/o lo lo/o is required to be
provided for all off-balance sheet exposures. Such provision policies are not specifically in line

with those prescrlbed by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 9: Financial

nstruments.

Recognition of interest in suspense

IFRS: Loans and advances to customers are genemlly classified at amortised cost as per IFRS

9 and interest income is recognised by using the eFFective interest rate method to the gross

carrying amount over the term of the loan. Once a loan subsequently becomes credit-impaired,
the entity shall apply the effective interest rate to the amo*ised cost of these loans and

advances.

_r Bangladesh Bankr As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated 23 September 2012, BRPD circulal
'.e. No.03 dated Aprll 21 2019 and BRPD Circular Letter No. 56 (December 10 2020), once a loan
at+ is classified, interest on such loans are not allowed to be recognised as income, rather the

$orresponding amount needs to be credited to an interest in suspense account which is
'$resented 

as liability in the balance sheet.

v . Other comprehensive income

IrRS: As per IAS 1 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is a component of financial statements
.o
24 0t[ 20n

B

r the elements 
?ttw gmm be included in a single other comprehensive income statement

ladesh Bank: Bangladesh Eank hagiss0€c[ t$0]lates for financial statements through
circular no. 14 June 2003) which wi y be followed by all banks. The tem
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of financial statements issued by Bangladesh Bank do not include OCI nor are the elements of
OCI allowed to be included in a single OCI sfatement. As such the Bank does not prepare an

oCI statement. However elements of oCI. if any, are shown in the statements of changes in

equity.

vl , Financial instruments - presentation and disclosure
In several cases Bangladesh Bank guidelines categories, recognise, measure and present

financial instruments differently from those prescribed in IFRS 9. As such full disclosure and

presentation requirements of IFRS 7 cannot be made in the financial sfatements.

ix. Financialguarantees

IFRS: As per IFRS 9, financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer to make

specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails

to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt

instrument. Financial guarantee liabilities are recognlsed initially at their fair value plus

transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue ofthe financial liabilities. The flnancial

guarantee liability is subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance for
expected credit losses as per impairment requirement and the amount lnitially recognised less,

income recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15. Financial guarantees are

included within other liabilities.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD 14, dated 25 lune 2003 financial guarantees such as letter

of credit and letter of guarantee will be treated as off-balance sheet items. No liability is

nised for the guarantee except the cash margin. As per BRPD Circular No.01 dated 03

January 2018 and tsRPD Circular No,14 dated 23 September 2012, the Bank is required to
maintain provision at 1olo agalnst gross off-balance sheet exposures (which includes undrawn

loan commitments) considering the latest BRPD circular letter No, 09 dated 27 May 2019.

x. Cash and cash equivalent

IFRS: Cash and cash equivalent items should be reported as cash item as per IAS 7.

Bangladesh Bank: Some cash and cash equivalent items such as money at call and on short

notice, treasury bills, Bangladesh Bank bills and prize bond are not shown as cash and cash

equivalents in the balance sheet, Money at call and on short notice are presented on ihe face

of the balance sheet while treasury bills, Bangladesh Bank bills, prize bonds are shown as

investments. However, in the cash flow statement, money at call and short notice and prize

bonds are shown as cash and cash equivalents beside cash in hand, balance with Bangladesh

Bank and other banks.

xi. Non-banking asset

i[ [[[ 2[Z{FRS: 
No indication of Non-banking asset is found in any IFRS.

Bangladesh aanklS ppf,ffib circular no. ln*E{Cilfltune 2003 and BRPD Circular no. 22

d September 2021, there must exist a face item named Non-banking asset.
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xii. Presentation of intangible asset

Bangladesh Bankr Intangible assets are shourn in fixed assets, including premises and

furniture and fixtures, as there is no specific regulation for intangible assets in BRPD circular
no. 14, dated 25 lune 2003.

xiii, Cash flow statement

IFRS: Cash flow statement can be prepared either in direct method or in indirect method. The
presentation is selected to present these cash flows in a manner that is most appropriate for
the business or industry. The method selected is applied consistently.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPO circular no. 14 dated 25lune 2003, cash flows is the mixture
of direct and indirect method.

xiv. Balance with Bangladesh Bank: (Cash Reserve Requirement)

IFRS: Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be treated as other asset as it is not available for
the use in day to day operations as per LAS 7,

Bangladeih Bank: Balance with Bangladesh Bank is treated as cash and cash equivalents.

Presentation of intangible asset

IFRS: An intangible asset must be identified and recognized, and the disclosure must be given

as per IAS 38.

Bangladesh Bank: There is no requirement for regulation of intangible assets in ERPD 14

25 lune 2003, hence it is shown in fixed assets

xvi. Off-balance sheet items

IFRS: There is no concept of off-balance sheet items in any IFRS; hence there is no
requirement of disclosure of off-balance sheet items.

Bangladesh Eank: As per ERPD circular no, 14 dated 25 lune 2003, off balance sheet items
(e.9. Letter of credit, Letter of guarantee etc.) must be disclosed separately on the face of
balance sheet.

Disclosure of appropriation of profit

shou disclosed in the of profit and loss

mad, CA
ATTI zzamao, FCs A 2 4 0ECn

xv.

!F

*E
o IFRS: There is no requirement to show appropfiation of profit in the face of statement of

comprehensive income.
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IFRS: Intangible assets must be identified and recognised, and the disclosure must be given

as per IAS 38: Intangible Assets.
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xviii. Loans and advance net of provision

IFRS: As per IFRS 9, Loans and advances should be presented net of provisions,

Bangladesh Bankr As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003, provision on loans and
advances are presented separately as liability and cannot be netted off against loans and
advances.

xix. Provision on Financial Guarantees

IFRS: fu per IFRS 9 bank shall recognise credit losses on undrawn loan commitments such as
Letter of Credit (VC), Letter of Guarantee (UG) etc. as the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flow that are due by the customer if the commitment is drawn
down and the cash flows that bank expects to receive.

xx Provision for Startup Fund

IFRS: There is no requirement to show approprlation of profit in the face of statement of
comprehensive inmme.

Bangladesh Bank: In compliance with SMESPD circular 04 dated March 29, 2021 and SMESPD

circular letter 05 dated April 76,2021, the Bank has created Start-up Fund in first quarter 2021
priating BDT 3.17 Crore (1olo of net profit of FY2021 ADI377,77 Crore). As a continuation

of
FY 2422 BDT 393.28 Crore). The

n9 Start-up Fund, the bank has also contributed BDT 3.93 Crore (101, of net profit of
objective of this fund is to provide loan facilities to the start-

up entrepreneurs for their business and projects

2.1.2 Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern assumption that the
Bank will continue in operation for the foreseeable future. The Bank has neither any intention nor any
legal or regulatory compulsion to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of any oF its operations. The
key financial parameters (including liquidity, profitability, asset quality, provision sufficiency and capiLal

glequacY) of the Bank continued to show a healthy trend for couple of years. The rating outlook of the
,Rank as reported by all the rating agencies is "Stable". Besides, the management is not aware of any
ffiterial uncertajnties that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank's ability to continue as a going
..1
corlcem.

2,1,3 Disclosure on BASEL UI

The Basel III accord (an extension of the existing Basel II Framework) is a set of financial reforms that
was d by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCB S), with the aim of strengthening
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Bangladesh Bank: As per ERPD Circular no. 07 dated (21 June 2018) and BRPD Circular no.14
dated (23 September 2012), the Bank is required to maintain provision at 1olo rate against off-
balance sheet exposures (which includes all types of undrawn loan commitments).
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shocks from financial stress and to streng*len their transparency and disclosures as well as liquidity
standards.

Key Principles of Basel III
Capital Conservation Buffer is designed to absorb lmses during periods of financial and economic
stress. Financial institutions will be required to hold a capital consevation buffer of 2.5olo to withstand
future periods of stress, bringing the total common equify requirementto 7o/o (4.5Yo common equity
requirement and the 2.5% capital conservation buffer). The capital conservation buffer must be met
exclusively with common equity. Financial institutions that do not maintain the capital conservation
buffer faces restrictions on pay-outs of dividends, share buyback, and bonuses.

mmon Equity Tier I (CETI) constitutes an increase from 2o/o to 4,5o/o,

Total Capital Ratio is 10%, Tier 2 capital instruments are harmonized and tier 3 capital is

EAbolished in the Basel IIi regime. With buffer Banks have to maintain 12.50o/o capital of Total Risk
.{eighted Asset of the banlG.

Leverage ratio: Basel III introduced a minimum "leverage ratio". The leverage ratio was calculated
by dividing -Iier 1 capital by the bank's average total consolidated assets; the banks were expected to
maintain a leverage ratio in excess of 3olo under Basel III.

cJ-iquidity requirements
-tasel III inkoduced two required liquidity ratios:

'tiquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) ensures that sufficient levels of high-quality liquid assets are
available for one-month suMval in a severe stress scenario.

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) promotes resilience over long-term time horizons by creating

an ongoing

5.
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It was agreed upon by the members of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in 2010-2011,
and was scheduled to be introduced from 2013 until 2015. However, changes made from April 2013
extended implementation until March 31, 2018. The Basel III requirements were in response to the
deficiencies in flnancial regulation that is revealed by the 2000's flnancial crisis. Basel III was intended
to strengthen bank capital requirements by increasing bank liquidity and decreasing bank leverage.
The global capital framework and new capital buffers require financial institutions to hold more capital
and higher quality oF capital than under current Basel II rules, The new leverage rdtio introduces a

non-risk-based measure to supplement the risk-based minimum capital requirements. The new liquidify
ratios ensure that adequate funding is maintained in case there are other severe banking crises.

Countercyclical Capital Buffer is a countercyclical buffer within a range of 0olo and 2.5olo of common
equity or other fully loss absorbing capital is implemented according to national circumstances. This
buffer serves as an extension to the capital conservation buffer.
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2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items:

- Govemment Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as 'Held for Trading (HFD'at present value
using'mark to market'concept with gain crdited to revaluation reserve but loss charged to
Profit and Loss Account.

- Government Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as'Held to Maturity (HTM)'at present value
using amortization concept.

- Land is recognized at cost at the time of acquisition and subsequently measured at fair value
as per IA5-16 Property Plant & Equrpment and BSEC notification SEC/CMRRCD/2009-
193/150/Admin dated 18 Auqust 2013.

- Investment in shares of listed companies are valued at market price and unlisted companies at
cost or book value of last audited balance sheet, whichever is lower.

- Net asset/(liability) of defined benefit scheme is net of present value of defined benefit
obligations, total plan assets and other related items as required by IAS 19.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated flnancial statements include the financial statements of United Commercial Bank PLC

and its subsidiaries 'UCB Stock Brokerage Limited','UCB Investment Ltd','UCB Asset Management
Limited'and'UCB Fintech Company Limited'. The SeparaG (solo) financial statements and consolidated
flnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Accounting Standard (1AS) -
27i Sepamte Financial Statements and IFRS-I}; Consolidated frnancbl statemenfs The consolidated
Rnancial statements are prepared to a common financial year Ended 31 December 2022. Basls of
consolidation are as follows:

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the bank and the
ancial statements of the subsidiary companies from the date that control commences until

that control ceases. The flnancial statements of such subsidiary companies aree the
incorporated on a line by line basis and the investments held by the parent (bank) are
eliminated against the corresponding share capital of group entities (subsidiaries) in the
consolidated financial statements.
Subsidiaries (investees) are entities controlled by the parent (investor). Controlexists when the
investor has the power over the investee that gives right to direct relevant activities, exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investo/s returns.
All financial assets a.d financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated financial statements only when there is legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
setde the liability simultaneously, Items are not ofFset in the consolidated financial statements
unless required or permitted by accounting standards and regulators.
Intragroup balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements,
Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
In the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

- Loss of control: Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary the group derecognizes the assets
(including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at carrying amount, any non-controlling
interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit
arising on the loss of control is recognized in profil and loss account. If the group retains any
interest in the former/previous/ex subsidiary, such interest is measured at fair value at the date
that the control is lost.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets.
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounung estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revjsed and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are described below:

The Bank assesses its loans and advances for objective evidence of impairment on a regular basis and
particularly at year end. whilst the primary criteria set out in BRPD circular no, 14 dated 23 september
2012 for determining whether a loan is impaired is objective, being based on borrower's ability to make
timely repayments, loans and advances may also be classified based on qualitative judgment. This

making assessments regarding the economic environment in which borrowers operate in
to making judgments about a borrower's financial situation and net realisable value of any

rtfl derlying collateral
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The estimation of current tax provision involves making judgments regarding admissibility of certain
expenses. estimating the amount of other expenses for tax purposes and applicability of provision oF
the Finance Act 2022, although return will be submitted for tax based on the Finance Act 2023.

,\r In addition, the recognition of defened tax assets requires the Bank to estimate the extent to which itr is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets may be
rnutilized

Eiii) Post-employment benefits-asset/(liabitity) from gratuity

The determination of Bank's asset/(liabilify) from gratuity involves the use of estimates regarding
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2.4 Use of estimat€s and judgments

i) Provision for loans and advance



-

@ ACNABIN
Cbdfterel Auonnta ts

Depreciationiv)

U)
a
o.
z

z

oq

q!

o
q.

"o

E!E
(D
c.)o
o

o
tl
x

r*\
!i:, Iizl;z It:

l.

o
C

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of each item of fixed
asset. The determination of useful life involves the use of estimates regarding expected use of the
assets, expected physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or similar
limits on the use of the assets,

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation in compliance with IAS 37:
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,

vi) Lease Liabilities

The lease liability is initlally measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted at the
Bankt incremental bonowing rate. The Bank determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining
interest rates from various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the
terms of the lease and type of the rental assets leased. The lease liability is remeasured when there is
a change in future lease payments or the changes in discount rate. When the lease liability is

remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities.

2.5 Consistency

of errors, the amounts involved are accounted for and disclosed retrospectively in accordance
uirement of IAS-8. However, for changes in the accounting estimates the related amount

$ recognized prospectively in the current period and in the next period or periods.

6 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (TakafIk/BDT) which is the Bank,s
?

c. cr functional currency. The functional currency of OBU is US Dollar (USD). The flnancial statements of
E OBU have been translated to presentation currency (Takaftk/BDT) using the exchange rate prevailing

S at balance sheet date. Except as otherwise indicated, financial information presented in Taka has been6 rounded to the nearest integer.

Foreign currency transactions

TransactionslDay End Balances in foreign currencies are converted into respective functional currencies

2 4trEt of exchange rulino at the date of tra
. errtfdEEl$Snse rate (ltff

nsactions as per IAS 21, 'The Effects of Changes in
Foreign nge Rates'
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v) Provisions for expenses

In accordance with IFRS framework for the presentation of financial statements together with IAS-1
and IAS-8, United Commercial Bank PLC discloses its information consistently from one period to the
next. When selecting and applying new accounting policies, changes in accounting policies and

Functional and presentation currency
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recorded and the rate prevailing on the reporting date/date of settlements) applied on the monetary
assets or liabilities of the bank are recorded in the Profit and Loss Account.

Foreign currency translations

Assets and liabilities of OBU have been presented in Taka (which is functional currency of the Bank)
using year end standard mid mte of exchange of the Bank and incomes and expenses are translated
using monthly average of standard mid rate of exchange. The foreign currency translation difference
is a net result of exchange difference of year end standard mid rate and monthly average of standard
mid rate arising from translation of functional currency to presentauon currency,

Foreign cunency differences arising on translation are recognised in the profit and loss account o(cept
for exchange rate differences on fund deposited with Bangladesh Bank as capital, which is recognised
directly in equity.

2.7 Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 7
"Statement of Cash Flows" and under the guideline of Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular no.14 dated 25
lune 2003. The Statement shows the strudure of changes in cash and cash equivalents during the
financial year.

ent of liquidity

statement of assets and liabilities as on the reporting date has been prepared on residual

\ gaturity term as per following basis:

?4 [tt,?$n
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Particulars Basis of Use
sh, Balance with other banks and financial

institutlons, money at call and short notice etc.
Stated maturity/observed behavioral trend

Investments Residual maturity term

Loans and advances Repaymenthaturity schedule and behavioral
trend (non-maturity produsts)

Fixed assets Useful life
Other assets Realization/amortization basis
Borrowings from other banks and financial
institutions Maturity/repayment term

Deposits and other accounts
Maturity and behavioral trend (non-maturity
products)

long term liability Maturity term
and other I ,SF$(eqp.ff/adjustment schedule basis

United

2,8 Statement of changes in equity

The statement of changes in equity reflects information about the increase or decrease in net assets
or weaith. The statement also shows item-wise movement along with the description of chanqs from
the end of last year to the end of current year.

Faruk

Managing Director
Prioe filalce Capilal Ilarageme0l Limrled
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2, 10 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by group entities except otherwise instructed
by the Central Bank as prime regulator. certain comparative amounts in the financial statements have
been reclassified and reaffanged to conform to the cunent year's presentation.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries

The flnancial statements of subsidiaries have been prepared using uniform accounting policies of the
Bank (Parent) for transactions and other events in similar nature where applicable. The financial
statements of subsidiaries have been prepared using the calendar year ended 31 December which is
also same for the Bank.

A. ASSETS AND THE BASIS OF THEIR VALUATION

2.10,2 Investments

All investment securities are initlally remgnized at cosq including acquisition charges associated with

ffu: investment, Premiums are amortized and discounts are accredited. Accounting treatment for
rnment treasu ry securities (HFT and HTM) is made as per Bangladesh Bank Circular Ref. BRPD

dated 26 May 2008 and subsequent clarification DOS circular letter no. 5 dated 28 January

.)

€
2.10.3 Held to Maturity (HTM)

l\r Investments which have "flxed or determinable payments" and are intended to be held to maturity are
Eoclassified 

as "Held to Maturity". Initially these investments are recorded at cost. Subsequently at each

!)ear end, these investments are measured at amoftized cost. Any increase or decrease in the value of
Euch investment is recognized in shareholders' equity and profit and loss account respectively.

2,10.4 Held for Trading (HFf)

Investments classified in this category are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in short trading or if designated as such by the management. After initial recognition at cost,
investments are revalued at Mark to Market (MTM) on weekly basis and any increase on such valuation
ts recognized as revaluation gain under the shareholders' equity and any loss is recognized in the profit

24 0t& account. 24 0EC 2023 24 lEr 2023
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2.10,1 Cash and cash equivalents

Gsh and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balance held with Bangladesh

Bank and highly liquid financial assets which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair
value, and are used by the Bank management For its short-term commiknents.
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Managing Director & CEO

United Commercial Bank PLC
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2.10,5 REPO and Reverse REPO

Securities purchased under re-sale agreements are treated as collateralized lending and recorded at
the consideration paid and interest accrued thereon. The difference between purchase price and re-

sale price is treated as interest received and accrued evenly over the life of Repo agreement.

Since 01 September 2010 transactions of REPO and Reverse REPO are recorded based on DOS Circular

no. 06, dated 15 July 2010 of Bangladesh Bank. Securities under repo will be excluded from the
investment portfolio and hence will not be eligible for SLR purpose. Securlties acquired under reverse

repo will be eligible for SLR purpose initially at its clean price (in case of coupon bearing security) or at
its market value (in case of non-coupon bearing security),

2.10,6 Investment in listedlquoted securities

These securlties are bought and held primarily for the purpose of selling them in the future or holding

for dividend income. These are reporied at cost. Unrealized gains are not remgnized in the profit and

loss account. But provision for diminution in value of investment is recognized in the profit and loss

account.

2.10.7 Investment in unquoted securities

Investment in unlisted securities is reported at cost under cost method, Adjustment is given for any

shortage of Net Assets Value (NAV) over cost in the Profit & Loss Account, but there is no unrealized
gain booking.

Revaluation

Unquoted Shares At cost or book value of the last audited balance
sheet whichever is lower

Government Treasury Bills and Bonds
(HFD

C'overnment Treasury Bills and Bonds
(HTM)

At Market value (using marking to market concept)

At present value (using marking to market concept)

Prize Bond At cost

g
.J

z 2,1O.8 Investm€nt in subsidiaries

subsidiaries are accounted for under the cost method ofaccounting in the Bankt financial
SREMents in accordance with IAS 2T "Separate Financial Statements" and IFRS 3 "Business

nation". Impairment of investment in subsidiaries ls made as per the provision of IAS 3Ex

\\'irment oF Assets".

2.10,9 Loans, Adyances and provisions

2llorn. 
"ndLoans and

nd Short term Agricu Iture and Micro Credit. Continuous and Demand Loans are accounted
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under Capitalized method where interestaccrues monthly and applied to Ioan account quaiterly.
Term loans are accounted under amortized method where repayments consist of no. oF EMI5.

c) Interest on unclassified loans & advances and SMA loans are credited to Interest Income.
Interest on Sub- standard and Doubfful Loans and advances are not credited to interest income,
it is kept in suspense account as per Bangladesh Bank inskucbons and such interest is not
accounted for as income until realized from borrowers. Interest accrual is kept stopped for all
Bad & Loss Loans.

d) Commission and discounts on bills purchased and discounted are recognized at the time of
realization.

e) General provisions on unclassified loans and off balance sheet items, specific provisions for
classified loans and interest suspense thereon are shown under other liabilities. Provision
against classifled loans and advances is made on the basis of quarter end review by the
management and instructions contained In ERPD Circular no.14 dated 23 September 2012,
BRPD Circular no.19 dated 27 December 2012, BRPD Circlrlar no.16 dated 1g November Z01d
BRPD Circular no. 12 dated 20 August 2017, BRPD Circular no. t5 dated 27 September 2017
and BRPD Orcular no. 01 dated 20 February 2018, BRPD circular no. 07 dated 21 lune 2018,
BRPD circular no. 13 dated 18 October 2018, BRPD circular No.03 dated Aprit 21 2019, BRPD
Circrlar Letter No. 17 (September ?g, ZOZO) and BRPD Orcular Lefter No. 56 (December 10,
2020), BRPD Orcular Letter No. 59 (December 30. 2OZ0), BRPD Circular Letter No. 05 (March
24,2071), BRPD Circular Letter No. 13 (June 27, 2021), BRPD Circular Letter No. 19 (August
26, 2021), BRPD Circular Letter No. 45 (Ocbober 04, Z02t), BRPD Circular Letter l,lo. 50
(December 14, 2021 and circulars till 2022).

FCA
? 4 0E[ 2023ATII uzzaman, FCS
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Faruk Ahammad
A adri

D ]\,1D & 0 pany Secretary

Rezaul Haque
Managing Dilector

Particulars Rates
General Provision on
Unclassified general loans and advances lo/o
Unclassified small and medium enterprise 0,250/o
Unclassified loans to BHS/MBs/SDs against shares etc 2o/o

Unclassifled loans consumer financing -Housing finance to/o
Unclassified loans consumer financing -Loans for professionals
Unclassifi ed loans consumer financi ng {redit card

2olo

2o/o

Unclassified consumer financing others 7o/o

Unclassified short-term Agricultural and Micro-Credits 1o/a

Special lYention Account 0.25o/o-2o/o
Off-balance sheet exposures

pecial general provision-COVID-19
1o/o

1.S-Za/o

it
nda rd tother nha horts aterm cred ait mnd rcrogn

btfuu loa ans dn otadvances rhe ntha horts term Icred at dn lcromagri

{pecific Provisions on

20o/o

500/o

Bad/Loss loans and advances 100o/o

bsta nda rd h a9 redit cottage tcro cred ISu teort TM cn and m it 5& Ima
short term agri credit and micro creditI
cottage,

5o/o

20o/o

t=

united Commercial Bank PLC Manaqpg Director & CEO
United Commercial Bank PLC
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Loans and advances are written off to the €Ddent that
i. there is no realistic prospect of reoovery and
ii. against which legal cases are filed and pending for more than 03 (three) years as per guiddines

of Bangladesh Bank (BRPD cirarlar No,01 dated 06 tubruary 2019).

However, the write off will not reduce the claim against the bonower. Detailed memorandum records
Ior all such write off accounts are maintained carefully and followed up. Write-off loans and advances
are reported to the Credit Information Bureau (CIB) of Bangladesh Bank.

As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated 23 September 2012, BRPD Circular No. 05 dated 29 May 2013, BRPD
circular No. 03 dated 21 April 2019 and BRPD circular Letter No, 56 dated 10 December 2020, for
additional special general provision-covlD-lg at 1olo also, a general provision at lolo to 5olo under
different categories of unclassified loans (good/standard loans) have to be maintained.

2.10,10 Propefty, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Recognition

The cost of an item of fixed assets is re@gnized as an asset if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity, and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably,

Initial Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment that qualifo for recognition as an asset is measured initially at
its cost. The cost of an item of PPE comprises:

a) Its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trdde discounts and rebates,

b) Any costs directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

c) The initial estimate of the cosb of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

F&d land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Land is recognized at cost

a
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o
lno

aEe time of acquisition and subsequently measured at revalued amounts which are the fair value
revaluation done by independent professional valuer, and any surplus on revaluation 'k

n as equity component until the asset is disposed.s
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United Commercial Bank PLC

Subsequent Measurement

subsequendy, the Bank has the option io measure an entire class of property, plant and equipment
either using @st model or revaluation mode,.
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with the item will flow to the bank due to the subsequent expenditure. However, expenditures incurred
after the assets have been put into operation, such as, repairs and maintenance is recognized as
revenue expenditure in the period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged at the rates staGd below on all flxed assets on the basis of estimated useful
lives as determined in the fixed asset policy of the Bank. In all cases depreciation is calculated using
the straight line method. Charging depreciation commences from the month of acquisition (for full
month) and ceases at the month when the assets are disposed, No depreciation has been charged on
land. Rate and method oF charging depreciation/ amortization of flxed assets are mentioned below:

Name of the assets Rate of depreciation
Method of charging

depreciation/ amortization
Land NIt Not applicable
Building 2.50o/o Straight Line Method
Furniture & Fixtures 7aa/o Straight Line Method

20o/o Straight Line Method

Computer Equipmenfs 20o/o Straight Line Method
Computer Software 25o/o Straight Line Method

Vehicle 20o/o Straiqht Line Method

Changes in useful life and method of depreciation of the property, plant and equipment

Both changes in useful life of the property, plant and equipment and method of depreciation, i.e.
consumption pattern of the assets shall be accounted for as a change in an accounung estimate ln
accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Poiicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction is recognized and reported under Fixed Assets as
per IAs 16 'Property, Plant & Equlomen( as capital work in progress unul the construction work is
completed and the asset is ready for the intended use. This asset is stated at cost, and depreciation of
the asset will be dtarged from the dale of its intended use.

n of fixed assets
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amount of an item of ilxed assets is derecognized on disposal or when no future economR
expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de recognition of an item of fix#
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Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
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Property, Plant and is revalued when falr ralue of the asset differs materially
is normally .q+t{dffi Qt by professionally qualifi ed valuers.
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Techno Consult & Survey Ltd. Accordingly, revaluation surplus is included in fixed assets and assets
revaluation reserve is recognized under shareholdert equity as per guidelines of IA5-16; property,

Plant and Equipment. Such revaluahon reserve will be disposed off upon retirement/de-recognition of
the assets.

2.10,11 Accounting under lease operations:

Assets obtain€d under Lease Agreements

intemational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 16: Leases come into force on 1 lanuary 2019, as
adopted by institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). As per IFRS 16 a lease is a
contract (or part oF a mntract) that conveys the rlght to use an asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. A contract contains a lease if fulfllment depends on an identified asset and it conveys
the right to control the use oF that identified asset throughout the period of use. Each lease component
should be identifled and accounted for separately.

As a lessee

The Bank recognises a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a lease liability from the initial application date i.e.
01 January 2019 or the commencement date of a lease contract. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet
immediately before the date of initial applicaUon. plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismanUe and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets are subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the initial
application date or commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the Bank by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-
use asset reflects that the Bank will exercise a purchase optjon. In that case the right-of-use assets will
be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use assets are periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for cerlain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the initial application date or commencement datg discounted at the Bank's weighted average rate.
Generally. the Bank uses lts incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.a
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ii) Leased Asset

Leases of property. plant and equipment that transfer to the Bank substahtially all of the risks and the
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured initially at an
amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to the asset.

Assets held under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognised in the Bank's
statement of financial position.

iii) Lease Payment

Payments made under operating lease are charged to pront or loss on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expenses, over the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability,

2.10.12 Intangible asset

An intangible asset is to be recognized only if it is probable that future economic benefits atkibutable
to the assets will flow to the bank and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Recognition &
measurement of Intangible Assets are guided by International Accounting standard (IAS)-3B;
'Intangible Asseti lntangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no Future economic benefits
are expected from their use. Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asseL is measured
as the difference between the net dlsposal proceed and the carrying amount of that intangibly asset is
recognised in profit and loss account. Due to following BRPD circular no. 14 dated 25 lune 2003,
intangible assets are not disclosed in a separate line rather reported under Fixed Assets. However,
separate line item along with the rate of amortization is identifiable in the detail schedule of Fixed
Asset.

2. r.0,13Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of bank's assets are reviewed when as required b determine whether there is
F.8fly indication of impairment. Any impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account if the

nt of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount [IAS 36 Impairment of,4ssels]. No such
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BRPD Circular No. 14 dated 25 June 2003, Income & Non-income-generating other assets item(s) have
been shown separately in the relevant notes to the financial statements,

2.10.15 Receivables

Receivables are recognized when there is a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
from another entity or p€rson.

2.10.16 Non-banking assets

Bangladesh Bank vide BRPD circular no. 14 dated 25 lune 2003 required that Non-banking assets
should be shown separately in the books of accounts. Non-banking assets are acquired on account of
the failure of a borrower to repay the loan in time after receiving the decree from the court regarding
the right and tide of the mo*gaged property.

Recognition of non-banking assets

Although there is no indication of non-banking assets found in any Intemational Financial Repotting
Standards (IFRS), non-banking assets are to be recorded in the books of accounts when all formalities
regardlng confirmation of ownership have been completed in accordance with the BRPD circular No.
22 dated 20 September 2021. It means that asset to be recognized during controlling over economic
benefits flowing from the asset to the bank is established and its associated cost/value is reliably
measured. Thereforg considering practical grounds, non-banking asse6 are recorded in the book of
accounts of UCB PLC when all of the following conditions have been met:

a) Certification of ownership u/s 33(7) of the 'Artharin Adalat Act 2003, obtained
b) Registration from the Sub Registry Office completed
c) DCR & Mutation form the concerned AC Land office completed
d) Land Rent bx and Municipal tax(if any) paid

e) Valuation of the property done

Q Physical possession obtained

Measurem€nt of the non-banking assets:
Non-banking Asset is measured at the estimated Forced sale value (FSV) as determined by the

dent professional valuing firm.

ES AND PROVISIONS

10.17 Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agentsa

laonowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents include interest bearing borrowings,
-Sionds etc. which are stated in the financial statements at principal amount of the outstanding balance.

Interest payables on su€h borrowings are .eported under other liabilities.
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2.10,18 Debt securities:

global economic turmoil It B0toNlfo grobar2frngftGJ0ftulators are more concerned with
risk resilience capaci of the banks and in more risk sensitivlffitt S&
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framework namely Basel I1I. With the view to strengthening capital base of the bank and subsequently
to meet up the capital adequacy ratio as per Bangladesh Bank's instruction in line with BASEL-iII
Accord, UCB issued the following Subordinated and Perpetual bonds with key features as listed below:

Subordinated Bond

CA t{ 0tt

pl

F.l
E,

CT

aruk Ahammad,
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ATttt uzzaman, FCS adri
OMD&C

United Co

ompany

mmercia

Secretary

lBank PLC
MaqAging Director & CEO
United Commercial Bank PLC zaul H

Managing Director

Issued
Amount

Outstanding
Amount

Name of the
Subordinate

d Bond
(BDT in
Million)

As on
31

December
2022

(BDT in
Million)

Issue
Date

Tenure
Interest

Rate

Range
of

Interest
Rate

Redemption
of

Principal

UCB 3rd

Subordinated
Bond (1st

Tranche)

3,s00.00 1,400.00 28-Dec-17
7

Years

Base

Rate
plus

2.5o/o

7,004/o-

10.50%
20olo in each

of last 5 years

UCB 3rd
Subordinated

Bond (znd

Tranche)

3,500.00 2,100.00 16-May-18
7

Years

Base

Rate

plus

2.5o/o

7.00o/o-

10.50o/o

20olo in each

of last 5 years

ucB 4th
Subordinated
Bond (1st
Tranche)

500.00 300.00 24-Dec-18
7

Years

Base

Rate
plus

2.00/o

7.00o/o-

10.50%

200/o in each
of last 5 years

ucB 4th
Subordinated

Bond (2nd

Tranche)

2,500.00 1,500.00 26-Dec-18
7

Years

Ease

Rate
plus

2.0o/o

7.00Yo-

10.50%
20olo in each

of last 5 years

UCB 4th
Subordinated

Bond (3rd

Tranche)

80.00 14-Aug-19
7

Years

Base

Rate

plus

2.0o/o

7.00o/o-

10.500/o

20Vo in each

of last 5 years

Tra6€he )

UCB 4th
Subordinated

Bond (4th
1,000.00 800.00 05-Nov-19

7

Years

Base

Rate
plus

2.0o/o

7.00o/o'

10.50o/o

500.00 05-Dec-19
7

Years

Base

Rate

plus

2.Oo/o

7 -00o/o-

10.500/o

200/0 in each

of last 5 years

UCB 4th
Subordinated

9?i Stt mn
lrancne)

)

250.00

2

250.00

4 0E[ 2023

23-Mar-20
2{ IBe4$23

7
Base

Rate
plus

2,Oolo

7.00o/o-

10.50%
20% in each .

of last 5 years:

Prift Fi0ancr Crpital M araB.otrl Litnlled

100.00

20olo in each

of last 5 years

-ueB&h
SuboEnatea
aond sir\

-j{iirlclre)

400,00
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Deputy Managing Director & CFO
i.rnited Commercial Bank PLc

@p,*sl*},

ITM rzzaman, FCS

ill!11"1& Co mpany Secretary dri

ezaul Haqu
Managing Director

UCB 4th
Subordinated
Bond (7th
Tra nche)

100.00 100.00 22-)un-20
7

Years

Base

Rate

plus

2.0olo

7.00o/o-

10.500/o

UCB 4th
Subordlnated

Bond (8th
Tranche)

100.00 100.00 28-Jun-20
7

Years

Base

Rate

plus

2.04/o

7,004/o-

10.50olo

20olo in each

of last 5 years

UCB 4th
Su bord inated
Bond (9th
Tranche)

100.00 100.00 15-Sep-20
7

Years

Base

Rate
plus

2.0%

20olo in each

of last 5 years

UCB 4th
Subordinated

Bond (10th

Tranche)

1,000.00 1000.00 24-5ep-20
7

Years

Base

Rate

plus

2.001o

7.00Yo'

10.500/o

20% in each

ol last 5 years

UCB 4th
Su bord inated
Bond (1lth
Tranche)

300.00
7

Years

Base

Rate
plus

2,00/o

7.00o/o-

10.500/o

UCB 4th
Su bord inated

Bond (12th

Tranche)

550.00 550.00 29-Sep-20
7

Years

Base

Rate
plus

2.0o/o

200lo in each

of last 5 years

UCB 4th
Subordinated

Bond (13th

Tranche)

1,000.00 30-Sep-20
7

Years

Base

Rate
plus

7,0./o

7.00o/o-

10,500/o

20% in each

of last 5 years

UCB sth
Subordinated

Bond (1st

Tranche)

500.00 500,00 29-Dec-22 7 Years

Base

Rate

plus

2.0o/o

7.000/o-

10,00o/o

20% in each

of last 5 years

ucB sth
Subordinated
Bond (znd
Tranche)

1,000.00 1,000.00 29-Dec-22 7 Years

Base

Rate
plus

2.0o/o

7,)Qo/o-

10.00o/o

200/o in each

oF last 5 years

Name of the
Perpetual Bond

fssued
Amount
(BDT in
Million)

Issue
Date

Interest
Rate

Range of
Interest Rate

UCB 15t I Bon{ 24fPr?e23
Base Rate
plus 2.0olo

SQ
6.00%-
10.00o/o

tlrrited Commercial Bank PLC
Managing Director & CEO
Unitedtommerciat Bank pLC

Prrmc fiaancr Caprtal Mllagcment Limited

z

20olo in each

of last 5 years

7.04o/o'

10.50o/o

300.00 27-Sep-20
20Vo in each

oF last 5 years

7 .00o/o-

10.50o/o

1,000.00

0t&lfr3.oo

4 DEt 2023
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2,10.19 Deposits and oth€r accounts

Deposits and other accounts include current deposits redeemable at call, short term deposits, savings

deposits and fixed deposits which are initially measured at the consideration received. These items are

subsequently measured and accounted for at the gross value of the outstanding balance in accordanc€

with the contractual agreements with the munter parties.

2,10.2o Other liabilities

2,10,21 Dividend payments

Interim dividend is recognized when it is paid to the shareholders. Final dividend is recognized when it

is approved by the shareholders in AGM. The proposed dividend for the Year 2022 is 10olo (50/o cash

dividend and 5% stock dividend), therefore, has not been recognized as a liability in the balance sheet

in accordance with IAs 10 'Events after the Reporting Peiod, Dividend payable to the Bank's

shareholders is recognlzed as a liability and deducted ftom the shareholders' equity in the period in

which the shareholders' right to receive the payment is established.

2,10.23 Provision for investment in capital market

For recognition of loss suffered from investment in capital market, provision is to be provided on

unrealized loss (gain net ofO according to DOS Circular No. 04 daled 24 November 2011 on portfolio

!z,to,Z* Provision for off-balance sheet exposures

In compliance with Bangladesh Bank guidelines, contingent liabilities have been disclosed under oFf-

other liabilities comprise items such as provision for loans and advances/ investments, provision for

taxes, interest payable on borrowing, interest suspense and accrued expenses etc. Indivldual item-wise

liabilities are remgnized as per the guidelines of Bangladesh Bank and Internahonal Financial Repofting

Standards (IFRSS).

dat@
Bdi

balance sheet items. fu per BRPD circular no. 07 dated 21 June 2018 and BRPD circular no. 13

24 0E0s10 ber 2018,
m. :1il,?!F fruf." as per the Bangladeshbeen

guide rculars agai sheet
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2.10.22 Provision for loans and advances

Provision for classified loans and advances is made on the basis of quarter end review by the

management and instructions contained in BRPD circular no.14 dated 23 september 2012, BRPD

Circular no,19 dated 27 December 2012, BRPD Ciroiar no.16 dated 18 November 2014, BRPD Circular

No. 08 dated 2 August 2015, BRPD Circular no. 12 dated 20 August 2017, BRPD Circular no. 15 dated

27 September 2012 BRPD circular No.03 dated April 21 2019, BRPD Circular Letter No. 17 (September

28 2020) and BRPD Circular Letter No. 56 (December 10 2020 and circulars issued il17022).

Details are stated in Note 12.
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2.10.25 Provision for other assets

Provision for other assets is made as per the guidelines mentioned in the BRPD Circular No. 04 dated

12 Aptil ?022 i.e. 1009o provision is required on other assets which are outsbnding for one year or

more.

2.10,26 Provision for Nostro accounts

Provision for unsettled trdnsactions on nostro accounts is made in accordance with the guideline of
Foreign Exchange Policy Department of Bangladesh Bank, FEPD Circular no. FEPD (FEMO) I 0t12005'
677 daled 13 September 2005, On the reponing date, UCB PLC has no unsettled transactlons

outstanding for more than 3 months and no provision has been made in tiis regard.

2.10,27 Provision for liabilities and accrued expenses

In compliance with IAS 37, provisions for other liabilities and accrued o(penses are recognized in the
financial statements when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

2.10,28 Retirement Benefit Schemes

The retirement benefits accrued for the employees ofthe Bankas on reporting date has been accounted

for in accordance with the provision of International Accounting Standard-1g, " Employees BeneliB',

Various types retirement benefit schemes of the bank are as follows:

Provident fund

Provident fund benefits are given to the employees of the Bank in accordance with the registered
provident fund rules. The Commissioner of Income Ta& Dhaka (North) has approved the provident

fund as a recognized provident Fund within the meaning of section 2 (52) read with the provision of
part - B of the First Schedule of Income Tax Ordinance 1984. The recognition took effect from
November 30, 1988. The Fund is operated by a Board of Trustee consisting 03 (three) members of the
Bank. All confirmed employees of the Bank are contributing 10-20o/o of their basic salary as subscription

bo the fund, The bank also contributes equal amount of the employees' contribution (maximum 1oYo).

lnterest earned from the investrnents is credited to the members'account on half yearly basis.

ity fund
e

GraElty benefits are given to the employees of the bank in acrordance with the approved gratuity fund

National Board of Revenue has approved the gratuity fund as a recognized gratuity fund on
27, 7995. The fund is operdted by a Board of Trustee consisting 3 (Three) members of the

in the bank. The Gratuity is calculated on the basi

tu io'
ots
8R

J

tr
LJ

c
payable at the rate of one

of se "Defined Benefit Plan" andr
rough the result of actuarial valuation of the fund.

f

L

ATlIl D?Zaman, FCs A
DMD & Co mpany Secretary

Managing Director

Unirud Coni
United Commercial Bank PLC

?dme Finame Capital M aragem.il Lifiilid

bank. Employees are entitled to gratuity beneflt after completion of minimum 5 (five) years of service

Managing Director & CEO
Unftbd Commerciat Bank pLC
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The Bank's net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit

that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting

the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obiigations is performed annually

by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credlt method.

Net interest expense, current service cost and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are

recognised as salaries and allowances in profit or loss. When the benefits of a plan are changed or
when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss

on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Employees' Welfare fund was established in June 18, 2009. The UCB PLC policy on Employees' Welfare

Fund, 2009, governs the fund and the day-to-day affairs are run by a duly constituted Board ofTrustee.
The fund is held and administered by a Board of Trustee and invested according to the rules of the
Fund framed as per applicable laws of Bangladesh.

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

consistent with widely accepted industry practice and in accordance with section 1l(1) of the Bank

company Act, 1991 (as amended up to date) and subsequent clarification given by Bank & Financial

Institutions Division (BFID), Ministry of Finance, no provision has been made by the Bank in the
reporting period against Workers Profit Participation Fund (WPPF).

2.10.29 Taxation

Income tax represented the sum of the current Tax and deferred tax payable for the year under
reporting.

i. Current Tax

current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect to the taxable profit
(tax loss) for a period. Provision for cunent income tax has been made as per the prescribed
rate in the Income Tax Ordinance 1984 on the accounting profit made by the bank after
considering some of the add-backs to income and disallowances of expenditure as per income
tax laws with IAS-LZ, " Incone Taxe!'. Tax Assets under the group head of other assets are
recognized for payment oFadvanc€ income tax. tax deducted at source and tax paid at the time
of IT Return for the year/years for which assessment has not yet been finalized. On the other

nd, the tax provision (as estimated as per LAS-12; Income Taxes, provision oF latest Finance

e ted SROs/guidelines etc.) are recognized as tax liability under the group head of
o.
o
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i. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax liabilities are the amount of income taxes payable in future periods in respectt
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are the amount of income tax recoverable

2 4 0t[ 2023
in future periods in respect of deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets and

liabi lities are recognized for the future tax con flgRgFg€H timing differences arising between

carrying values of fsl{$ ffilities, income'a'nd 
-eipinditure 

and their respective tax bas€s.
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liability for the year/years for which assessment has not yet been finalized.
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sheet date. Tax impact on the account of changes in defened tax asseE and liabilities has also
been recognized in the profft and loss account as per IAS-12, "Income taxes".

C. CAPITAL / SHAREHOLDERS' EQUIW

2.10.30 Capital

Authorized capital is the maximum amount of share capital that the bank is authorizd by its
Memorandum and Article of Association to issue to shareholders,

(b) Paid-up capital

Paid-up Capital represents total amount of shareholders' capital that has been paid in full by
the ordinary shareholders. Holders of ordinary share are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to vote at shareholders' meetings. In the event of
a winding-up of the company, ordlnary shareholders rank after all other shareholders and
creditors and are fully entitled to any residual proceeds of liquidation.

2.10,31 Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve has been maintained @ 20Yo of profit before tax in accordance with provisions oF

section 24 of the Bank Company Act, 1991 (and amendmenh thereon),

2.10.32 Asset revaluation reserve

When an asset's carrying amount is increased as a result of revaluation, the increased amount is
credited directly to equity under the heading of assets revaluation reserve as per IAS !6'propev,
Plant and Equipment The Bank also follows the assets revaluation guidelines issued by BSEC on 18
August 2013,

2,10,33 Reserve for Amortization/ revaluation of securities

When a Financial Asset categorized under HTM or HFT and subsequent value of the asset is increased
as a result of amortization of assets or mark to market revaluation. the net increased amount (for HTM
increase or decrease of book value and fior HFT loss to P&L but gain to revaluation reserve through

ng of reserve for amortization/ revaluation of
as per Bangladesh Bank DOS Circular Letter No. 05 dated 26 May 2008, DOS Circular

o. 05 dated 28 January 2009, DOS circular no. 06, dated 15 luly 2010.

\ z.fo,sa Retained Eamings

24 tE
J.t&Ei#q*yarry p,"nt iJA&E'lt[?3ined Earninqq $tt ?$?l

@

P&L) is credited directly to equity under the headi

v)
It

r-' FG
4ZY
a3A
UEC
d =b
6 l.o

tso The 5 amount after a

Faruk Ahammad, cA AT['l uzzaman, FCS
oeputy Managing Director & CFO

United Commercial Bank PLC

bakertitty

I

IIMD & Co Secretary
Arif
Mana ging Director & CEO M aul Haquc

United Commercial Bank PLC Managing Director

G

LJnired Commercial Bank PLC

49

(a) Authorized capital

l me Fina[!a Crprlal Manattflelll



@ ACNABIN
Chqrteyed Ac(I nt.fits

2,10.35 Share premium

The Share premium represents the excess amount received by the bank from its shareholders over the
nominal/par value of its share, The amount of share premium can be utilized as per the provision of
Section 57 of the Companies Act 1994.

2.10,36 Contingent asset and contingent liability

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
mnflrmed only by the occurrence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain Future events and on
the other hand a contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
e*stence will also be conflrmed only with the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
fulure events. Contingent asset and liability is not recognized rather disclosed in the financial
statements.
Bank also undertakes forward rate agreements and transaction of similar financial instruments and
derivatives. Such activities are undertaken in line with Bangladesh Bank guidelines and an appropriate
provision has been made against such contingent items.

2.10.37 Accounting of Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity inshument of another entity. Derivative is a financial instrument meeting all of the
following three features:

1. whose value changes in response to the change in price of an underlying security, commodity,
currency, index or other financial instruments;

2. where the initial net investment is zero or is small in relatlon to the value of underlying security
or index;

3, that is settled at a future date.
Derivatives are classified as held for trading (unless they are hedging instrumenE) and accordingly,
measured at fair value. Any changes in fair value is recorded in profit and loss account.

Embedded derivatives

Certain contracts that are not themselves derivatives (and may not be financ,al instruments) include
F-r derivative conkacts that are 'embedded' within. An embedded derivative is a component oF a hybrid
@(combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract. Embedded derivative causes
Esome or all of the cash flows of the host contract to be modified. Besides, embedded derivative cannot

Se transferred to a third party independently of the instrument. The basic rule for acmunting for an
aembedded derivative is that it should be separated from its host contract and accounted for as a

derivative i.e., measured at fair value and any changes ln fair value recognized in profit and loss

followirE
conditions are met:

economic characteristics the embedded deI
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characteristics anq
and risks of
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Separation of embedded derivative from the host contract is made only when the
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the payment ls established

10.43 Interest paid on borrowings and deposits

Z 4loF[t0g'penses
rate applicable fo respect&d 0€&?B33ano interest or? {a SND accounts

are recognized on accrual basis taking into aily balance outstandingaccount d
0[qJUid

account on hatf yearly s. No interest is a e on the balance
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1. The embedded derivauve would meet the definition of a derivative if separated from the host
contract.

2, The hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in p.ofit and loss.

D. REVENUE RECOGNITION

2.10.38 Interest income

Interest on unclassified (Standard and SMA) loans and advances is accounted for as income on accrual
basls, interest on classifled loans and advances (ss and DF only) is credited to interest suspense
account, with actual receipt of interest there from credited to income as and when received as per
instruction contained in BRPD 14 dated 23 september 2012, BRPD 19 dated 27 December 2012, BRPD
16 dated 18 November 2014 and BRPD circular No.03 dated April 21 2019, BRPD circular Letter No. 56
dated December 10, 2020 and BRPD Circular Letter No, 53 dated December 30, 2021 and circulars till
2022 of Bangladesh Bank. Interest is accrued on a daily basis and applied to qrstomer accounts every
month, quafter and at maturity depending on the product offerings. In accordance with BRPD circular
no. 14 dated 23 september 2012, interest accrued on sub-standard loans and doubtful loans are
credited to Interest Suspense Account which is included within Other liabilities. Interest from loans and
advances ceases to be accrued when they are classified as bad / loss.

2.10.39 Fees and commission income

Fees and mmmission income arises on services provided by the Bank and recognized on accrual basis.
Commission charged to customers on letters of credit, letters of guarantee and acceptance are credited
to income at the time of effecting the transactions.

2,10.40 Interest income from investments

Interest income from investments in Government and other securities, debentures and bonds are
accounted for on accrual basis. Investment income includes interest income, capital gain, and
revaluation loss on government securities,

2.L0.41 Income from exchange

Exchange income includes all gain and loss€s from foreign currency day to day transactions,
conversions and revaluation of Non-Monetary items.

2,1O.42 Dividend income

Di income from investments is recognized at the time when it is declared, ascertained and righ
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account. Interest on FDR accrued but not due to clients Alc was credited to'other Liability A/c -
Interest Payable'.

Other expenses are also recognized aM recorded m accrual basis,

2,10.44 Management and other expenses

Expenses incuned by the Bank are recognized on actual and accrual basis.

E. OTHERS

2.10,45 l4ateriality and aggrqation

Each material class of similar items has been presented separately in the financial statements. ltems
of dissimilar nature have also been presented separately unless they are immaterial in accordance with
IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements'.

2.10.45 Offsetting

The balance sheet presents the nel amount of financial assets and liabilities when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the intention is to settle them on a net basis or
simultaneously realize the asset and settle the liability. The Bank presents its advance tax paid and
provision for tax on a net basis under liability since the tax liability amount is higher than the advance
tax. Similarly, the Bank presents its Deferred Tax (DT) assets and liabitities on a net basis under the
asset section. as the DT asset amount is higher than the DT liability. The net deflned benefit obligation
is shown under the liabiiity section because the defined benefit obligation is higher than the fair value
of plan assets. Finally, card revenues and expenses earned and incurred on a shared basis that are
directly attributable are presented on a net off basis.

2.10,47 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The company calculates Earnings Per share (Eps) in accordance with IAs 33, " Earnings per shaE,
which has been shown on the face of the profit and Loss Account. Earnings per share (Eps) has been
calcr.:lated by dividing the net profit after tax by the total number of ordinary shares outstanding at the
end of the year. Details are shown in note 39 to the financial statements,

Basic Earnings Per Share

F, Basic earnings per share shall be calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent entity (the numerator) by the weighted average number of ordinary sha res;e

'-dn 

"

ing (the denominator) during the period.

i9hted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

!

J

is represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number
of ordinary shares issued duri ng the year multiplied by a time weighted factor, The time weiqhtinq

? 4 0[Gdm]s the number of d94; ffiflffic
The tota'l number of sh rffiting period tiplied

shares are outstanding as a proportion of the umber of
ares issued in f!1,
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a time weighting factor which is the number of days the specific shares were outstanding as a
proportion of total number of days in the year.

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the proflt or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effecG of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
However, diluted earnings per share calculated during the financial year 2022.

2.10,48 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one paf(y has the ability, directly or ifldirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions, Padies are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parfy kansaction is a transFer of resources, services, or obligations among
related parties. regardless of whether a price is charged as per IAS 24'Rdated Pafty Disclosuresi
Bangladesh Bank & BSEC guidelines. Details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in
notes 47.1 to 47.8.

2.10.49 Reconciliation of books and account

Books of acmunt in regard to inter-bank (in Bangladesh and outside Bangladesh) as well as inter-
branches are reconciled at regular intervals to keep the unreconciled balances within non-material level.

2.10,50 Events after the reporting period

Where necessary, all the material events after the balance sheet date have been considered and
appropriate adjustment/ disclosures have been made in the financial statements as per IAS 10'fyerts
after the Reporting Periadi

Only material event after the balance sheet date is: The Board of Directors recommended 10o/o dividend
(5% cash dividend and 5% slock dividend) for the year ZO22 ln its meeting no. 481 held on 25 April
2023.

2.10.51 Credit rating

ECRL has rated the Bank based on December 31, 2021 with "AA,,(pronounced as Double A) in the Long
Ierm and ST-2 for the Short Term. The date of rating was April24,2022.
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2,10,52 Compliance report on International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The Financial Reporting Act 2015 (FRA) was enacted in 2015. Under the FRA, the Financial Reporting

Council (FRC) was formed in 2017 and adopted International Accounting Standards (IASS) and

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS) as the applicable Financial Reporting Standards for

public interest entities such as banks. Consequently, the consolidated and separate financial statements

of the Group and the Bank respectively have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting

Standards (IASs) and International Financial Repofting Standards (IFRSS) as adopted by FRC. While

preparing the flnancial statemenG, UCB applied all the applicable IASS and IFRSS as adopted by FRC.

Details are given below:

IAS NO,Name of the IAS
Applied *1Presentation of Financial Statements

2 N/AInventories

7 Applied

Applied8Accounting Policies, Changes in Accountlng Estimates and Errors

10 AppliedEvents after the reporting period

Appliedt2Income Taxes

1b Applied

AppliedEmployee Beneflts

N/A20

2l AppliedThe Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

N/A23Bonowing Costs

AppliedRelated Party Disclosures

N/A xx26Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

27 AppliedSeparate Financial Statements

N/AInvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures 28

AppliedEarnings per share

Applied ***34

AppliedImpairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 37 Applied

38 Applied

40$vestment Property

N/A

StatusIFRS No.

41riculture

t{ame of the IFRS

N/AFirst time adoption of Bangladesh Flnancial Reporting Standards 1

Share Based Payment 2 N/A

N/ABusiness Combinations

N/Allrf,y(anceContract ? d [lFt ?023 4

N/ANon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued?qptrpFrqfft1

6 N/AEdoration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources .,.1
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Financial Instruments: Disclosure 7 Applied *

Operating Segments 8 Applied

Financial Instruments 9 Applied *

Consolidated Financial Statements 10 Applied

loint Arrangement N/A

Disclosure of Interest in other entities 72 NIA

Fair Value Measurement 13 Applied

Regulatory deferral accounts t4 N/A

Revenue from contracts with customers 15 Applied

Leases 16 Applied

t In order to comply with certain specific rules and regulations of the local Central Eank (Bangladesh

Bank) which are different to IAS/IFRS, some of the requirements specified in tiese IAS/IFRSS are not
applied. Refer below for such recognition and measurement differences that are most relevant and
material to the Bank and the Group,

*r This Standard regards a retirement benefit plan as a reporting entity separate from the employers

of the participants in the plan, Therefore, it is not applicable for the Bank's annual report as it is the
employer and not the retiremert beneiit plan itself.

x** The objective of IAS 34 is to prescribe the minimum content of an interim financial report and to
prescribe the principles for recognibon and measurement in complete or condensed financial
statements for an interim period and hence it is not applicable for annual financial statements. However,
the Bank being a listed entity in Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges regularly publishes hterim
Financial Report complying with IAS 34.

N/A= Not Applicable

New accounting standards not yet adopted

The Bank has consistently applied the accounting policies as set out in Note 2 to all periods presented

in these financial statements. The various amendments to standards, including any consequential
amendments to other standards have been considered. However, these amendments have no material
impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

A number of standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after

Elanuary 2022 and earlier application is permitted. However, the Bank dld not apply earlier the

pe oF the standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure

!4

new standard in preparing these financial statements.

17 Insurance Contracts
a

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 '€
January 2023, IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts within the sco

2 4 0EIhilA} entity provides relevant informatio ully represents those contracts. The Bank has
not yet ts impaa Bi:B[,6lEiil its financial statements. There re no other

202

a
32Ln{

eJ)
' fr). Rez

JL,
-iJ

9

4I

c
L

l.
.,/)

kAhammad FCA
M:ragirq Di.ector & CFO
con,ilQ65pgry1p1g

r l'[1 uzzaman, tCS n
I)MD & ny Secretary Manffng Director & CEO aul Haq

United Commercial Bank pLC Managiig DirectortJnited Commercial Bank PLC

Primc Fi0a[ce Capilal tr{arag.mlnr Lioit d

11

E
{t
Il
o
Go



ACNABIN
C h t rt e t e d A cto u tt t d t tts

sbndards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the Bank
in the current or fufure reporting periods and on foreseeable future ttansactions.

2.10.53 Operating segments

Business segments report consists of products and services whose risk and returns are different from
those of other business segments, The Bank has Nine reportable segments, as described below, which
are the Bankt strategic business units. The strategic business units offer difFerent products and
services. and are managed separately based on the Bank's management and internal reporting
structure. Each of the strategic business units of the Bank are periodically reviewed by the Management
committee. The following summary describes the operations in each ofthe Bank's reportable segments:

2.10.54 Risk Mana9ement

impact.
nization, risk is the possible outcome oF an action or event which could bring up an
Such outcome could either result in a direct loss of earnings/capital or may result in

E

.lo
o

losses due to sudden downturn in economy or falling interest rates. Bank have to rely on their capital
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n of constraints on banks'ability to meet their business objectives. Risk is the outcome of

as a buffer to absorb such losses, The types and degree of risks of an organization may be exposed
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Segments'
Name Description

Corporate Banking
This unit focuses on large corporate groups including structured/syndicated
finance with a variety of advances & deposit products and other transactions.

SME Banking
includes loans, deposits and other transactions and balances with SME
customers.

Consumer Banking
Includes loans, deposits and other transactions and balances with retail
customers.

Treasury
Treasury unit undertakes the Bank's funding and maintenance of SLR, Asset-
liability management through money market operation, Fx. market dealings,
investing in derivatives incl uding Forwards, futures and swaps,

Investment
Banking

Includes the Bank's trading, investment in equities and other capital market
activities.

Offshore Banking
This unit aims to provide all kinds of commercial banking services to its
customers in freely conveftible cuffencies, Presently the Bank has one unit in
Dhaka.

Card and Alternate
Delivery Channel

This includes offering a variety of debit card and credit card to the customers
according to their needs.

Mobile Financial

Services

Mobile Financial Services came up with the aim to cover a large number of
people under banking channel though mobile network facilitating convenient
cash inlout, bill paymen! POS purchase etc.

Agent Banking

UCB Agent Banking aims to promote full{ledged banking services to
geographically dispersed and financially excluded areas. It,s looking forward

people in near future.

Deputy M. r3$hg Director & CFO
Unttert corr,l#"tl8kEltl{N!C United Commercial Bank PLC

Pillli Fioance Capital Managemeit

to offer cashless transaction to all class of



delegated authority to the Managing Director and CEO to re-delegate
of the credit risk management division. The Board also sets credit policies
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Implementation of core risk management guidelines by United Commerclal Bank pLC and its status are
discussed below.

ERPD circulars no.17 dated 07 october 2003, BRPD circular no. 04 dated 0s March 2007 and Dos
circular no. 2 dated 15 February 2012 require banks to put in place an effective risk management
system. The risk management system of the Bank covers the following six broad risk areas:

Credit Risk

Foreign exchange risk
Asset Liability Management Risk

Intemal Control & Crmpliance Risk

Money Laundering Risk

Information & Communication Risk
Technology Security Risk

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is most simply deflned as the potential risk where a bank borrower or counterparty will fail
to meet its obligations in accordance with agreed terms. The goal of credit risk management is to
maximize a bank's risk-adiusted mte of return by maintaining credit risk exposure within acceptable
parameters. Banks need to manage the credit risk inherent in the entire portfolio as well as the risk in
individual credits or transactions. Banks should also consider the relationships between credit risk and
other risks. The effective management of credit risk is a critical component of a comprehensive
approach to risk management and essential to the long term success of any banking organization.

Both on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet activities like guarantee has impact on credit risk. It may
arise from either an inability or an unwillingness to perform in the pre-committed contracted manner,
credit risk comes from a bank's dealing with households, small or medium-sized enterprises (sMEs),
corporate clients, other banks and flnancial institutions, or a sovereign. The assessment of credit risk
involves evaluating both the probability of default by the borrower and the exposure or flnancial impact
on the bank in the event of default.

Our credit risk management function has been kept indep€ndent of business origination functions to
establish better internal control and to reduce conflict of interest. The Chief Risk Officer and the Head
of Credit Risk Management have clear responsibilities for management of credit risk. The final authority
and responsibility for all activities that expose the bank to credit risk rests with the Board of Directors.
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ates authority to the management for setting procedures, which together has structured the
nagement Framework in the bank.

objective of the risk management is that the Bank undertakes well calculated business risks
to safeguard iis capital, financial resources and growth of sustainable profitability. In this context, the
Bank has formed a risk management committee to overview regular monitoring of those critical risk
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Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that changes an investmenfs value due to changes in currency

exchange rates. This risk usually affects businesses that export and/or import but also affect investors

making international investrnents. Financial risk management is the practice of creating economic value

in a firm by using financial instruments to manage exposure to risk. The most common cause of foreign

exchange (FX) risk arises from making overseas payments for imports that are priced in a foreign

currency and receiving foreign currency as payment against exports. Exposure to foreign exchange risk

can also arise from foreign currency borrowing and deposits, overseas subsidiaries, assets located

overseas.

UCB has developed a Foreign Exchange Risk Management policy in line with the Bangladesh Bank

foreign exchange guidelines to minimize different types of risks associated with foreign exchange

transactions, In this guideline treasury functions are clearly demarcated between treasury front office,

mid offlce and back office. The front office is involved only in dealing activities and the back office is

responsible for all related suppod and monitoring functions on the other hand, mid Office will be
responsible to monitor market risk, liquidity risk and operational risks at treasury. Treasury Front Office'
'Treasury Mid Offlce and 'Treasury Back Office' have separate and independent reporting Iines to ensure
segregation of duties and accountabilities.

The Bank has also developed different strategies to handle the foreign exchange risk by setting different
types of limits and risk parameters to measure and monitor foreign exchange risk exposure of the Bank.

Treasury department is vested with the responsibility to measure and minimize the foreign exchange
risk associated with bank. To assess the degree of the risk associates with foreign exchange position

bank computes VaR (Value at Risk) on its foreign exchange position on daily basis. To deal smoothly
the dealers have various limits with triggers such as counterparly limit, stop loss limit, intraday limit,
per deal limit etc.

Dealing room is equipped with Reuter's information and dealing system, a voice recorder for recording
deals taking place over the telephone, television with financial news channels. Before entering into
any deal with a counter party, a dealer ensures that they have knowledge about the counter party's

dealing style, product mix and assess whether the customer is dealing in an appropriate manner,

Asset Liability Management Risk

ALM is an integral part of the financial management process of any bank. It is concerned with strategic
balance sheet management involving risks caused by changes in the interest rates, exchange rates and

uldity positjon of the bank.

The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCo) of UCB headed by the Managing Director of the
meets at least once in every month to look after the financial market activities, manage liquidity

rislg interest rate risk and FX or currency risk. Asset Liability Management (ALM) desk of the Treasury E
is primarily responsible for management of liquidity risk on a daily basis by appropriate coordination of X
funding activities. Asset liability Committee (ALCO) reviews the countr/s overall economic posiuon, 

=market outlook (local and global) and Bankt liquidity position. A quarterly projection of fund flows is
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Funding Ratio (NSFR), Leverage ratio etc. ALCO also monitors concentration of deposits of large

institutional depositoB which is volatile in nature.

In addition to the above ratios ALCO also analyses following statements to measure and monitor
liquidify ris& interest rate risk and FX or currency risk:

Risks Statement

Liquidity Risk

. Structural liquidity profile

. Dynamic liquidity proflle

. Key Management Ratios

. Cash flow projection

Interest Rate Risk

. Traditional Gap Analysis (up to I Year)

. Traditional Gap Anatysis (fotal A-L)

. Duration Gap Analysis

. Balance Sheet VaR

. Stress Testing

Cunency Risk
Currency wise Exposr.]re

Value at Risk (VaR)

Internal Control and Compliance Risk

Internal Control is a process, effected by a bank's board of directors, management, and other
personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives relating
to operationt reporting and compliance. An organization deploy many layers of defense. In order to
ensure, there are enough controls to manage the adverse risk of any major setback. The first layer of
defense is the operational management, The second layer of defense is the control function such as
internal control, risk management and compliance. The third layer of defense is the internal and
external audit function.

A system of strong intemal controls can help ensure that the goals and objectives of a banking
organization will be met, that the bank will achieve long -term prontability brget/ and maintain reliable
financial and managerial reporting, Such a system is designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the achievement of objectives in the followinq categories:

. Effectiveness and efficiency of operations,

. Reliability of finarrial reporting and
pliance with applicable laws. regulations, and internal policies.
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LC develops and maintains a robust internal control framework comprising the following internal
features:corUDl
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The key issues that have been established for effective internal control of UCB PLC are as follows:

i. ICCD of UCB is working in light of guideline on Internal Control & Compliance Guideline of
UCB.

ii. ICCD arranges awareness Building workshop regarding compliance culture in differentzone.
iii, The internal Audit department of the Bank check for mmpliance with policies and

procedures and the effectiveness of internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

iv. Compliance inspedion team of ICCD carried out compliance inspection regarding

authenticlty/accuracy of RBIA compliance and miss reporting.
v. In assessing the intemal control system UCB continued bo review of different control tools

i.e. QOR, LDCL, DCrcL, Internal audit checklist and Risk rating.

vi, ICCD prepare Health Report of UCB on Annual basis.

vii. Self-Assessment of Anti-Fraud Internal Controls is carried out on semi-annual basis as per

DOS circular letter #10 dated 9 May 2017 of BB.

Effective and eFficlent internal control of UCB PLC secure the interest of depositors and stakeholders
through establishing the following internal control functlons:

. compliance

. Information Security

. Internal Audit

. Risk Management

It helps to reinforce the 3 (three) types of control:

Three line of defense

FI
a)'

C'

U)

rk to manage its risks. The lines of defense model bring together risk-taking, risk oversight,
and risk assurance under one umbrella and provides an avenue for risk accountability of the first line .-,

se, a construct for effective challenge by IRM and ICRM ("second line of defenseJ and $
empowers independent risk assurance by Internal Audit ("third line of defense). In addition, the lines

of defense model include organizational units tasked with supporting a strong control environments
("enterprise support functions')
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Internal Control & Compliance Division (ICCD) under guidance of Board & Senior Management has

been working on the issue in light of Bangladesh Bank guidelines. Audit function is now totally
independent with reporting line of'Head of Audit'to Audit Committee of Board along with administrative

reporting line to 'Head of ICCD'. Competent authority of the bank has taken various steps to strengthen
internal audit as well as compliance activities for ensuring a standard compliance culture within the
organization towards mitigating Internal Control & Compliance Risks.

Preventive - creation of process control environment,
Corrective - Control Procedures in business processes/operation and
Detective - Post fucto controls.

:

UCBPLCusesalinesofdefensemodelasakeycomponentofitsEnterpriseRiskManagement(ERM)
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responsibilities outlined in the ERM Framework and supporting suite of policy documents in order to

manage Citi's risks in a consistent and eftective manner.

Financial institutions across the globe are working hard to flght financial crime driven by demands to
protect assets and maintain regulatory compliance. The areas of specific focus are those of Anti-Money

Laundering (AML) and Anti-Terrorist Financing (ATF). Money laundering is the process of providing

legitimate appearance to the illegally gained revenue. And terrorist financing process involves collecting

the funds intended for use in supporting the lerrorist organization from a variety of sources and using

the funds as needed to further the terrorist organlzation's goals, Both Money Laundering and Terrorist
Financing have the tradition of eroding the financial institutions and weakening the financial sectors'

role in the economic growth.

Regulators expect functions in the Bank to be standardized on a global level and across business lines.

The businesses themselves need consistency and efficiency. One of the best ways to satisfy these

expectations is to centralize furctions. This is an important first step in sharing and harmonizing skills

throughout the organization.

UCB has already gone a long way in the path of centralizations of its functions. In 2018, new Anti-
Money Laundering and Anti-Terrorist Financing Division has been formed. As instructed by BFIU,

Deputy CAMLCO is heading this Division. The Division has been manned with quallfied resources to
ensure high level of AML and ATF compliance across the Bank.

AML & ATF Division has arranged a number of tralning programs on prevention of money laundering

and terrorist financing for the Executives/Officers of the Bank through-out 2022 to develop their
professional skill and ensure better compliance.

A total number of 21,317 participants were covered through e-learning & Training programme). Total
257 sessions were arranged by the LDC through elearning module and Training facilities,

In line with international initlatives and standards, the Regulator has issued guidelines for preventing

Trade Based Money Laundering OBML). UCB has also prepared its own policy on "Prevention of Trade
Based Money Laundering" on September 29, 2020 based on the BFiU guidelines on the same.

As part of Alternative Learning Channel, in 2022 LDC has partnered with Linkedln & ensured upskilling

of 50 officials to be equipped with the international business and leadership practices, refined critical

thinking skills. improved virtual communication, flexibility and self-efficacy learning to maximize self-

Likewise, licenses for the UCB SMT of a Premium Learning Solution Harvard Manage Mentor
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pmcticing compliant culture. the Bank reported all instances of fraud 3nd forgeries detected to the
central bank on timely manner.

Information Communication Technology Risk

In the recent years, banking industry has been reshaped significantly in terms of its operational
processes, service delivery channels, market strategies including targeting, segmenting, positioning i
penetrating and with the wide varieties of product & services catered for individual customer needs

mostly. Among all other pivotal factors. 'Information and Communication Technology' (ICl-) has been

regarded as the core to bring such momentous transformation into successful reality. Consequently,
the imporiance of information security for the banks has gained much importance, and it is of the
critical essence for us to ensure that the lCT risks are being properly identified and measured, and
adequate mitigation strategies are in place.

iCT Risk management is a systematic approach for the identification, assessment and management of
intormation security related risks in Bank. It encompasses not only the negative impacts of operations
and service delivery which can bring destruction or reduction of the value of the Bank, but also the risk
associated with opportunities losses to explore the technological benefits with adverse business impact.

UCB regarded 'Effective Risk Management Process'as a vital constituent of a thriving IT security
program. Therefore, we developed our ICT risk management process in a way to aid the bank in
achieving the new-fang,ed business changes, potential investment in information technology s-ystem,

mitigating existing and imminent ICT threats.

The ICT Policy of the Bank has recently been revised and restructured to comply with the recent
technology, risk management trends and Bangladesh Bank latest ICTguideline. The Business Continuity
Plan, Disaster Recovery Plan and InFormation Securlty Management Policy have been republished after
the revision. Moreover, UCB has developed ICT Risk Management Policy and approved by board, which
covered all areas of IT risks according to Bangladesh Bank risks grading guideline,

UCB has the following footprints on reducing ICT risk including fraud prevention which will eventually
ensure our sustainable banking operation in the foreseeable future;

. Vulnerabillty Assessment and Penetration Testing (VAIPT) Solution Introduced.

. Optimization of S\MFT System has been successfully completed.

. Internet Banking Solution with two factor authenticator (2FA) mechanisms and OTP.

. AntFMoney Laundering (AML) Solution Implemented.
National Identity Card (NID) Verification System lntroduced for avoiding duplicated NID use in

Customer Account Opening.
Factor Authentication (zFA), SMS, E-mail aleds for Credit card transactions.
Skimming devices have installed in all UCB ATM for protecting Card Counterfeit.
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EMV standard solution (Chip Based) have been implemented that can reduce optimum levelS
card ftaudulent activities (Skimming, Duplicate card, etc). N
Duel control mechanism: Bank has introduced maker checker roles in FCLBS & S
management software which results internal user cannot process any CBS and credit eaid
related task Uy onO 0d{fn2023
Real Time Automated Fraud Management Solu{dr:[E[tr?82ftre capability to monitor fraudutent
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call centre solution has been implemented as a result: customers who are calling ucB call
center for any emergency help (card activation, deactivation, lost, transactions details etc) will
be served accordingly which helps to reduce risk and improve customer services.
Human Resource Management Information System (HRMIS) Solution has been implemented.
So to maintain and conkol HR related issues faster and accurately (Employee screening,
recruitment, promotjons, benefits, retirement, etc) which also reduce the employee risks.
Optimization of CORE Banking Software and Database.
ICT Risks Management Policy, Process up gradation as per the latest Bangladesh Bank ICT
guideline. It can reduce Regularity & Compliance related risks.
Improvement in lcr Awareness Risk: fiD has continuously conducting Icr awareness related
training for employee which are aligned with Learning and Development C-enter.

2.10,55 hternal Audit

The Bank has established an independent internal audit function for conducting risk based internal
audit on various business and operation areas of the Bank on continuous basis,

2.10.56 Interest rate Risk

Interest rate risk may a se either from trading porffolio or from non-trading portfolio. The trading
potfolio of the Bank consists of Government treasury bills and bonds of different maturities as far as
Interest rate risk is concern. Interest rate risk arises from mismatches between the future yield of an
asset and their funding cost. Asset Liability Crmmittee (ALCO) monitors the interest rate movement on
a regular basis and the Bank's Markets Treasury team actively manages the Balance sheet gap to
reduce the risk.

2.10.57 Operational Risk

Operational risk is defined as the rlsk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, and systems or from external events. Operational risk is inherent in the Bank's activities and
as with other risk types is managed through an overall framework with checks and balances that include
implementation of three line of defence, recognised ownership of the risk by the businesses and
independent risk management oversight. The operational risk policy codifles the core governing
principles for operational risk management and provides a framework for operational risk. In
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identify its key operational risks as well
as the controls established to mitigate those risks and to ensure compliance with laws, regulations,
regulatory administrative actions and the Bank's policies. The Bank's objective is to manage operational
rlsk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the reputation of the Bankt

with overall cost effectiveness and innovation. In all cases, the bank's policy requires
with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements. s

Operating Environment
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